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MINUTES

PLANNING COMMITTEE
August 15, 2007

A meeting of the Planning Committee of the Council of the County of Kaua’i,
State of Hawai’i, was called to order by Councilmember JoAnn A. Yukimura, Chair,
at the Historic County Building, Room 201, Lihu’e, Kaua’i, on Wednesday,
August 15, 2007, at 11:28 a.m., after which the following members answered the
call of the roll:

Honorable JoAnn A. Yukimura
Honorable Jay Furfaro
Honorable Shaylene Iseri-Carvaiho
Honorable Ron Kouchi
Honorable Mel Rapozo
Honorable Bill “Kaipo” Asing, Ex-Officio Member
Honorable Tim Bynum, Ex-Officio Member

Minutes of the July 18, 2007 Planning Committee Meeting.

Minutes of the August 1, 2007 Planning Committee Meeting.

Minutes of the July 10, 2007 Special Planning Committee Meeting Workshop
(Köloa-Po’ipü Area Circulation Plan).

Upon motion duly made by Councilmember Rapozo, seconded Iseri-Carvaiho,
and unanimously carried, Minutes of the July 18, 2007, August 1, 2007 and
July10, 2007 (Special Planning Committee Meeting Workshop) meetings
were approved.

The Committee proceeded on its agenda items as shown out of order in the
following:

Bill No. 2204 A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 8 OF
THE KAUA’I COUNTY CODE 1987, AS AMENDED,
RELATING TO THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING
ORDINANCE (Transient Vacation Rental and Bed and
Breakfast operations)
[This item was deferred.]

JOANN A. YUKIMURA, PLANNING COMMITTEE CHAIR: So we have a
floor amendment dated August 6 (11) which will form the basis. We also have an
amendment that is introduced by Councilmember Kouchi regarding vacation
rentals on ag lands. And I believe Councilmembers Rapozo and Iseri-Carvalho, you
also have amendments?
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SHAYLENE ISERI-CARVALHO: That is correct. It is being prepared, I

believe, as we speak. The final is being prepared as we speak. I do not have the

final as of yet.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, then we will have to recess the Committee until we

get those two (2) amendments on.

MEL RAPOZO: Councilmember Yukimura, you said you are going to use

your amendment as the basis, are you going to be introducing that amendment?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes.

Mr. Rapozo: I noticed... I have Councilmember Kouchi’s and his is

based off of the bill which I think really is all we have at this point. So I believe our

amendments are off of the original bill as well.

Ms. Yukimura: That is fine.

Mr. Rapozo: So I just wanted to know what your plan is. Are we going

to introduce your amendment first or are we just going to be working off of three (3)

different potential amendments?

Ms. Yukimura: The plan... My plan was to go over.., well, start with the

floor amendment that I have introduced, go over page by page and approve or

disapprove or discuss, and as we come to those sections where your amendments

are applicable, I would guess we can discuss them. We can, you know, either

incorporate them into an amendment or have them separate either way. I mean we

adopt one amendment and then introduce separate amendments.

RON KOUCHI: I think that not speaking for Mel, simply on the

amendment that I had offered, it did amend the original bill because there have

been no amendments to it, so should amendments that you have circulated or Mel,

be adopted, it would probably require me to redo my amendments because now it

will be making improper references to sections that aren’t either numbered correctly

or may not even be in the bill. So, you know, and I am not saying that is going to be

a problem, you know, and I am not, you know, saying anything else. I am just

saying, technically, I would have to make the amendment now conform to the form

of the bill as it exists at the time that mine comes up. So I would just ask for the

time after we go through this to redo it because the reverse is, if I do mine, then you

would have to redo your whole amendment and that doesn’t make sense.

Ms. Yukimura: The way that Robert’s Rule work is you can do an

amendment to an amendment, so when we come to that section, I think we can

propose it that way. We will see pretty easily how it dovetails and if it is a pass,

then it gets incorporated and if isn’t, then it doesn’t.
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Mr. Kouchi: But we should deal with the most first I think, so that we

know what the current body (main body) that we would be looking at.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, and Robert Rules seeks to avoid the problem that you
are talking about by allowing amendments to amendments, so then I think that is
perhaps the most orderly way to approach it. So I think the first question is
whether we are ready to go through this piece by piece and we can actually do it
informally still just looking at this floor amendment, and then talking about what is
okay and what is not okay. And then if we come to some agreement that requires
changes, I can just change it and then formally introduce it.

Mr. Rapozo: And if that is allowable, then I don’t see a problem. I
guess I was under the impression that before we could do formal work on an
amendment, it had to be introduced, but if that is not the case, then... I defer to the
experts on the table. I was under the impression that you need to introduce the
amendment on the floor, have the discussion, and then go from there.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Can we get some clarification from our County
Clerk please?

Mr. Rapozo: Actually, I want to make it easy for the public because they are
tracking three (3) or four (4) different versions, so when we get asked on the street,
eh, what date do you have? I just want to make sure that we all have the same
paper that we are working off of especially for all of you because we have seen quite
a few changes and I just want to make sure we get the right copy in the discussion.

Ms. Yukimura: So County Clerk, there is a question about procedure.

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

PETER A. NAKAMURA, COUNTY CLERK: My apologies...

Ms. Yukimura: The question about procedures, I have kind of an
al nimbus amendment and whether it needs to be formally introduced which then
means it has to be formally a motion to amend it has to be made if there are
changes to be made.

Mr. Nakamura: Yes, I think the basic premise if you look at both the
Council rules and Robert’s Rules of Order in terms of how.., just the practice of
amendments, in order to amend an amendment which I think is one of the
questions that you are asking, there has to be a motion and second to adopt the
amendment.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.
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Mr. Nakamura: And then the amendment to the second amendment to

amend that comes in. The other issue is just that the Council rules state that the

floor amendments have to be in writing prior to adoption, so there is going to be a

time if there are amendments to the amendments that we would need time to kind

of synchronize the two (2) amendments.

Ms. Yukimura: And that is why I asked to have this item up front, so that

we can have a discussion and then if there is further work to be done in terms of

developing other written amendments or amendments to amendments, we can go

back into the other business and make the amendments and prepare the written

amendments for consideration.

Mr. Nakamura: My only concern is that I am not sure how long it will

take us to get a consolidated amendment together. Because as it stands, there has

been no motion to amend the current bill, so all amendments work off of the base

Bill No. 2204 as it is, as it stands now.

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

Mr. Nakamura: So we would have to... it may take a while to just make

sure that the drafting is correct.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, but we have most of it on the computer already, so

let’s just proceed and if we run into problems, then we will address them.

Mr. Nakamura: I think just basically, you are correct, there has to be a

motion and a second to an amendment, so it starts the actual discussion on the

amendment and if there are amendments to that first amendment, it could only

occur after the motion and second on the first amendment has occurred (the initial

amendment). I am sorry.

Ms. Yukimura: Try that again.

Mr. Nakamura: The initial amendment, there is a motion and a second to

amend the current bill, then you can have amendments to that first amendment,

but you can only... I think the rules.., it is either the rules or Roberts Rules... I am

not real clear. You can only go one level below the floor amendment. It doesn’t

allow you to do a third one.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, I understand, okay. So, however, before I

introduce this amendment, I can get basic input, so that I can even change my

amendment before I introduce it as the introducer of the amendment, I could get

input from the Committee.

Mr. Nakamura: Yes, as long as it is not introduced, I think the changes

can be made to the amendment without having to go through the formal

ramsayering process.
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Ms. Yukimura: Right, okay, thank you. So with that advice then, I would

recommend that we... before I introduce the amendment which then initiates the
formal process, we go through this page by page and where we have agreement,
note that and where we have disagreement, consider changes... not formal
amendments, but changes that, I, as the introducer might incorporate, and then if
we can come to full agreement, then just move ahead with one amendment. If not,
then we will go into a formal amendment process. Okay, but the first question that
I want to ask is if there is any need to confer with the attorneys at this point, we
can still reserve the right to do it, but if there are any questions right now, we
should probably move to Committee of the Whole to get any questions that you may
have right now. If there are not, then we will proceed just going page by page and
seeing where we might have additions or deletions that we want to make to this or
changes, and see where... how much agreement and disagreement we have and
then, you know, if I am willing to accept it as a change to my proposed amendment,
then we will just do it.

Mr. Rapozo: Do you plan on going into executive session at all today?

Ms. Yukimura: Only if questions arise.., legal questions arise where we
need answers.

Mr. Rapozo: Well, I have some on the proposed amendment from
Mr. Kouchi.

Ms. Yukimura: Then perhaps we should go into that.

Mr. Rapozo: I have some serious questions.

Ms. Yukimura: With that case, then we need Mr. Kouchi, so that we can
go into Committee of the Whole please?

Mr. Rapozo: And I am not sure if the audience has seen anything or it
has been circulated.

Ms. Yukimura: His amendment was just passed out to members of the
group.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: So then I am going to recess this Committee, so that we
can move to the Committee of the Whole and get answers on the questions which we
may have on the two (2) amendments that have been floated.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, and the Chair (Asing) can take us there.

5



. .
Ms. Yukimura: As the Vice-Chair?

Mr. Rapozo: Yes. We have enough here, so we don’t need Kouchi.

Ms. Yukimura: Is Mr. Kouchi gone?

BILL “KAIPO” ASING, EX-OFFICIO COMMITTEE MEMBER: He is

probably in the area.

Ms. Yukimura: So the Planning Committee stands in recess.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 11:40 a.m.

The meeting was called back to order at 1:56 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you everyone for your patience. The executive

session was on the agenda for the Committee of the Whole and we are in the

Planning Committee now on the agenda item regarding vacation rentals. So I would

like to suspend the rules and invite testimony on the bill itself or on any of the

amendments (the proposed amendments) that have been circulated. Mr. Mann?

Would you please state your name for the record?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

MICHAEL MANN: Yes. Aloha Council, my name is Michael Mann. I have

to apologize upfront because this is the first time I have ever come before the

Council to testify and I am very bad at public speaking, so I hope you will indulge

me. I actually haven’t had a chance to read either the bill or the amendments, so...

because I just got them a few minutes ago. I am just going to come here and speak

from the heart. I got a briefing.., debriefing of the... basically, what you were

working on just before the meeting, and it seems that one of the things you are

considering is grandfathering current vacation rentals that are supposedly

nonconforming. I have a real problem with the idea of grandfathering questionable

uses especially in light of the fact that the County seems to have a serious problem

with enforcement. I think that if you do this, grandfathering, and you don’t take

the additional step of beefing up enforcement to make sure that people follow the

laws that we have on the books, then you are setting the precedent that people can

basically do whatever they want. They can ignore the rule of law, make rules on

their own, and the Council... the County will come back sometime down the road

and clean up the problem by allowing the people who sort of got in under the radar.

I think that is a very bad precedent to set. I would argue that by not making it

clear what the laws stand for and making sure that we obey the laws both in the

letter and in the spirit that we are causing undue confusion in the way that

government works. I would argue that there is really no point in this Council even

working on laws and legislation if we are not going to be enforcing what we put into

practice, then it just makes what you are doing pretty much political theater. It is a

waste of your time, it is a waste of the time of the people who come here to testify
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and it is just... it creates unnecessary confusion and problems. So it seems like that
you are along the road of allowing grandfathering, but I would really, really ask
that you reconsider that idea.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. Any questions of Mr. Mann?

Mr. Rapozo: I just have one.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, go ahead Councilmember Rapozo.

Mr. Rapozo: Mr. Mann, thank you for coming and I am finally glad to
meet you or I am glad to finally meet you. We’ve read quite a bit of your work and I
appreciate your input. Are you going to be staying here for the rest of the day or at
least through this segment of the...

Mr. Mann: Unfortunately, I have a tutoring session in Waimea at
3:00 p.m., so I really have to leave.

Mr. Rapozo: Yes, I would invite you to at least watch it on television,
so you can see the debate and the dialogue because I am not so sure that the... that
we are on track to grandfathering. We don’t know. We still haven’t really seen the
amendments. It hasn’t been introduced. There is a lot of dialogue that needs to be
had, and I think you will be interested to see what happens.

Mr. Mann: That makes me very happy to hear that actually.

Ms. Yukimura: Any other questions of Mr. Mann? I just want to say that
to a certain extent, grandfathering is not a choice for us. There is a principle of law
that when you make something that is legal, illegal by law, that those uses that
were legally existing before the law went into effect are, in fact, grandfathered. So,
you know, I think some of us wish we didn’t have to grandfather them, but we need
to develop a sound law, so that is what we are trying to do.

Mr. Mann: May I respond to that?

Ms. Yukimura: Sure.

IVIr. Mann: I guess for my standpoint, the question becomes, well, are we
100% certain that the use that people have been taking advantage of was legal to
begin with. I understand that there is a question about the wording of the original
CZO and that it didn’t specifically state single family units and it only talked about
multi-family units. I believe that is part of the controversy, right?

Ms. Yukimura: That was the problem.

Mr. Mann: Okay, but even though it doesn’t specifically state that single
family units can be used for these purposes, it also doesn’t state that.., or even
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though it doesn’t state that they can’t be used, it also doesn’t state that they can be

used.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, however, we have legal opinions that we also are

obligated to take heed of and, so we are having to make some judgments because if

we don’t, then the Planning Department will have to make those decisions and then

it becomes... you are talking about us giving them clear laws, so they are easy to

enforce, and that is the very issue also with ag lands.

Mr. Mann: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: And, you know, at least it has been my position and I

think at this point, it is quite well researched that vacation rentals generally

speaking are not allowed on ag lands, so we are trying to make that clear too.

Mr. Mann: Yes, I just read that today. I definitely don’t... I appreciate the

work that you guys are doing and I would not want to do it because I know you guys

are in a very difficult position. I just think that some of the problems that we see

are due to a general lack of enforcement and a general idea that I seem to perceive

on the island that people can do whatever they want. It is sort of like shoot first,

ask questions later, and I really think that that is a dangerous sort of mindset and

we really should disabuse people of this idea that they can do that because it doesn’t

make for a functional society in my opinion.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, there are two (2) things to good operation of a

community in terms of laws, clear laws and good enforcement. Our job is to draft

clear and pass clear laws. Enforcement is an administrative function.

Mr. Mann: I agree.

Ms. Yukimura: And so, really, if you are concerned about enforcement,

you need to see the Mayor basically.

Mr. Mann: I agree.

Ms. Yukimura: Or the Planning Department which enforces the Planning

laws.

Mr. Mann: I know you have had your battles with both groups.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, but just so you are real clear. We cannot go out and

do searches or issue cease and desist or anything like that because that is not a

Council function and that is an administrative function.

Mr. Mann: I agree.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you very much for coming today.
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JAY FURFARO: Thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Next, Mr. Parks?

ANDY PARKS: I have seen every meeting about the vacation rentals. I
sat here about a year or so ago...

Ms. Yukimura: Can you say your name first please?

Mr. Parks: I’d rather not just because I am allowed not to.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, then for the record, I am going to say that it is
Andy Parks who is speaking, so our captioner can...

Mr. Parks: About a year and a half ago, I sat here and you sat there
and you told me that having that focus group or whatever it was... work group that
came up with this grandfathering business that that wasn’t the foot in the door.
You were wrong. Now that they’ve got this foot in the door, you’ve got this
cockamamy Kobayashi law because it is a law that you seem to think is some kind
of God given thing. I mean, Kaipo, you had that presentation and you know what it
starts with (the CZO law), pursuant to Section 186. There it is. You don’t need to
say it in the law. It is in the State law which covers the County ordinance. It is
there. You have managed to have these things. Okay, if... you can come up with a
dozen different opinions. What is going on here is your refusal to defend that
lawsuit. If you just said, we are not going to update the law, we are going to let this
be enforced the way it is and if we want to, you can add another law for clarity and
make sure it is for clarity and let them sue. How much is it going to cost to defend a
lawsuit? $100,000, $200,000, $300,000? You guys spend millions on lawsuits that
nobody asked you to defend. This community wants you to defend...

Mr. Rapozo: Andy, you don’t have to yell, we can all hear.

Mr. Parks: This community wants you to defend...

Mr. Rapozo: Excuse me, point of order, point of order. We have a
captioner that has earphones that is amplified, we have a camera man, please show
some respect. If you don’t want to respect us, then that is fine, but respect the
camera man and the captioner. Thank you.

Mr. Parks: This lawsuit is the fact... I mean, the fact that there isn’t the
lawsuit that you guys are going to now allow them to do it is blackmail, it is
extortion. I don’t know what you people think you are doing with this bill. This is
absolutely absurd. You have all the money in the world to defend.., to sue yourself,
to sue the OIP, and to do all these crazy things... you spend millions in taxpayer
money, but you won’t let this go to court and let these people... let these jerks who
have put their vacation rentals in our neighborhoods. You won’t defend us against
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that? You are going to let them do it? I don’t understand you. I don’t understand

the rationale.

Ms. Yukimura: Mr. Parks, we haven’t passed any law yet, so you don’t

even know what...

Mr. Parks: Please don’t interrupt me. I don’t interrupt you.

Ms. Yukimura: I am sorry, but I am asking...

Mr. Parks: You have a bill on the table that will become law. You want to

bet right now?

Ms. Yukimura: There is a bill that will become law.

Mr. Parks: (Inaudible).

Ms. Yukimura: We don’t know exactly what its framework will be and we

are asking for your input. Why are you making assumptions? Why don’t you just

tell us what you would like to see in the bill?

Mr. Parks: I don’t want to see anything in the bill. I want to see the bill

received and I want enforcement of those and by the way, you can appropriate

money specifically for that enforcement in the budget... you just don’t have the

political will to do it. There are a lot of ways that you can actually influence the

Administration of the laws to be passed, but you don’t have the political will to do it.

If you did, you would let this die and you will go out for enforcement, get them down

here, hold investigations as to why there is not enforcement and get them to enforce

that law, then the people who don’t like the enforcement can sue you. Otherwise,

all you are doing is letting them get away (inaudible).., we are going to sue you, we

are going to sue you, let them sue you. Receive this bill and (inaudible).., do you

really want everybody around you to be a tourist and you are the only one in your

little thing and you don’t even know these people. They change every week, is that

a neighborhood, is that a residential neighborhood. The Kobayashi decision is

bogus and anything related to his (inaudible) because it says in the CZO, pursuant

to 186. That means that every word in 186 becomes part of that CZO.

Ms. Yukimura: Airight, could you please summarize? Your time is up. I

did give you extra time.

Mr. Parks: I want to thank Barbara for doing the research that she did the

last two (2) weeks ago. I also want to say that you have been hiding public policy

under the (inaudible) of some kind of legal thing. You have four (4) opinions that we

can’t get a hold of. How are we supposed to even know what your political rationale

is on this if you are going into exec... illegal executive sessions because they are

illegal. The only thing that has been cited is 95-4(a)... (a)(4) which refers to your

duties, responsibilities, powers and liabilities. Which one of those are involved in
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this? (Inaudible).., none of them... (inaudible) your powers and that means your
power to legislate and if your power to legislate allows you to go into executive
session, I will eat my hat because that is much too broad. You also said, well, we
may have other reasons. If you have other reasons, according to law, they have to
be listed on the notice. These notices are deficient, the way that you have gone into
executive session is deficient. Three (3) of these at least, there has been no call for
going into executive session. The Chair, whether it has been the Committee of the
Whole or I imagine this morning, I don’t know for sure.

Mr. Rapozo: Madam Chair, point of order. This is not on the agenda.
We are talking about a bill and not executive session.

Mr. Parks: These executive sessions are an interval part of this bill.

Mr. Rapozo: Do you want to speak on executive session?

Ms. Yukimura: Alright, may I have some order please?

Mr. Rapozo: He can come back on the Council of the Whole, Committee
of the Whole.

Mr. Parks: (Inaudible) behind closed doors and it has to stop and this
bill is exactly...

Ms. Yukimura: May I have some order here? Okay, thank you. I have
given you more time to speak and I think we’ve heard your testimony. Are there
any questions of Mr. Parks? Thank you very much Mr. Parks.

Mr. Parks: By the law, there is an OIP letter saying that your session this
morning was illegal and I am going to call the Police and file a criminal charge on
that.

Ms. Yukimura: Mr. Parks, I do invite you if you are so convinced that we
are illegal to go to OIP and...

Mr. Parks: Oh no, I am going to the Police because there are criminal
penalties under 92-13.

Ms. Yukimura: You are still going to need an interpretation of the
application.

Mr. Parks: We will see what they do.

Ms. Yukimura: Alright, thank you very much. Is there anyone else who
wishes to testifS’? Please Ms. Sausen.
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LOUISE SAUSEN: First off, my name is Louise Sausen for the record.

I am sorry I haven’t been here for the past meetings. I have car problems and I live

in Hã’ena. Kaipo, thank you for doing the presentation, I did get to see it on t.v.

Kaipo got a lot of this, you know, from the people, you know, and I want to also

point out that two (2) people in the community that did this project as a school

project for college was Leah Sausen (my daughter) and Coral McCarthy. When you

see their maps, it really, really, makes a difference. I mean Kaipo’s map was good,

you know, and it showed the islands and this is what I wanted... what I was asking

in the beginning when we were having these meetings if we could start getting the

color codes and stuff, so I think that was a good start for all of this. But I agree

with both of the people that spoke before me. You know, first off, the last speaker

that was probably my radical side, so, I, myself, do not believe that we have

enforced the law as they were and now we are trying to make everything right, so

that we can enforce the law. Well, the enforcement of the law goes back to the same

department that didn’t enforce the law in the beginning and that also sets out

permits. We, the people, are actually your boss because you are elected officials.

We, the people, in other issues like the boating issues and stuff, I had to find out

who was the Mayor’s boss and the Mayor’s boss is the people. So every decision that

you make should be for the people, more so the people of this land. A lot of these

other people can go home someplace, we cannot go home no place because Hawai’i is

our home. We have a lot of issues and to keep up with this, I am having a hard time

keeping up with all these issues. We have a vacation rental outside the VDA and it

is not illegal, but it is not legal. You know, we have now another boating issue in

Hanalei. The government has not stood up for the community in any of this. We

have the Superferry and that is another big issue. Infrastructure...

Ms. Yukimura: Ms. Sausen, can you focus on the agenda item?

Ms. Sausen: Yes, and that is what I am getting to. Enforcement has

not been done, so I feel that if we go ahead with this bill, you know, we have to

consider the SMA year... everybody was looking for a magic year, well, that is the

year, anything after that, sorry, okay. Number 2, amortization, you know, two (2),

three (3) years returns to residential, you sell your place, that is it and it doesn’t

become a vacation rental to the next person. And maybe, yes, you don’t have control

over enforcement, but you can maybe have them suggest to have a department of

enforcement in the Planning Department because they got too much work over

there. I have been trying to get my permits for a year. They have lost them,

everything, you know, so I think they are really over worked over there, so maybe

they should have a separate enforcement agency through them. And everybody on

the Planning Commission, the one that is on the t.v. that figures out on permits,

maybe they should study the law more before they become volunteers because they

keep saying that they are volunteers. But when you go to these meetings, they don’t

know the law and that is what is confusing on this because the SMA’s in certain

areas, they avoid it or did not recognize and that is why we are here.
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Ms. Yukimura: So is that it? Thank you. Is there any questions? I just

want to ask you, are you in agreement with the previous speaker? Do you want us
to receive this bill and not approve it?

Ms. Sausen: Well, if you... like you said, we are doing this bill, but it is
up to the Administration department and the Planning Department for
enforcement.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, without the bill, they couldn’t really enforce this
particular issue.

Ms. Sausen: We could go back to the SMA. They violated all the
permits.

Ms. Yukimura: I know, but the SMA does not address vacation rentals, so
I am...

Ms. Sausen: Yes, but it is land use.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so you don’t want this bill to pass?

Ms. Sausen: If we are not going to have true enforcement if we can’t go
back to 1982 and if we can’t have amortization, then I would have to say, yes, kill
the bill and let’s start over. You’ve got too much amendments. We have been
coming for what, six (6) months and so many different amendments, amendments,
you know, and it is time for everybody to get off the fence and to start thinking
about reality. What is right? What is not right? Even the people out there... just
because the next person is doing it, I am tired of hearing that. Everything that
people want to do, they point, they go... (change side of tape)... this person did it,
why can’t I? Well, that person did it, why can’t I? We have to stop this. We have to
stop this.

Ms. Yukimura: The way to stop this is this bill. It is the beginning.

Ms. Sausen: Is there a bill with enforcement?

Ms. Yukimura: But you can’t have enforcement without a clear bill and
that is what our job is and then you need to go to the Mayor...

Ms. Sausen: (Inaudible) amendments and the all the cushioning and
the softening of this bill, it is really like the other people said, it is getting
confusing.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

Ms. Sausen: Thank you.
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay, is there anyone else who wishes to speak?

Ms. Elmore?

BARBARA ELMORE: Thank you. My name is Barbara Elmore and I will

tell you up front... you will probably disagree with me, but if we only can come up

and agree with you, then there is no point in wasting your time having public

testimony. If this bill... I do have some comments about the amendments that we

got a couple of hours ago, but, first, I want to say a couple of things. If this bill

passes as it is written, the vacation rental owners and realtors will have achieved

their top priorities while my only pretending all along to oppose the bill. The

attorney for the Board of Realtors has even admitted in open testimony that his

clients are truly focused on only two (2) things: grandfathering for the current

vacation rental business, thus locking in their monopoly, and eliminating any

further competition by preventing future vacation rental operations by people not

already in the business. If I am wrong about that, check the transcripts because I

heard him say it. In other words, give us what we want and prevent anyone else

from ever competing with us. Does anyone actually think the language contributed

to this bill by the Board of Realtors would contain anything unfavorable to realtors?

It is like having an energy bill written by the big oil companies. Now there are four

(4) things that will help in this bill that is going to help these realtors and these

vacation rental owners achieve their goals.

First, insertion into the law the words single family dwelling as an accepted

location for vacation rentals. Those who wrote the original CZO did not mention

single family homes as vacation rental locations because they sell homes as homes

and they sell vacation rentals as being timeshare units and multi-family buildings.

They never dreamed that the real estate industry and investors would launch an

assault on residentially zoned and agriculturally zoned lands converting them from

the uses intended in the CZO into profit centers. What part of visitor destination

area do these educated savvy business people and attorneys not understand? The

second thing that will help them that is in this bill... blanket grandfathering for all

existing vacation rentals. In other words, with a straight face, they expect the

Council to pass a law legalizing their violations of zoning laws. Legally, the only

vacation rental operations entitled to grandfathering should be those existing prior

to adoption of the CZO and those businesses should be required to prove the status

by providing legitimate IRS and State Income Tax Returns showing actual income

prior to the adoption of the CZO. The third thing, in this bill which is what they

want is just stunning... it is like a gift on a silver platter. It is a permanent

monopoly on this profitable vacation rental business for themselves, their children,

their grandchildren and all future generations and their family while closing out

that possibility for any other families. Compare this to the British monarchy where

only direct descendants of that one family will ever be able to (inaudible).., of the

riches and the advantages of royalty. The fourth thing and I was amazed at this. I

just learned about this at the last meeting. The exemption of at least 12 current

vacation rentals operating in buildings listed on the National Trust for Historic

Preservation. Just because a building is historic and is listed on the National Trust

list does not mean the use of that building is historic or should be preserved. It
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reminds me of the million.., multi-million dollar earmarks inserted into bills in
Congress. This is another gift on a silver platter to these vacation rental operators.
As for the threat of lawsuits, I think you too should welcome a lawsuit because we
need a strong new law outlawing all vacation rentals that are open for business
after passage of the original CZO.

As far as this meeting today, I think we ordinary citizens need at least one or
two (2) days to digest these complicated amendments. I would like to mention them
briefly. Could I have time to...

Ms. Yukimura: You may have your additional three (3) minutes.

Ms. Elmore: Okay, thank you. The amendment by Mr. Kouchi, paragraph...
page 1, the first little (b) paragraph. The words on the effective date of this
ordinance should not be in this bill because if you do this, if you grandfather people
and you let people operate vacation rentals in homes, I could bring you a list of
people that have opened such businesses in the last two (2) or three (3) years and
you would be shocked at the number of them. So making it effective as the date of
this ordinance is not acceptable. Paragraph (c), the next paragraph, any idea that
the Planning Director alone could issue nonconforming use certificates, I object to
that and there is a reference in this paragraph to... dwelling unit that was being
used as a lawful vacation rental without any clue as to what this means. So unless
you can come up with a definition of lawful in your definitions, that paragraph is no
good. When you get to the little (1), (2), (3) and number (4)... no, let’s see... oh,
okay, I guess that is number (1) there about the GET and TAT tax. If you go for
this and adopt this amendment, it should include IRS and State Income Tax
records. The word pattern of consistent.., the words in that little (3) paragraph,
pattern of consistency is very vague. I don’t know what kind of pattern, I mean, you
might think of two (2) things as a pattern and I might think it takes 50 or 50 years
or whatever. (d)(2), the applicant executes an agreement... I guess there are stacks
of farm dwelling agreements that have been executed by people who ignored them
once they signed on the dotted line, so any concept that signing an agreement is
going to hold people to it is just folly I think.

The next page, instead of referring to the HRS, the CZO is not mentioned.
That paragraph (3) on page 2 is too vague. There is no percentage of income
mentioned, it is... they have to conduct a farming operation. Paragraph (4)(e), there
are no dates given in this. This is so vague. It talks about a relevant time period,
but no dates. I am trying to hurry. Using the date of February 29, 2008, well, from
November 30 to February 29, 2008, basically, three (3) months for people to apply
for these nonconforming use certificates. That really means from now to
February 29, 2008 instead of November 30 because they could start right now if
this... I just think this is a bad amendment and I won’t go into more details, but I
would hope you would reject it and I didn’t even get into your amendment, JoAnn.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. It is not that changed from the last time you
analyzed it.
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. .
Ms. Elmore: Well, there are still some things... the main thing... not

the main thing, but one of the things is there is no need to put single family, the

word single family except in your definition. When you talk about transient

vacation rentals, that is all that you need, you don’t need to say single family or

multi-family because a vacation rental is a vacation rental.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. Okay, is there anyone else who wishes to

testifi?

JONATHAN CHUN: Good afternoon Madam Chair. Jonathan Chun and

thank you for the opportunity to make some comments on the proposed bill and the

amendments. I just got the... first thing, I also thank you for a copy of Mr. Ching’s

e-mail and letter to... in the interest of time, let me just say that while I don’t

necessarily agree with Mr. Ching and his opinions in there, he does raise a few

points, but one thing that he does not address and I think is the main issue before

us is whether or not all these changes in 205 which he submits, the impact of the

grandfathering provision in 205 itself because 205 specifically states that when they

change 205... if you want to interpret their changes as not including overnight

accommodations, that change can only affect future uses and did not affect and

cannot affect grandfathered uses. That is specifically in 205 itself already and

Mr. Ching’s memo does not address the impact of that. The second point is, we have

looked at Councilman Kouchi’s amendments and we do feel that is a good

amendment. Basically, it follows what the recommendation from the Board of

Realtors have been and that is if you want to have a good bill and a good start on

this issue, do a bill that is defensible. You want to start off with a defensible

position and start off with something to at least allow people the opportunity to

present information to the County that their farm dwelling use was proper. And I

am not saying... the issue of whether it is proper or not is always going to be factual

driven given the opportunity to at least present the facts. After they present the

facts to the County, if you feel they don’t have enough, fine, you can deny it at that

point, but allow them the opportunity to at least present their side of the story.

In closing, I would like to just highlight one fact. What has driven these

issues over here is whether or not their rental of an apartment or a dwelling unit is

consistent with the residential use of property. I want to point out a quote from this

case called, Maui County versus Puamana Management Corporation. It is found in

(inaudible) appellant 352. In that case, a lawsuit was filed in Maui and specifically

objecting to the operation of a hotel use, what they consider a hotel use in a

residential planned community. In that case, the appellant was saying that it is not

a residential use because these people are living here are transients and they are

not residents and residential uses are just for residents only.

This is what the court had to say in terms of that argument and this is found

on, I guess, page 4 which is on my print, but I don’t know what the official page

would be. This is what the court said, it said, from this, it would appear that the

appellant position is that unless the renter of a unit in a residential area manifest
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. .
an intent to make that unit his permanent home, the act of renting to him violates
the ordinance which is the zoning ordinance. I can continue if the Chair wants, if
not, I can just leave this quote here with the Council.

Ms. Yukimura: I will allow you to continue for another three (3) minutes.

Mr. Chun: Okay, I will just finish the quote. It shouldn’t take that long.
The quote goes on, the position is on its face absurd, nevertheless, while appellant
has grotesquely overstated his position, it is representing the public and the matter
is one of considerable public interest. In other words, the court said, we don’t
believe that it is absurd, but let’s address it. They go on towards the end of its
opinion and it addresses at the very end. I think it is the last page of the opinions
says this. We are unwilling to hold as appellant urges that the continuous and
collective rental of units for a period of one week or longer with provisions for maid
and housekeeping services violates the residential zoning of the premises in
question under the ordinance as drawn. Like the court below, we are unwilling to
say that an individual apartment owner could not so use his property and see no
real difference between one apartment owner so using his property and a number of
apartment owners banning together collectively to so use their properties. I just
want to... I don’t highlight this to say that you are always going to be wrong, but I
want to highlight this quote from that case to let you know... I mean, that argument
has been made and in that particular case, under those particular facts, the court
did not feel that it was a very valid position. I am not saying to just say don’t do it,
but I am just saying, be aware that that is, right now, where the courts are coming
from in regards to residential uses of property and whether rental to transient is a
residential use or not. So that is all that I have to say and I am open to any
questions or clarifications if the Council so desires.

Ms. Yukimura: Any questions of Mr. Chun? Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Chun: I used up my three (3) minutes Councilmember.

Mr. Bynum: The bottom line of all of this discussion and you
consistently come up here and said that the Council can regulate going forward.

Mr. Chun: Yes.

Mr. Bynum: And, you know, there has been a lot of talk about clarity here to
today and that is the attempt what we are trying to make. Clearly from all the
debate that we have been having over the months, there is currently a clear lack of
clarity.

Mr. Chun: Correct.

Mr. Bynum: And that is the attempt that is being made by this body I think
is to bring clarity from this point going forward. And, you know, what it all comes
down to in the long run for me, is this question about whether under State law,
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. .
TVR’s have been legal on ag land, right, and if you... as Mr. Ching says pretty

clearly that they are illegal, then the County has no authority to make them legal.

You know, and you disagree with that, but that is the crux of it. I think that is the

only place I think we are in disagreement... that you are in disagreement with the

law as the proposed amendment.

lVfr. Chun: Right, I mean, the Board of Realtors have been consistent in

what they are saying. Basically, they are saying, yes, and I agree... the Council has

the authority and maybe the obligation to clarifr what is meant by agricultural

uses. Now that clarification because of the fact that it is coming up now and the

effect of 46-4 can only take effect from this day, from the date of the ordinance on

forward, the board, my clients, do not object to that. That is not the issue that they

are raising. The issue is basically saying, that it should allow.., for people who have

been working under the law when it was not clear, they should be allowed to

continue. Now the bone of contention I would have and that is in terms of the way

to do that is to allow them to prove of what they have been doing in the past

complied with the law as it was written back then because as I have always said,

whether they comply with the law is a matter of fact of what each person did or did

not do and I cannot sit here with a straight face and tell you, everybody in the ag

land does a TVR, everybody is okay, because I don’t know whether they had any ag

use or not. Likewise, I don’t think we can also say that everybody in the ag land is

not okay because there might be people out there that have legitimate ag uses and

rent their residential unit on the side.

Mr. Bynum: I mean the question then becomes, who determines that?

Mr. Chun: Well, under the proposed amendment that Councilman Kouchi

has submitted, it puts that authority and that responsibility in the hands of the

Planning Department and the Planning Department will have that obligation to get

that done and also has to set up certain procedures to do that and that makes it an

open procedure and gives everybody a chance to present whatever they have and

gives them the chance to present the evidence and to have it done on a one on one

basis.

Mr. Bynum: And that brings me back around to the concern about whether

the County of Kaua’i has the authority to override the State law if you accept what

Mr. Ching seems to have said here that 205 HRS clearly prohibits overnight

accommodations such as offered by vacation rentals and whether the County of

Kaua’i has that authority.

Mr. Chun: I would say the County of Kaua’i has the authority to determine

under 205, at that point in time, whether they comply with the farm dwelling

agreements because that authority was given basically to the counties. I mean, the

State is always saying, under farm dwelling agreement, County, it is your job, not

mine. My main point of contention for the opinion by Mr. Ching was that I don’t

believe and if you need... you should ask him directly, what is the impact of the uses

that were going on prior to the amendment regarding overnight accommodations
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. .
that was recently done. He does not address that and neither do we because our
position is as far as after that, yes, if that is his opinion, fine, so be it, but our
position has always been, you have to look at the grandfathering and I don’t believe
he is addressing that at all.

Mr. Bynum: I understand your point. Thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. Let me just... your Puamana case, I mean,
you are talking about residential areas with respect to ag that is not really
applicable.

Mr. Chun: I understand, but I wanted to point out the fact that the
overall.., one of the things that was pushing this ordinance over here was the...
what the Council perceives as non-residential uses in residential zoned areas. I just
wanted to present that position on that, but, yes, I am not saying that has
applicability to farm dwellings and farm dwelling uses.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Chun: That needs to be determined by somebody whether that
person did the farm dwelling or not.

Ms. Yukimura: So what you are saying is that the Blame Kobayashi
decision which accepted transient use as a residential use and said that if you
wanted to prohibit it, you had to be explicit.

Mr. Chun: Right.

Ms. Yukimura: Was a reasonable opinion.

Mr. Chun: Given what the court’s opinion was and their thoughts in the
Puamana case, yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, and that there is this additional layer of law that
we have to look at with respect to ag units.

Mr. Chun: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Because of the State Land Use law regarding ag farm
dwellings.

Mr. Chun: Farm dwellings, yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, good. I appreciate that and your point about
Mr. Ching’s opinion is that the explicit prohibition of overnight accommodations did
not occur in 1976.
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Mr. Chun: Oh, no.

Ms. Yukimura: So that whenever it came in, that is when it is clear that

no matter... that there is a explicit prohibition.

Mr. Chun: That is one... I don’t want to bore the Council, but there is at

least three (3) or four (4) different legal points that I feel that Mr. Ching’s opinion

kind of either glosses over, ignores, or maybe didn’t even think about.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Chun: And I don’t want to bore the Council with legal details. I mean,

justifies to say that there are other points that we believe he is wrong on that.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, you’ve made the point, but I wanted to be clear

about what your point was and then it still doesn’t answer the question of

whether... even though they weren’t explicitly prohibited whether they were, in

fact, permitted, vacation rentals were permitted... which were established prior to

the explicit prohibition.

Mr. Chun: The overnight accommodation part.

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

Mr. Chun: Yes, and that is why I said, one of the weaknesses of using that

is, he doesn’t address the fact about what happened about the guys that were doing

farm dwelling before that amendment was passed in 205.

Ms. Yukimura: And the amendment could either have been a change in

direction of the law or it could have been a clarification of the Legislature’s intent of

the existing law.

Mr. Chun: Like I said, I could... I think it would be wise for the Council to

ask the County Attorney’s opinion to review that particular part of it. I don’t know if

they did or not and if they want to or not, that is their call.

Ms. Yukimura: The opinions that I have seen have been not been based

on the explicit prohibition. I have been the one who raised it with the Lombardi

firm, you know, but the... there is additional basis which is the farm dwelling

agreement which means it... says it must be related to a farm.

Mr. Chun: And that is all that it says, it has to be related to a farm.

Ms. Yukimura: And one of the things... other questions or, you know,

concerns that I have with Mr. Ching’s opinion was.., as part of the opinion, he tries

to include his own definition of what a farm is and then he makes a note, that, oh,

by the way, these are reasonable because, look, the Legislature is going to pass it in
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. .
2007. Unfortunately to Mr. Ching and they tried to do the same thing in 2006 and
2007 and both times, the Legislature did not pass it.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, the thing is, that the Planning Director is going to
be doing exactly what Mr. Ching is doing.

Mr. Chun: I don’t know.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, I mean, he may not come to the same conclusions,
but what we are saying is that the Planning Commission is going to apply the State
law as vague as it is and make a decision whether something was a... was a farm
dwelling or not. Mr. Ching, in his role as the Executive of the Land Use
Commission, has to do that because the Land Use Commission deals with applying
the law.

Mr. Chun: Not necessarily. Mr. Ching, in his opinion, specifically stated
that this is just his personal opinion and it is not binding on any... on the LUC or
anyone, so, basically, he is saying, you know, this is just my personal opinion, the
LUC can do what they want to do.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Chun: Because it is the LUC in short that has the control.

Ms. Yukimura: But, okay, if you give the Planning Director, so what is he
going to do?

Mr. Chun: The Planning Director will make a decision on the facts... under
Councilman Kouchi’s amendments, the Planning Director will have to make a
decision on the facts presented to him, whether or not the use that is presented to
him is... qualifies for farm dwelling or not. Now if the... whoever disagrees with
that, I believe under the current rules of the Planning Department, anyone can file
an appeal to the Planning Commission on that. The Planning Commission then
will... I would believe do a contested case hearing on that pursuant to Chapter 91,
create a record, and make a decision that is either opposed to the director or
disagrees with the director. After that, if any person disagrees, they can appeal
that to the Circuit Court. The Circuit Court ultimately under Councilman Kouchi’s
proposal and also under 205, I think the Circuit Court ultimately have to be the one
to make the decision and not the Legislature.

Ms. Yukimura: Now, you have also said that the Council has the
obligation to clarify ag use.

Mr. Chun: 205... the Legislature in their infinite wisdom basically assigned
the responsibility for a farm dwelling and the enforcement of farm dwelling to the
counties and, also, they kind of further emphasized that by the amendment that
Mr. Ching pointed out in terms of agricultural tourism. I mean, it always seemed to
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. .
say that.., the Legislature is saying, well, we will do a law and County, you have to
enforce it. So I believe it is within the Council’s parameter under 205 and the
provision of 205 to enforce that and to clarify if it needs to be.

Ms. Yukimura: So then the parameters that I proposed in the.., in terms
of grandfathering and vacation rentals that are associated with bonafIde farms are
appropriate in terms of’, we can do that.., we have the par to do it and now there is a
question about whether the specific parameters proposed are, you know, the right
ones, but that is a policy decision, but in terms of the Council being able to clarify
what a bonafide ag use is, you feel that we have that power?

Mr. Chun: It can clarify. The problem that.., the objection, again, raised by

my clients and contained in our letters is that you cannot post date your
clarifications. The grandfathering issue is the grandfathering issue.

Ms. Yukimura: Oh, but there is no... if the only way is through a use
permit, then they don’t... and they don’t have a use permit, then...

Mr. Chun: But you can’t stop a non.., under 46-4, you cannot stop a valid

nonconforming use.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, the question is whether they can be a valid use
without a permit, a special permit.

Mr. Chun: Again, if there were a valid nonconforming under 46-4, you

cannot change the rules in the middle of the game and say, by the way, you have to

do something else.

Ms. Yukimura: But the question is whether they are a valid

nonconforming use.

Mr. Chun: And that is always the issue. You know, the valid

nonconforming use is a valid nonconforming use no matter whether you add in new

conditions or not.

Ms. Yukimura: But we are talking about who determines what is a valid

nonconforming use?

Mr. Chun: Right, and I believe that the amendments suggested by

Councilman Kouchi would address that properly.

Ms. Yukimura: But if the County can.., the County has the authority to

clarify ag use, then the Council has the authority arguably to give guidance to the

Planning Department in doing that.

Mr. Chun: And that is where I would disagree. If the Council amendments
tried to add in additional conditions as to what a nonconforming use that is not
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. .
provided in 205 and I think I said that at the last time I testified and that would be
improper. In other words, you probably said, the Planning Department, when
deciding an application or the use of nonconforming use should follow the guidance
in 205, that is fine because that is already in there, the owner had notice of that is
what is required of him and he is going to have to present evidence that he filed
205-4. Now if you go beyond that and (inaudible) to 205, you have to meet these
other criteria, that is where...

Ms. Yukimura: You just said that the Council has the obligation to clarify
ag use and Mr. Ching...

Mr. Chun: For future use and not for past use.

Ms. Yukimura: And Mr. Ching... well, this is a future use in terms of a
special permit, so that is okay.

Mr. Chun: No, I said that the last time. The special permit is inconsistent
with the nonconforming use.

Ms. Yukimura: I don’t understand.

Mr. Chun: You cannot say, well, you are nonconforming use, but you still
have to get a special use permit. If you are nonconforming, they are not required to
get...

Ms. Yukimura: No, it says, you are only a nonconforming use if you get a
special use permit.

Mr. Chun: Right, and that is why I think that part of the proposed
amendment would violate the grandfathering provision under 205 because you
cannot say you are grandfathered and in addition to grandfather, you have to do
something else.

Ms. Yukimura: It is an amnesty provision to allow people who didn’t
know that they were illegal to show that they could be illegal with a use permit.

Mr. Chun: But there is no use to having amnesty if they are grandfathered.

Ms. Yukimura: But they are not grandfathered.

Mr. Chun: We are going around in circles.

Mr. Rapozo: Can I ask a quick question?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, well, let me just finish this then.
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. .
Mr. Rapozo: Okay, if you are going to finish it, then I am not going to ask the

question. I just was wondering if you are trying to convince Mr. Chun to change his

position, I don’t think it is going to work.

Ms. Yukimura: I am not trying to convince...

Mr. Rapozo: Well, it sounds like we are having a debate between you and him

and I think I have heard his position several times and, you know, we have a lot of

people here and we are ready to roll, thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Alright, thank you for that, then, because Mr. Ching has

told me that the County can clarify ag use as long as it is consistent with State law

in promoting agriculture and can be stricter.

Mr. Chun: I would disagree with Mr. Ching on that.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, alright.

Mr. Chun: Respectfully.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, okay, thank you.

Mr. Chun: Thank you Madam Chair and thank you members of the

Council. Sorry for the debate.

Ms. Yukimura: Oh, it is not your fault. Is there anyone else who wishes to

testify? Ms. Elmore, you may come forward. This is your third sequence of three (3)
minutes.

Ms. Elmore: The reason I wanted to come back is because I’ve followed

this Chris Mann case at the Planning Commission very closely. In Mr. Ching’s

letter, the last page, his paragraph number 8, he says, condition number 11(a)
would seem to require both the executive officer of the LUC and the Commission to

review and comment on this application and he is referring there to the Land Use
Commission I believe. Mr. Chun’s law partner went to the Planning Commission

and convinced them that they didn’t need both and that all they needed was this

letter from Mr. Ching. And there is another thing in here that is misleading on

paragraph 5 on page 3 says, the Kaua’i County Planning Department staff report
notes that SMA permit condition number 10 required “agricultural activity to be
established.” What it doesn’t say here... the staff report is misleading because this

Mann residence was to be the second residence, an ADU, and what he brought to
the Commission was proof that the first owner of the first dwelling was conducting

(inaudible). If you read this, it makes it appear that the Chris Mann was doing
that and that he qualified because of this established (inaudible), but the last

sentence in that paragraph says that the applicant intends to convert some of the

pasture area to commercial avocado production which makes it, again, sound that
this is all one piece of land that he is already doing this one agricultural activity
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. .
and now he is going to add some avocados. If someone just read this without
following this closely, it would appear, oh, sure, he is qualified. He’s got this ag
business going, but he doesn’t. He hasn’t even moved to the island yet. He lives in
Orange County, California, so there is a lot of things that you just can’t take its face
value and I just wanted to point that out.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you very much. Any questions? Alright, Mr. Parks
and I would ask that you just control your volume of voice please.

Mr. Parks: First of all, let me say that I think it is disgusting having the
Board of Realtors writing the legislation. It is like (inaudible) and maybe this is
what goes on in every legislative level, but I would like to say that in regard to the
executive session on this matter, I would like to re... you suggested that we contact
the OIP. We have and they have made a ruling and they say that this session this
morning.., you had this letter in your possession on the 9th and still went into
executive session this morning. The letter says, Section 92-71 of the State law, HRS,
explicitly states that to the extent that a County, by its Charter, provides, “more
stringent requirements related to mandating the openness of meetings, the more
stringent provision shall apply, 92-71.” Accordingly, to the extent that Section
3.07(e) of the County Charter (that is not in here) requires greater openness of a
meeting of the Kaua’i County Council, that provision would apply instead of the
sunshine laws executive meetings provision. You mentioned that there might be
some State or Federal law that allows you do this. If there was, you have to put it
in the reasons. You have to put it explicitly according to the sunshine law in the
reasons for going in. The only reason you stated was 92-5(a)(4), to consult your
attorney. This thing further goes on to say that if you have a way of claiming that
somehow the provision in the Charter requires less openness even though the plain
reading says, it is limited to claims alone.., one part that should have been taken
out in the last Charter Commission, but they didn’t about interviewees.., you have
already ruled downs and claims are very well defined in the Charter. Claims have
their own section and we know what a claim is. It is there on your agenda every
Council meeting, the claims that are filed under section so and so. Right now, you
are at a constitutional crisis. This is really bad. The only time you are allowed to
go into executive session now is for a claim. It is debatable whether that even means
a lawsuit because if a lawsuit was filed without filing a claim with the official
process through the County Clerk, that may not hold. Normally, I would be a little
upset that the County government was in this kind of crisis, but due to the abuses
of this section, 92-5(a)(4) especially, I am not so sure I am... you know, really
concerned.., maybe not being able to go into executive session at all is the best thing
that ever happened around here because you are doing it for public policy. There is
no way in the world.., how are we supposed to know... you just had the Board of
Realtors lawyer sit up here and tell you all this stuff. How is the public supposed to
know what you are thinking, what the political ramifications, what the public policy
ramifications are if you are receiving all of that talk... this whole... in executive
session. This whole bill is about the legal aspect. You can’t claim that under your
powers is one to legislate. That would mean that you could go into executive session
for any reason as long as you are legislating. That is obviously not the intent. That
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would be purely absurd and no judge in the world would rule that.

Ms. Yukimura: Can you please summarize?

Mr. Parks: I will try to. I would like the minutes now. According to this, I

am entitled to the minutes and the transcripts and even the tapes of all the

executive sessions that have occurred under 2204. I am going over to the Clerk’s

Office right now and fill out a formal request, but I am letting you know that I

expect them by the end of business today although you do have 10 days and I am

sure that you will take them to respond to that. I don’t understand because Glenn

came in here a full month ago, four (4) weeks ago today with...

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Parks: Can I just finish? He came in here four (4) weeks ago today

reading these sections. The letter from OIP has been in your possession for a week

and, yet, you are still going to go, oh, we are going to take it under advisement and

will never say anything until we hear from our lawyer. Again, we are back in the

black hole here. Public policy being disguised as consulting with your lawyer,

something that I have heard people... I’ve heard you say, Kaipo, you don’t care if it

is illegal, you have always done it and you are going to keep doing it.

Chair Asing: That is not what I said. Don’t put words into my mouth.

Mr. Parks: You told me that the day you were in the court room for the

OIP...

iVir. Rapozo: Point of order.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

Mr. Parks: Maybe you don’t remember them.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you Mr. Parks. Is there anyone else who wishes to

testify? If not, the meeting will come back to order.

The meeting was called back to order, and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: The Chair will suggest that we go page by page on the

amendments proposed.

Mr. Furfaro: Chair, we don’t have a quorum at the table and I am one

of your Committee members and I need to take a break, so may we have five (5)

minutes.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, of course. Well, let’s see, when do we need a caption

break? How long have we been going?
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Mr. Rapozo: If you are going to take a five (5) minute break Madam

Chair, I would recommend a 10 minute caption break, and then we can get it all
done and start fresh.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, that is a good idea, so we are taking a 10 minute
caption break please.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 2:58 p.m.

The meeting was called back to order at 3:14 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: The Planning Commission comes back to order please. I
had asked to have Mr. Costa back and I don’t know where he is, but we are looking
for him. Can the staff please call the Mayor’s Office? In the meantime, I’d like to go
over the amendments on the floor amendment that was circulated under my name
and see if there is problems with it. At that point, I am sorry. Oh, okay, thank you.
Okay, Mr. Costa is coming. Thank you, so we will just wait. Until he comes here, I
just want to say that once we are through with some questions for the Planning
Director, I will... if there are no objections, go page by page and see what we have
consensus on and what we don’t and if we can come to some consensus on any
amendments to this proposed amendment, then I will make the changes and we can
act on it. We still haven’t received any copy of the amendments from
Councilmember Rapozo or Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho. I am not sure what the
hang up is, but if we don’t have it by the time we are ready to vote, we may just
have to consider it on the floor of the Council.

Mr. Kouchi: And I caught a typo in my amendment, so I am trying to have
that corrected as well.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so Mr. Costa...

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

Ms. Yukimura: If we can have Mr. Costa please.

IAN COSTA, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING: Good afternoon, Ian Costa,
Planning Director.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you for being here. As you’ve been following the
conversation on this bill, you have seen that there is a lot of unclarity about the
status of vacation rentals on agricultural land. So I wanted to ask whether it is the
position of the Planning Department that vacation rentals on ag lands are not
permitted.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I have a question.
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Ms. Yukimura: Sure.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: You know, I don’t know what the relevance of the

Planning Director giving a legal interpretation of a section. I mean, it is a County

Attorney question, it is not a question for...

Ms. Yukimura: I am not asking the Planning Director for a legal opinion.

I am asking the Planning Director for the Planning Department’s position which

may be based on a legal opinion, but I am not asking for a legal opinion. I am just

asking how are you dealing with vacation rentals right now on ag land. What is

your position?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Excuse me, again, I mean, depending upon what

he says, I mean, you know, I would think that if there is an opinion from the County

Attorney either way, you know, it shouldn’t be one that should be answered here.

What if that exposes us to more liability if you feel that it is against the law or

whatever law?

Ms. Yukimura: Well, I am trying to understand how the law will be

administered, what the Planning Department’s position is because they administer

the Planning laws and they need to have a position right now. I mean, after all,

they should be enforcing the laws right now.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I think that if...

Ms. Yukimura: I am not asking you for a prospective, I am asking you

for.., what is... you, as the head of the Planning Department who is responsible for

enforcement of the planning laws, what is your position right now? I mean, because

if it is not illegal, then you are not, you know, taking any action. If it is illegal, then

you are taking some enforcement action or there is a farm dwelling agreement. So I

am just wondering... I think it is a very legitimate question to know what is the

Planning Department’s position with respect to this law?

Mr. Costa: I guess for a formal response, I would need some time to give

you that, but I would tell you that based on the comprehensive zoning ordinance,

what is a permitted use that may be involved in that question is a farm dwelling.

Ms. Yukimura: Is a vacation rental a farm dwelling?

Mr. Costa: Listed as a permitted use and I would leave it at that.

Ms. Yukimura: A vacation rental is not listed as a permitted use?

Mr. Costa: What is listed is a farm dwelling.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.
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Mr. Costa: So as long as you comply with the requirements of a farm

dwelling, that is a permitted use.

Ms. Yukimura: And the definition of the farm dwelling is as defined in
State law.

Mr. Costa: Both in State law and also in the CZO.

Ms. Yukimura: Is there another definition of farm dwelling other than
State law?

Mr. Costa: It stems from the State law definition.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so the State law says, farm dwellings, employee
housing, farm buildings or activities or uses related to farming and animal
husbandry. Farm dwelling as used in this paragraph means a single family
dwelling located on and used in connection with a farm including clusters of single
family farm dwellings permitted within ag parks developed by the State or where
agricultural activity provides income to the family occupying the dwelling. So that
is basically the definition (change tape). Are there any other questions of
Mr. Costa? Thank you very much.

So we are back to the bill, the amendments that have been circulated by
myself and if there are no objections, we will go page by page and see if there are
any questions or concerns. So if we may start, page 1, page 2, page 3... I think
Councilmember Bynum on page 3.

Mr. Bynum: On page 3, the definition of bed and breakfast as I have
stated in the past, my preference would be that the definition would include a unit
that may not be in the same building, but is on the same premises. I am not sure
exactly how that would be worded, but, right now, it says, within the same dwelling
unit, might say, located on the same property. So that is just my 2 cents at this
time and I would like the definition to include a unit that is on the same property,
but may not be on the same unit/building.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, thank you and I know Councilmember Rapozo,
even though you may not have your amendment ready, you had concerns that
perhaps you could raise now, so that people can hear.

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you for allowing me. You know, I apologize and
you brought it to my attention that I forgot the most important thing that was of
concern for me. Let me just read what my amendment says here, and I have been
trying to research the original definition that I had suggested. A bed and breakfast,
a private owner, owner/occupied residence with one to three (3) guest rooms, the bed
and breakfast home stay is subordinate with incidental.., and incidental to the
main residential use of the building. Individual guest are prohibited from staying
at a particular bed and breakfast establishment for more than 14 days in a one year
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period. What I need to add in is the fact that they need to provide a meal. A meal

for the residents and I did find the administrative rule from the Department of

Health and the reason the Department of Health... let me just read the... their

exemption for the food establishment what requires a certified kitchen or a food

permit, the food establishment under the definition of the Department of Health

does not include under (2)(e), a kitchen in a private home such as a small family

care provider or a bed and breakfast operation that prepares and offers only non-

potentially hazardous food to guests if the home is owner occupied and that is what

sets them apart from any type of other accommodation. To get away from requiring

a food establishment permit, the residence has to be owner occupied. So in my

opinion, if we are going to do a bed and breakfast, then the breakfast is key, that

component is important and it needs to be owner occupied to qualifr for the

exemption from the Department of Health and that is what I am trying to get

prepared right now.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so...

Mr. Rapozo: So if we could have some discussion as far as what I heard

Mr. Bynum had suggested, but I am curious to hear what the rest as far as bed and

breakfast is concerned.

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

HARRISON KAWATE, FIRST DEPUTY COUNTY ATTORNEY: Excuse me,

I do have a question as far as procedural. Is this... and I have not been present

continuously, but is this matter... has this matter been received and seconded

before the Committee?

Ms. Yukimura: No, it hasn’t.

Mr. Kawate: If it has not, then I don’t know that it is appropriate to be

discussing details of the matter that hasn’t been received and seconded.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, we did consult with the County Clerk who said that

if we were to start a formal amendment process, then it would get complicated

because we would have to prepare things in writing and the mechanics of putting it

together would be difficult. So we agreed that we would do an informal process that

would... if we could find some consensus would then be incorporated in this all at

once, so that we would have to have many, many formal amendments, so that is

what we are doing.

Mr. Rapozo: I have a question for the attorney. Is that what you are

recommending? If we are going to start hashing out the amendment because...

Mr. Kawate: If you speak. I don’t know if it is before the Committee.
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Ms. Yukimura: It is before the Committee as a discussion item. It is not

before the Committee as an amendment.

Mr. Rapozo: I can tell you that as far as I know and I remember, it was
always moved onto the floor. It was always that way, but, again, as Councilmember
Yukimura stated, the Clerk did say and I don’t know how much latitude he gave the
Committee. I think, in general, now if we are going to go page by page, I would
definitely comply with your recommendation Mr. Attorney and if that is what you
are saying, then I would... I have no problem. It does make extra work, but if that
is the process and I think that is the process that we have followed since I have
been here five (5) years.

Mr. Kawate: Maybe we need a clarification from the Clerk because I
didn’t believe that is what he opined. I believe he opined that you can amend an
amendment and that...

Mr. Rapozo: But you cannot amend that amendment that hasn’t been
introduced is what he said.

Mr. Kawate: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: And we are not trying to amend an amendment that
hasn’t been introduced. We are not formally trying to amend it.

Mr. Kawate: I am just advising that perhaps you need a further
clarification from the Clerk to determine whether or not it is appropriate to be
discussing particulars of a proposed amendment that is not/has not been accepted
bythe...

Mr. Rapozo: Then let’s just do this. Let’s just move it onto the table
and save all issues.

Mr. Kawate: It would be my suggestion initially to get an opinion,
further opinion, clarification from the Clerk.

Mr. Rapozo: I think he made it clear that you cannot amend an
amendment without it being moved, but I guess it is your call Madam Chair. I can
tell you that I would feel more comfortable if it was on the floor as an amendment.

Ms. Yukimura: The bill is on the floor right now.

Mr. Rapozo: Correct, and that is the only thing on the floor.

Ms. Yukimura: And the reason I am recommending this process is I think
it will be logistically much easier because every time we want to make change to
this proposed amendment, we are going to have to wait to have it put in writing
and, instead, if we can just go page by page, then we can put in all the ones that we
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have consensus on, pass this one because they have many small amendments as

well big ones... because I would introduce it only where there is total consensus and

then we would make any amendments thereafter which requires separate votes. I

am really thinking about how to make this thing go fast because otherwise we could

be here all night.

Chair Asing: I don’t think we should go fast. I think we should do it

right.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Follow the process.

Chair Asing: I mean, my concern is doing it right.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Really.

Chair Asing: I don’t want to get into any problems.

Councilmember Furfaro moved to approve Bill No. 2204, seconded by

Councilmember Rapozo, and unanimously carried.

Councilmember Furfaro moved to amend Bill No. 2204 as shown in the

attached floor amendment (by Councilmember Yukimura dated August 6,

2007), seconded by Councilmember Rapozo.

Ms. Yukimura: Now the floor is open for discussion. I recommend that we

take up the discussion page by page. We are on page 3 unless there are any

discussion on pages 1 and 2. If not, we were talking about bed and breakfast

operations. Councilmember Bynum has suggested preference for defining them

as... on the same lot rather than in the same dwelling where the owner lives.

Councilmember Rapozo has suggested a definition which... and, you know,

Councilmember Rapozo, if you are going to amend it, then you have to make a

motion in writing to amend this amendment.

Mr. Rapozo: And this is exactly what is going to happen. See, my

amendment is... because we can only work amendment off of the bill.

Ms. Yukimura: That is not true. We can amend the amendments.

Mr. Rapozo: Prior to a few minutes ago, a few seconds ago, my

amendment is based on the bill.

Ms. Yukimura: But it can be changed very easily to amend the

amendment.

Mr. Rapozo: I understand, but what I am saying is the written draft that I

have is an amendment to the original bill.
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Ms. Yukimura: Well, you can change the written amendment, but we...

otherwise, we have the problem that Mr. Kouchi has raised where the... you know,
you have to amend the bill and then amend the...

Mr. Rapozo: Councilmember Yukimura, why don’t we have the
discussion on the content of the amendments.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Do yours.

Ms. Yukimura: That is what we are doing.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, so you heard my discussion and I am curious to
hear how the rest of the Councilmembers feel.

Ms. Yukimura: But we can’t even read it. We don’t have it in writing
before us.

Mr. Rapozo: We are having discussion because if, in fact, I don’t have
the support of owner/occupant and a kitchen and a meal...

Ms. Yukimura: So let us see the wording because there were 14 days as
well, I mean, we need to have it in front of us, that is the whole principle, so can
we... that is my point, that is why I was trying to do it informally and there is in
Roberts Rules...

Mr. Rapozo: I am asking that we do it informally by discussion. Okay,
right now, if we can just...

Ms. Yukimura: But nobody has it in front of them.

Mr. Bynum: I understand.

Mr. Rapozo: You understood what I am saying. I think there is some
major conflict between mine and Mr. Bynum. It is real simple. He saying that the
owner doesn’t have to be on property, let’s start with that. How many people feel
that it should be on property? The owner should be an owner.

Mr. Bynum: And this one says lessee, so I want to know...

Ms. Yukimura: Excuse me, but we are violating the rules of...

Mr. Rapozo: We are in discussion.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, alright, I will try this process. Go ahead.

Mr. Kouchi: I am just going to give my 2 cents and only my 2 cents. I
do believe that Roberts Rules clarifies where the Council rules or other rules are in
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absence. I, for one, found it to be very onerous, but I believe that it generated out of

amending the budget that we had an OIP rule that said that for an amendment to

be considered, it needs to be in writing because not only is it for us to discuss, but it

needs to be made available for anyone who is in attendance from the public, so that

they can look at the amendment and understand what we are potentially trying to

do. Well, you know, you can amend an amendment and all of that, absent an

amendment which is what I’ve heard the Chair saying, you know, I don’t think that

we can get into the discussion on this bed and breakfast issue. I think that because

your list of amendments are a circulated written document available to the public, if

we go down your document and limit the discussion to the amendments contained

herein for the time being, that we would be perfectly within the parameter of the

law to discuss this. We have a motion, we have it rendered to writing and then

maybe when we are done with this, Mr. Rapozo’s would be in writing, maybe my

correction would be in writing, but I do believe that we need to have it in some form

of writing whether it conforms to this or it is in the more friendly fashion of should

it be adopted. You know, I am not going to argue that point.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, and that is why I felt an informal discussion first

before there was a formal amendment would allow us to even look at things without

this requirement or have the discussion, but, you need to find a way to make this a

workable discussion.

Mr. Rapozo: And I guess the problem is because we are working off of

an amendment... well, now it has been passed, but...

Ms. Yukimura: It hasn’t yet been passed. It has just been introduced.

Mr. Rapozo: Right, okay, I am sorry.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Yes, not passed.

Mr. Rapozo: That, in fact, the baseline is the amendment as opposed to

the bill, so...

Ms. Yukimura: And that is why you have the motion to amend an

amendment and that is what gives it the orderly process.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, then I would ask you Madam Chair to go onto the

next one and I will go prepare... I will personally walk in the back and prepare my

amendment and have it prepared in about... I don’t want to take a recess because it

just takes too much time.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, may I suggest this format then? It is easier.

Mr. Rapozo: What format?
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay, Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: Isn’t it fun when we get off into process. I mean, I
thought we had... now we decided we needed... JoAnn was saying, let’s have an
informal discussion, now we have it introduced, so I don’t know why we can’t have a
discussion. I am interested in Councilmember Rapozo’s opinion and I would like to
share mine about this amendment which includes a definition of bed and breakfast
and then after we have that discussion, any member could introduce whatever they
like.

Ms. Yukimura: Alright, go right ahead.

Mr. Bynum: And so do we need him to do it in writing before we can...
because I thought we met the procedural concern by putting this amendment on the
table by having it moved and seconded and now we are in discussion and part of
this is a definition of bed and breakfast which...

Ms. Yukimura: Let’s give that a try. Please go ahead.

Mr. Bynum: Does that work?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Well, I, then, will walk out because it was very
clear from Councilmember Kouchi that he received an OIP opinion as to what was
needed. I believe that that is accurate, thus, if you guys want to continue your
meeting improperly in my opinion, then you go ahead, but I am not going to be a
party to it.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, okay, see, I was trying to avoid all of this with an
informal discussion, but since we have chosen to go the formal route, then if there
is... let’s have a discussion on whatever people want to discuss about page 3 and if
someone then wants to propose an amendment afterwards, we will. So Mr. Bynum,
would you like to...

Mr. Bynum: I think at this point, I would like to get clarification about
Councilmember Kouchi’s position.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, I think, you know, okay, I am sorry. You asked for
Councilmember Kouchi’s opinion and I have interrupted. Let me just say here that
I think... I was the one who raised the issue about a written amendment and we
don’t have any written amendment before us, but we have that comes from
Councilmember Rapozo, but we do have this amendment that comes from me and
we can discuss this, so let us discuss it. Councilmember Kouchi, do you want to say
anything more?

Mr. Kouchi: No, I believe that that is accurate. I guess the only issue I raise
is when I go from... I’ve read the language on page 3, I disagree with the language
on page 3 and how I would like to amend it, now give me the paper. But as far as
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looking at this, does everybody agree with it or not, yes or no? You know...

Ms. Yukimura: Or why they don’t agree, why they do?

Mr. Kouchi: But the moment you want to change it...

Mr. Furfaro: Put it in writing.

Mr. Bynum: And for my part, I just want to have an open discussion. I
am not the person to ask about procedure, you know, I would defer to the people
who have been here a lot longer or the attorney, but it seems to me that if we put it
in the floor, now we can discuss it. I am saying, I’d like the definition to include
someone who is living on the same property and I am curious about Councilmember
Rapozo’s opinion.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, would you like to tell us why you want it on the
same property?

Mr. Bynum: Yes, I believe that there are certainly circumstances... in
the intent of this and where B&B’s have gone is that they are accommodations
where the owner or lessee... a person who lives there that is the host is present, you
know, on the property as a host of these individuals that might be in the same room
or it might be in the same.., in a room that is on the same lot and I think if we limit
it to the same building that we may limit people beyond what is our intent. I am
curious about Councilmember Rapozo’s desire to have food requirement and I don’t
have a strong feeling about that, but I just think there are many B&B’s that, you
know, are hosting people in rooms where the owner or lessee is on the same
property and may no longer be serving food. You know, but I am interested in
Councilmember Rapozo’s opinion, but I just put this out there because I think there
are circumstances where there is someone in a room that happens to be in a
building that is right next to or on the same lot and I would like them to allow them
to have that as a B&B room. And if people don’t agree with that, okay, I won’t put
it up there.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, any other discussion? Councilmember Kouchi?

Mr. Kouchi: I just would briefly say that I like the definition that is
currently contained because it is bed and the inference is that it is the bed within
the unit that the owner resides in that was the original marketing concept and I
think this more clearly articulates what was the genesis for this to occur.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. Any other discussion? Council Chair?

Chair Asing: Yes, as a non-member, I have some concerns with the 30
days or less. What was the rationale behind that and I will tell you my reason for
it.
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Ms. Yukimura: Please.

Chair Asing: And my reasons for it is not tied to the bed and breakfast,
it is tied to the transient areas and I had staff do a survey and in the survey that we
conducted, the transient accommodations vacation rentals that we called, the staff
called, exceeded 30 days. Ernie, 95% of the time or 100% of the time? Anyway, very
high number, so, you know, my question is, you know, this timeframe of the 30 days
or less, where did it come from? I don’t understand that because, you know, you
vacation rent for a month and a half, you bed and breakfast.., supposing you want
to do five (5) weeks, so, you know, if you are going to put this time period in the
definition, then I don’t know that.., what are you going to call the operation that is
more than 30 days? Is that another definition for another type of operations?

Ms. Yukimura: That is a very good question and those questions were
what led me first to put in 180 days and align it with the vacation.., the transient
accommodation tax which uses the 180 day interval. The reason I went back to 30
days and it was partly from testimony was that the thought that as long as they did
it for 30 days, they became a vacation rental and they could do it for more, but they
were a vacation rental and I am sure that almost every vacation rental and we
could ask Ms. Kawaihalau who manages the largest vacation rental business on
Kaua’i (Vacation Rental Management Company on Kaua’i) what the lay of the land
is. But I figured we’d probably catch everybody because everybody does do rentals
under 30 days and that would put them into the definition of a transient vacation
rental.

Chair Asing: And I understand that, but the question is going to arise,
what if someone wants to do it for five (5) weeks?

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

Chair Asing: What do you do now? What do you call that operation? It
is no longer defined in the bed and breakfast, it is no longer defined in the transient
area, so there is no definition for this other animal that is out there.

Ms. Yukimura: You are right and I am thinking especially in enforcement
if you are enforcing with evidence from something that is greater than 30 days, they
could use that as a technical excuse. Ms. Kawaihalau, do you want to say anything?
Why don’t you come forward and we can ask some questions?

Chair Asing: I don’t think it need to be answered.

Mr. Rapozo: It is not for her.

Ms. Yukimura: Alright. I am okay. I think I am okay with 180 days.

Mr. Rapozo: Well, I am not and let me just explain why.
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Ms. Yukimura: Well, let’s hear it.

Mr. Rapozo: We are taking the bed and breakfast and if you folks want
to do something for a period of a month and a half, then let’s set another category.
Let’s call it whatever you want, an Inn, a home stay, a hotellmotel, but I think if
you look at... and I tell you why I talked about the breakfast. I know Mr. Bynum
was questioning about the breakfast and if you look in the dictionary any... just
type in bed and breakfast in Google and define, which is what I did, and I haven’t
found one yet that classifies a bed and breakfast. I am not talking about legislation
in other jurisdictions, I am talking about what is the true intent. If it doesn’t have a
breakfast, you cannot call it a bed and breakfast, I mean why would you?

Ms. Yukimura: It is a term of art that has evolved because the breakfast
are becoming less and less frequent.

Mr. Rapozo: You asked me for my opinion and I am giving you my
opinion.

Ms. Yukimura: No, and I think it is a legitimate opinion and what I
suggested was home stay operation, we could use that as a different term of art
because if you require a breakfast, then it becomes a crazy thing to try to enforce
whether a breakfast was served or not, so we could just call it a homestay.

Mr. Rapozo: Every law we have is crazy to enforce if you don’t have
enforcement.

Ms. Yukimura: But we are trying to do it with the clearest.

Mr. Rapozo: But JoAnn...

Mr. Kouchi: Just a point of order.

Mr. Rapozo: Sure.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, go ahead.

Mr. Kouchi: Since we seem to be spending an inordinate time on this,
did we go through page 2 already?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes.

Mr. Kouchi: The last sentence on page 2 says that this bill does not
apply to bed and breakfast operations. It is the intention of the Council to address
bed and breakfast units as a separate matter and if that is going to be already
accepted because nobody raised objections, then, we, my definition of this bill aren’t
going to be addressing bed and breakfast until later.
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. .
Ms. Yukimura: But we are defining it, so that we can distinguish it from

single family vacation rentals, so that we are clear about what we are regulating
and what we are not regulating. That is the only place that bed and breakfast is
mentioned is in the definition section, so that we can be real clear about the
distinction between the two (2) and that is why the definition of bed and breakfast
was pretty lean. It didn’t talk about how many rooms and so forth. It basically
tried to show that it is a transient accommodation and be consistent with the single
family transient accommodation, you know, 30 days and then the distinction was
that it is in the same house or on the same property whichever we should decide
and that is all that we were trying to do.

Mr. Kouchi: Okay, well, and I just want to be clear around the table
what we are trying to do and that we will be rebiting that bed and breakfast apple
from an operational standpoint.

Ms. Yukimura: We will.

Mr. Rapozo: And the Chair and I had this discussion before the
meeting and my position is that whatever definition we use for this section, this
should carry over to the next one when we do talk about bed and breakfast. And I
understand where you are going that you need this for the... to differentiate and I
agree with that, but this definition that we define here needs to be consistent with
the definition that we use when we do address the bed and breakfast.

Ms. Yukimura: And, so if bed and breakfast is such a... create such a
hang up for us, I would recommend home stay operation means a use of a portion of
a single family detached dwelling unit which overnight accommodations are
provided to transient guests for compensation. Now, then the other portion of this
definition is the one that the Chair has raised and I want to just finish that
conversation if people would agree. If we go back to the 180 days, that pretty much
covers what I think are most stays versus, you know, one year rental agreements
and so forth, so 180 days and it does incorporate the 30 day ones. I mean, and you
don’t want to make too many definitions because then the Administration and
regulation of the law becomes kind of crazy. So basically you are saying whether it
is home stay or a single family vacation rental, that it would be anything that rents
out to a transient and we define transient for a period of... for a duration of
occupancy of a 180 days or less and that would embrace the less than 30 day people
as well. We go back to the original. Would that work for you Chair?

Chair Asing: I guess so. I just wonder about the 180 day to... only
because we have heard from some of the testimony that people could use the, you
know, the premises, go to the mainland and lease the house for a long period of
time, and the long period could exceed 180 days, so I don’t know.

Ms. Yukimura: But you don’t want to really cover those people as
vacation rentals if that is the only thing they do and that, I think, was Mr. Pleas’
point that people might just do it once ad hock or regularly, but they are not using it
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. .
as a constant vacation rental. And that is why we actually went back, I am
remembering now to 30 days or less, but if 30 days doesn’t work and 180 days
doesn’t work, then someone else tell me what works. The thing... Okay,
Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: I think this 30 day definition right here is like the way
transient vacation rentals are defined all over the place and it is clear to me that
that would include a rental of, you know.., that if any rental was less than 30 days,
then it is a transient vacation rental. Some rentals may be more than 30 days, it
might be three (3) months or four (4) months, but it is still the definition. So the 30
days works for me and the 180 doesn’t because I don’t think.., what the Chair said
that there are people who go away for four (4) months and they want to rent their
home to one renter for a four (4) month period while they are away and I don’t think
that is transient vacation rental or has the impact on the community. So the 30
days is pretty standard and I suppose it could say, for.., when any one rental is less
than 30 days, but I think...

Ms. Yukimura: That is correct, then you would get them even if they are
longer, but if they do do it also for 30 days, you would get them.

Chair Asing: So if they do it more than 30 days, it is not a transient?

Ms. Yukimura: If they do it more than 30 days every time they rent it out,
but once they rent it out for less than 30 days, then they become a transient
vacation rental if we word it that way, then they may also do it for longer, but it
would not include those that do it for longer for other than vacation rental purposes.

Chair Asing: Well, the only reason for my question on the 30 days
was... by the way, I just got this note. The note says 100%. I say 95% maybe of the
calls that we have made and these are calling vacation rentals.

Mr. Bynum: 100%, what Chair?

Chair Asing: Of the calls that we have made indicated that they will
rent more than 30 days.

Mr. Bynum: Sure they will, but they may also rent less than 30 days.

Chair Asing: Well, that is not the point. The point that I am trying to
make is that you are putting in the definition of less than 30 days and my question
to you is if you rent for five (5) weeks, you are not a vacation renter and that is the
point that I am trying to make.

Ms. Yukimura: If you rent only for greater than 30 days, then are you not
a vacation rental, right?
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. .
Chair Asing: Well, you are making rules and regulations and policies

and if the definition is such that it exceeds the 30 days, then these rules don’t apply
for that period of time for that unit then because the guy can say, hey, I rented out
for five (5) weeks, so these rules don’t apply.

Ms. Yukimura: Depends if you...

Chair Asing: Well, all I am saying is that, you know, I have some
difficulty knowing that.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, Councilmember Rapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: And that is why... if it is evolved, then it is no longer a
bed and breakfast. In the bed and breakfast, if you look at my... it is being typed up
right now, it is owner occupied meaning that the owner cannot leave the residence
when the guest are there. So if they go away for four (4) months, five (5) months,
six (6) months, they cannot bed and breakfast the house, you know, and I think that
is...

Ms. Yukimura: Well, it depends how you define owner occupancy.

Mr. Rapozo: I am saying in the original definition.., the original intent
of bed and breakfasts were to offer these tourists the opportunity to live in a home
that is being... with the people in the house and they get to share the culture and so
forth and not for two (2) or three (3) or four (4) months in time. It is a transient
accommodation, so I think it is important that, like I said, if we are going to get
away from that bed and breakfast and evolve it to something new, then let’s evolve
it, but let’s call it something else. I think you have to have that components to
make it a bed and breakfast.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so we... I think no one disagrees with the
owner/occupant idea and we will change the name to home stay, but I think we are
still.., we are still talking about a definition for what is a transient vacation rental.
Councilmember Bynum has...

Mr. Rapozo: I thought we were on bed and breakfast.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, if bed and breakfast is a...

Mr. Rapozo: Aren’t you still on page 3?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, we are.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay.

Ms. Yukimura: But they are all related. Transient vacation rental is on
page 3 at the bottom.
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Mr. Rapozo: Right, but...

Ms. Yukimura: And the 30 days is also there. We are going to be
consistent I think, so what Councilmember Bynum, I think was recommending that
if any one instance, there is a 30 day or less rental, that makes them a... it covers
them in these definitions and that kind of operation would not be allowed outside...
I mean, this law would apply. They would not be allowed outside of VDA areas

except as grandfathered or as... defined as nonconformed... as qualified as
nonconforming, so if we adjust the definition that way, I guess the question is
whether it works or whether you want to do a 60 days, less than 60 days, we could

do that as a working rule. Any... Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: What we added one word where it said single family
detached dwelling unit in which any overnight accommodations are provided to
transient guest for compensation for 30 days or less. And then under the definition

for transient vacation rentals at the bottom of 3, it would say, related by blood with
any duration of occupancy, 30 days or less.., changes the word “the” to “any”.

Ms. Yukimura: That sounds like it might work. Any other discussion?

Mr. Furfaro: You know, I mentioned this before and I think, you know,
the intent in the visitor industry, this references 30 days for any one stay. That is
really what it is. Somebody could check out on the 30th day and return on his next
visit or so forth, but it is intended during any one stay or for someone who extends
their stay, they just would re-register and re-check in. I think Mel makes a very

good point. If you are not going to call it bed and breakfast without breakfast, you
may as well call it bed and lunch with no lunch. I mean, you know, it is a piece and
it doesn’t have to be a cook prepared meal. It can be a continental service with
fruit, coffee, toast, Danish, and yet when people book that, they understand the
concept of bed and breakfast. You need to imply that a meal should be served and I
really think that is important, so...

Ms. Yukimura: Councilmember Furfaro, are you thinking that
Councilmember Bynum suggestion would make it work?

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, it may.

Mr. Rapozo: But it doesn’t have the food.

Mr. Furfaro: I want to say that you need to add the food.

Ms. Yukimura: And let’s go to that issue now and you are also saying that
we should stay with the bed and breakfast operation terminology?

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, that is what people know and that is what people
expect.
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Ms. Yukimura: And you would like to include.., the problem is, we are

doing a law here, and so if it does... if they don’t provide food, does that make it not
a bed and breakfast operation?

Mr. Rapozo: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: So they could say, well, because I am not providing food, I
am not a bed and breakfast, so I am not covered by this law or...

Mr. Rapozo: Then they cannot have accommodations.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so what if we just say, may or may not provide food.

Mr. Rapozo: No. Well, if you want my support, put the food and I can
deal with Mr. Bynum’s amendment (the one that he just talked about), but the food
needs to be there or you call it something else. Now if you call it something else, I
have concerns because the title no longer.., you are talking about a significant
change because the title of this bill is TVR’s and bed and breakfast, so if you want to
go change it, it is going to affect that, so...

Ms. Yukimura: So unless there are any objections, we are going to stay
with the bed and breakfast terminology, add in some reference to food, and go for
any overnight accommodations less than 30 days would pull them into the
definition.

Mr. Furfaro: And I assume at some point, we are going to break and
these changes are going to be put in writing.

Ms. Yukimura: That is correct and may I get a sense of whether people
want to use the same dwelling unit or the same property?

Mr. Rapozo: For them to qualify for the DOH exemption, they are
going to be required to have owner occupancy. I think you need the owner
occupancy to keep the bed and breakfast culture and that is just my opinion. You
know, I think you... like I said, the amendment now, you are going to have to
redraft that amendment to incorporate all the provisions, but...

Ms. Yukimura: I am aware of someone staying in a bed and breakfast
where there was absolutely no interaction with the owner and I think that would be
even more so if it is a separate building, so I am inclined to say that it is something
is in the... under the same roof. Any other thoughts about that?

Mr. Furfaro: I think the County... Deputy County Attorney wants to
share something with us.
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Mr. Kawate: I believe that the matter before the Council... Committee,

excuse me, is proposed floor amendment dated August 6, 2007 (11). What I hear
is... and I may be incorrect, so I just wanted clarification. You are not attempting to
amend this particular document by way of oral vote.

Mr. Furfaro: No, we are not. We are expecting it to be submitted in
writing.

Mr. Rapozo: As we speak, the staff is drafting the language of the
amendment that will be introduced as an amendment.

Mr. Kawate: So there is going to be an amendment to the amendment?

Mr. Furfaro: Yes.

Mr. Kawate: And then there are going to be subsequent amendments

to the amendments.

Mr. Rapozo: Fasten your seatbelts Mr. Kawate because we are in for a
ride.

Mr. Bynum: We are on a roll.

Mr. Kawate: So I just wanted to make that clarification for myself.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. Okay, anymore discussion on whether it

should be on the same roof or the same property.

Mr. Furfaro: I want to make sure that we all understand under
Section 2 and this is only for the purpose of definition that this transient vacation
item shows up as bed and breakfast only for the purpose of definitions.

Mr. Rapozo: Correct.

Mr. Furfaro: And that it would be worked on in a future bill.

Mr. Rapozo: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, the regulation of it... that is... there may be several

kinds of facilities that are under the definition of bed and breakfast and so forth,

but we will work on that later.

Mr. Kawate: Excuse me, but for purposes of the definition of a matter
that is not addressed in the bill that is entitled transient vacation rentals and bed
and breakfast, it is my understanding that if you define bed and breakfast in this
particular manner, it can be used as a definition for another use of a type of

building for whatever reason other than that. So even if you say, it is only for
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. .
purposes of defining it here, then you have defined bed and breakfast for purposes
of regulating bed and breakfasts in the County. Therefore, you need to be aware
that there are...

Mr. Furfaro: Cognizant of that, yes.

Mr. Kawate: Other matters that attend to whether or not a facility is
deemed to be a bed and breakfast which may or may not include transient
accommodation taxes, other permitting processes, etc. because this doesn’t address
other than the prior language relating to the exclusion of the bed and breakfast
from this bill which is entitled transient vacation rentals and bed and breakfast
bills. It says that it... be presently regulated through the use permit process. If it
is being presently regulated, then there may be certain matters in that regulation
process that define or are required for use of a bed and breakfast that may need to
be addressed in your definition of a bed and breakfast that is not addressed in these
particular bills.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you very much and that is why we sent this to the
Planning Department, so they can have any input that they would like to give us.
Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: So I guess to clarify the discussion and I... it would be the
desire of the other members that if someone was running a bed and breakfast
operation in a room that was in an ‘ohana unit or the room was in a room on the
detached garage, that it would not be included. Is that... that is the kind of
circumstance that I would think...

Mr. Rapozo: And that is my position.

Mr. Bynum: So it has to be in the same building.

Mr. Rapozo: Uh huh.

Mr. Bynum: So I just want to do a clarification on...

Ms. Yukimura: Any other comments about page 3? Page 4?

Mr. Furfaro: Sorry, page 3, I think Bruce Pleas brought a very good
point to us the last time when we talked about the definition.., an actual definition
of transit or transient meaning that person... I don’t have my glasses on (change
side of tape)... dwelling unit or a portion (inaudible) for 30 days or less in which the
dwelling unit is not a person’s personal primary residence under the Internal
Revenue Code, this definition shall not apply to non-paying guest which I believe
meant family and other people, but I think Bruce pointed out to us that he felt that
definition should be tightened up a bit and I just want to point that out right now.
We can go onto page 4 unless Harris wants to share something with us.
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. .
Mr. Kawate: The definition relating to transient vacation rental does

not include any reference to a multi-unit building is how the transient vacation
rentals or previous ordinance was defined...

Mr. Furfaro: Got them in trouble.

Mr. Kawate: And Act 186 defined it and that is what Puamana case
that was alluded to... previously alluded to that you may and you have the... you
have been empowered to regulate specific uses of specific designs and we choose not
to regulate a use of a specific design, then it is and it is not permitted, then it should
be permitted because of the constitutional uses of your property. So I just want to
make that clarification.

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you very much Harrison.

Ms. Yukimura: I have a question please.

Mr. Furfaro: I just wanted to say, again, I believe this is one of the
things that we should tighten up. Anyway, thank you Harris. No, the Chairwoman
had a question for you.

Ms. Yukimura: So I am not understanding the implications. What
suggestion do you have to...

Mr. Kawate: I don’t have a suggestion, I have a... I am just informing
you of the law. The law is, if you choose to single out designs and building to
regulate as was previously done in the previous law of regulating only a multi-unit
building, then you open up the door to uses of other items that are not.., or designs
of buildings that are not within your definition. So you are empowered under State
law to regulate use and design and when you start limiting the regulation of a use
of a specific design, then you exclude the ones that you don’t name.

Mr. Rapozo: I have a question here.

Ms. Yukimura: What are we excluding here?

Mr. Rapozo: I have a question.

Ms. Yukimura: Go ahead.

Mr. Rapozo: So what you are saying is, as written, if you brought a
trailer onto the property, you know, some of these trailers are beautiful today. A
trailer home without... you don’t take out the wheels and it is still a trailer, that
would... you are saying because it is not specifically stated in this definition that we
could run into some problems?
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Mr. Kawate: Right, because you have chosen to regulate the use of a

specific design.

Mr. Rapozo: Would... if we changed it to any structure?

Mr. Kawate: Or any dwelling.

Mr. Rapozo: Any dwelling?

Mr. Kawate: Of any type of nature.

Mr. Rapozo: I see, okay.

Mr. Kawate: Because you are empowered to regulate use and design.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay.

Mr. Kawate: And uses of specific designs.

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you.

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you Harris and, again, I just point that up that we
need to tighten this up, so...

Mr. Rapozo: And I would suggest the language that the County
Attorney suggested.

Ms. Yukimura: So specifically what is that?

Mr. Rapozo: Any dwelling.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, let’s make sure... can we get our definition of
dwelling please because we have a definition existing in the CZO unless we are
going to make a special use definition of dwelling here and because we need, what is
a dwelling? And so transient vacation rental and we are not talking about the
definition of transient or transients, but transient vacation rental means a single
family or a multi-family dwelling.

Mr. Rapozo: No, I think needs a dwelling.

Ms. Yukimura: You would just say, means a dwelling.

Mr. Rapozo: Of any sort.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, what does any sort mean?

Mr. Furfaro: Harris can help us.
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Mr. Kawate: I believe the particulars of how you go about enforcing or

regulating design and use of design can be done at anytime. I don’t know that at
the present time, if you choose to specifically outline those uses and designs, it
would be well thought out and would encompass all of the issues that are... that you
seek to address at this particular time; however, as long as you... since additional
amendments are going to be submitted in writing, that would give you the
opportunity at that point to address those issues. I believe the... as the... if the
Council has problems with particular language of the proposed amendment, then
the proposed amendment to the amendment can be worked on to address those
issues.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so dwelling as defined in the CZO means a building
or portion thereof designed or used exclusively for residential occupancy and having
all necessary facilities for permanent residency such as living, sleeping, cooking,
eating and sanitation. And so the proposal I am hearing is that transient vacation
rentals means a dwelling which over the course of 60 days or more is provided to
transient occupants. Okay, anymore suggestions on page 3? Oh, Councilmember
Furfaro, I wasn’t clear what you are suggesting for tightening up the definition of
transient.

Mr. Furfaro: I apologize. I do not have anything to offer. I just
remembered very clearly the dialogue we had from Bruce Pleas about making
certain and I think Harris has attempted to address that as well. I don’t have
anything to offer right now.

Ms. Yukimura: Airight, thank you. Actually, I recall Mr. Pleas
suggestion was structure which I think was too broad, but dwelling sounds good.
And then, transient, I am thinking maybe we need to put that one as 180 days or
more or less because we are doing... we are already defining... ah, let me see,
maybe we will stay at 30. Okay, page 4, any suggestions or any discussion?

Chair Asing: On the bottom of page 3, is there any reason for the
(inaudible, mike is off) unrelated by blood. Why is that (inaudible).

Ms. Yukimura: Actually, because of Councilmember Furfaro’s discussion
about cases in which families have interval ownership. They all... you know,
several brothers or siblings and we weren’t trying to... they come and they stay for
certain parts of the time and we didn’t want to cover them because they don’t seem
like a commercial use. Okay, page 4?

Mr. Rapozo: I think Councilwoman, with the recent information from
the County Attorney, you would basically remove this, I guess. Are you using this
anywhere else?

Ms. Yukimura: What is this? I don’t...
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. .
Mr. Rapozo: The single family and multi-family.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, that huge distinctions around that.

Mr. Rapozo: Thanks.

Ms. Yukimura: Anything else on page 4? Page 5? Is the Planning
Director here? Can we get him here because I hope if he has any concerns, he will
feel free to signal them. This Class I TVR permit is basically the registration, so
that we have a record of every vacation rental whether single family or multi
family. Okay, page 6? No changes... oh, page 7, there is a change. You will notice
the brackets in the middle of the pages. Page 8, page 9, page 10.

Mr. Kawate: I have not.., my office has not been consulted directly
on... relating to specific language in the (inaudible) that I have been giving the
Committee has been seriatim and there are some serious concerns with some of the
other language, but I don’t believe insofar as the amendment to the bill is going to
be amended, that it is appropriate to go and it would be unwise for our office to be
making specific recommendations as to language without having in depth
conversation and research relating to the language contained therein. So that being
said, I believe if the matter is going to be resubmitted, it might be more appropriate
that this matter be deferred and the concerns of the members be submitted in
written form or submitted to the Chair for her review and implementation or non-
implementation into a proposed amendment to the amendment. Because at this
point in time, the amendment itself shall not... is not going to come up before vote
today based on what I am have been hearing, therefore, it doesn’t make sense to go
through this particular matter without proper review and deliberate reading to
make sure that it addresses the issues of Committee, the Council and our office.
Therefore, I would submit that the better process would be that the matter be
deferred pending getting input from particular Committee members and you
already got one from Mr. Kouchi and I don’t know if he is a member or not, but
whether or not that would be applicable, and, therefore, it would be more efficient
for that to be all incorporated and there is also going to be Rapozo and Iseri
Carvalho, and you have already heard proposed changes to the language by
Councilmen Furfaro, Bynum and Asing. To go forward, I believe is not a judicious
use of time and resources, so I just wanted to raise that... inform the Committee
Chair that based on representations that I have been hearing and the fact that, we,
as our office, cannot make specific recommendations as to the language without
going over it in more detail. We would not be able to make any recommendations
with regard to specific matters contained in the amendment.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you very much. I’d like to continue to get input, so
we are on page 8. I think this has been really useful in terms of, you know, having
some dialogue which we haven’t had a whole lot on this bill.

Mr. Furfaro: Councilwoman, I am sorry, I have been a little absent
because I have been sharing a little advisory piece that just came out.
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Furfaro: Especially with people that are operators of bed and
breakfast and so forth, but one of the things I would like to ask of the County
Attorney’s Office is as we deal with... you know, when you get a TAT license, a
transient accommodation license and so forth, it is for the purpose of 180 days. I
want to be very careful that we don’t find ourselves on the brink of making of long
term rentals illegal because, you know, month to month or anything of that nature.

Ms. Yukimura: Oh, no, that is why we have the definition of transient I
think and maybe it doesn’t...

Mr. Furfaro: Again, I am just submitting that because I have a
question to that effect and I was busy for the last five (5) or six (6) minutes.

Ms. Yukimura: And it is a very legitimate question. It has been asked
before, but transient means a person who owns, rents or uses a dwelling unit or a
portion thereof which dwelling unit is not the person’s primary residence under the
Internal Revenue Code. If there is an intention to live there and that is their home
and they don’t have another permanent address somewhere else, that is not covered
in here, okay.

Mr. Furfaro: So thank you for the question and I am glad for the
opportunity to clariiSr. Thank you Madam Chair.

Mr. Rapozo: I have a question hearing the County Attorney. What is...
I need to know from Mr. Kouchi if he intends to introduce his amendment.

Ms. Yukimura: We have to change the tape, so if we can all stay in place
and we will get to your question as soon as we can. Sorry, I had one minute notice.
Councilmember Rapozo had a question of Councilmember Kouchi.

Mr. Rapozo: Yes, I had a question basically of the process today. After
hearing the County Attorney speak and not sure what the status of Mr. Kouchi’s
amendment is, I kind of wanted to know...

Ms. Yukimura: It is in process I think.

Mr. Rapozo: Well, I don’t know if he is intending on...

Mr. Kouchi: After the correction.

Mr. Rapozo: And then I guess...

Ms. Yukimura: It is sort of in the same status as yours.
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Mr. Rapozo: Yes, but the difference is mine, I think, I don’t need a

County Attorney’s opinion for mine. We’ve been through that I think enough times,
so for mine, I don’t need to have an executive session or a County Attorney’s opinion
on that. And on Mr. Kouchi’s one, I am not sure we have enough information from
the County Attorney’s Office to act.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

Mr. Rapozo: That is the difference between mine and Councilmember
Kouchi’s or Councilmember Iseri-Carvaiho.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, you know, we did have an executive session to look
at some of the amendments that were pending before us. The executive session was
recessed, so it is still available to have when we have something in front of us, so I
think we can proceed and then go into it if we...

Mr. Rapozo: I am not sure if the County Attorney is ready to respond
to the legality of that amendment, though, without looking at it.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, when we get it, we can look at it and then he can
say, I am ready to respond or I am not and then we can make a decision from there.

Mr. Rapozo: Well...

Ms. Yukimura: I mean, I am not sure what the purpose... I would like to
complete going through this bill if it is okay.

Mr. Rapozo: I am just saying that if we are going to go through this in the
end of the day to defer it again, then it is... I would agree with the County Attorney
that it is really...

Ms. Yukimura: I am sorry, we did hear the County Attorney’s opinion and
I appreciate it. I disagree with the County Attorney’s opinion which is not a legal
opinion that we don’t need any discussion on these amendments, so I would like to
at least go through...

Mr. Kawate: Just to clarify, I did not say that there is... that you don’t
need any discussion on it and also I will save you the time and tell you at this point
that we will not be able to make or give any legal advice on any amendment we
receive on the same day.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you very much. Okay, any other questions about
process?

Mr. Rapozo: Well, that is my question, what is the intent of you for
today?
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. .
Ms. Yukimura: I would like to go through this and surface any other

issues because if we don’t, we have all the opinions on the things that we have

surfaced and then we come back and have this discussion again and then we have

another need for more attorney’s opinions.

Mr. Rapozo: But I guess for me and this is just for me. Councilmember

Kouchi’s amendment will dictate going forward on this for me on this bill. It may.

Ms. Yukimura: It is very likely.., it looks like that we may have to defer
this again to have more opinions, but I think it is important to surface any other
issues, so when we ask for opinions, we know.., we hopefully get a comprehensive

list of questions that we are going to ask for opinions on. So if we could continue?

So we were on page 8 unless Councilmember Furfaro... do you want to go back?

Mr. Furfaro: No, I am good. I said what I wanted to making certain
that we didn’t put ourselves in a different peril.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you, then we are on page 9, page 10, page 11.

Where is Mr. Kawate going? Okay, actually that is fine. Okay, page 11? Okay,

page 12?

Chair Asing: Councilmember Yukimura, boy, you are too fast for me.

Ms. Yukimura: Oh, okay, I am sorry, I am sorry.

Chair Asing: You are speedy.

Ms. Yukimura: Do you want to go back to page 10 or 11?

Chair Asing: I just wanted to kind of get some clarification and I am

looking at page 10, the top of page 10, timeshare units and timeshare plans
prohibited in R-1, R-2, R-4 and R-6 residential districts and that is it, we want it
that way?

Ms. Yukimura: That...

Chair Asing: My reason for that is, you know, Councilmember Furfaro

points out what is happening out there in, I guess, the open market, I don’t know
what happened... happening to some of these units and what they are doing, so I
am not sure about this.

Ms. Yukimura: You know Chair, I think you’ve identified a really
important omission. It was taken out, but it was supposed to be repeated in
Section 9 on page 10.

Mr. Furfaro: Section 9, page 10?
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. .
Ms. Yukimura: Yes, so that is something that should be put back in. Do

you see that we... that is why it is so important to have so many sets of eyes looking
at this. So your concern is that it looks like we are eliminating “c” at the top of
pagelO, right?

Chair Asing: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: And you are right, that was supposed to have been
repeated. Do you see just below that? We had to make some changes to that
section because we were inserting single family residences in this chapter or this
article, so that is something that I will get put back in there because that is a really
critical piece, so thank you. Anything else on page 10? Let me explain to you that
this page... this 8-17.5, this is the grandfather clause for the law that was passed in
1982. It defined what was covered and what wasn’t covered by the new law because
there were some timeshares that were already created before the 1982 law came
into effect and we had to reword it because in the original law, vacation.., transient
vacation rental meant multi-family and now we are dividing it into two (2) different
categories, so that single family is included in the definition, but we are regulating
them differently too, yes. I must say that we did have the kind of eagle eye of
Jonathan Chun who was a former County Attorney look at this wording not to say
that it is perfect, so if you have any input, please let me know. Anything more on
page 10? Okay, if not, can we go onto page 11.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: On page 11, you have the word conspicuous location
and the word “conspicuous place” and it is not defined what conspicuous means. I
don’t know if you meant to just do that as a vague word and that it will never be
enforced because you can never enforce a provision like this and that is contained in
8-17.8(a) (4) and (7).

Ms. Yukimura: I am open to another word. I think it has been done
before in concept, you know, where liquor license laws have to be posted or in a
certain...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: In a certain place, but “conspicuous,” I mean, if it is
not defined specifically, there is nobody who is going to enforce this, so if that is
what you meant that, you know, it is supposed to be just a feel good provision that
is not going to be enforceable, then that is what it is.

Mr. Furfaro: It is very defined in the liquor laws where, you know, you
say conspicuous, but it references posted behind the bar, you know, expressing your
tax license. It is in these service area.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: What would you suggest?

Mr. Rapozo: And they also have investigators that go out every night
and check.
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. .
Mr. Furfaro: That it is posted and it is in those areas which service

occurs.

Ms. Yukimura: Any suggestions? For the information of the public, we are
talking about a list of requirements and information entitled for the safety and
comfort of you and your neighbors.

Mr. Furfaro: Well, I would think it should be posted in the sleeping
quarters of the accommodations.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: That, and then the other one on the permit. I
mean, it should be displayed right at the front door or something to that effect. It is
not very difficult to put that kind of language in.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, good suggestion. Okay, and then where was the
other one.

Mr. Furfaro: Actually, I think they could all go behind the front door of
the accommodations, no different than you would in a hotel. I think
Councilmember Iseri-Carvaiho brings up an excellent point. I was thinking in
terms of, you know, the sleeping accommodations, but if it is behind the front door...
the back or the front door.., they close the door, they see the license, they see the
regulatory...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: For regulation purposes though because you want
to... of the nonconforming because you want a... of the nonconforming use
certificate to show that they are valid for anybody who wants to enforce, it needs to
be like on the outside readily visible or else there are going to need a search
warrant to get into the house, so that would not be enforceable.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so number 2 does talk about a sign that would have
both the certificate number or the permit number and the phone number of the 24/7
contact person. If it is not clear, that sign is supposed to be on the outside of the
vacation rental and maybe we should say, one outdoor sign. And I think the
intention in number 6 was that it be placed in the dwelling or in the.., inside the
structure for the information of the occupants or the guests, so given that there...
although I must say, number 2 doesn’t require a sign and it just says it is allowed.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Uh huh.

Ms. Yukimura: Only one sign, though, it is trying to limit the
signage on the outside and the size of the signage with the idea that this is
residential area mainly. So I guess the question is, should we make it a
requirement for the outside sign and...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: That is the purpose for enforcement.
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Ms. Yukimura: It is helpful for enforcement, it is helpful for somebody

who is being disturbed.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Right, who are they going to call.

Ms. Yukimura: That they could just look from the outside to see what
that is.

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, I think, you know, you want that sign posted on the
outside that makes reference to their certificate and makes reference to who to call
for the purposes of management. You know, it is kind of like the manager on duty
sign, but it is posted in the event that someone needs to contact the house and it is
visible and it is posted outside.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, and objections to... go ahead.

Mr. Kouchi: Just because we had Sue (Kanoho) and Beth (Tokioka)
here earlier and I know Lucy (Kawaihalau) was part of the discussion. You know,
the other instance is what we have been going through the past several days in the
case of disaster emergency when we had the issue out at Kaloko dam and people
being unable to get across the road to get airlines.., those that used property
managers that had the island representatives and contacts were able to get
assistance, otherwise, you know, there was an overwhelming burden going to the
Visitor’s Bureau and the County for people trying to figure out, you know, what to
do because they had nowhere else.., nobody else to turn to, nobody else to seek
assistance and I know the bureau has tried to make sure that there be a local
contact number for all of these kinds of accommodations, medical emergencies and
things of that nature as well, so I just doubly support that.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, actually, we are not requiring they have a
management company, but we are requiring that they have an owner’s
representative.

Mr. Kouchi: Local contact.

Mr. Furfaro: I said manager on duty and I do not reference a specific
management, but they need this for safety contact number.

Ms. Yukimura: So I am hearing that we want to make this a requirement.

Mr. Bynum: Just for the sake of discussion, I kind of have mixed
feelings about this. If we are requiring a sign, then we are putting up signs in
neighborhoods. You know, I have mixed feelings because on one end, yes, you want
to know, who do I contact if I have a concern with this vacation rental. On the other
hand, the neighbors may not want to see signs that advertise that.., that this
particular house is a... I don’t know how to resolve that, but, clearly, I want to have
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. .
that contact person available on the inside for the people who are staying and that

contact to exist, but I don’t know how you meet both needs, but I think you had

people who live in neighborhoods with vacation rentals who are not doing vacation

rental, they might be here saying, eh, I don’t want any signs. So, you know, I like

the... I don’t know that I know the answer, but I just want to throw that out.

Mr. Furfaro: I wasn’t referencing a yard sign. I was referencing a

house (a sign on the house by the front door). You know, Police come, there is a fire,

you have to turn off gas, you know, you need an emergency response number. I

wasn’t referencing a yard sign.

Mr. Bynum: Well, and that is good to discuss it because I was seeing a

sign, you know, out at the front of the driveway that said, you know, Joe’s vacation

rental and...

Mr. Furfaro: No, that is not what I was referencing.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, those are all good concerns that have been raised.

You will see that... this was just my own call that I stand ready to be corrected on.

I have it no larger than one square foot.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: That is tiny.

Ms. Yukimura: It is 12 inches by 12 inches and that it shall have a

contact person... the certificate number and the phone number of a 24/7 contact

person. So, I mean, and it could be 12 by 12 or 6 by 18 or whatever and I suppose

Councilmember Furfaro’s idea that it be on the house itself takes away some of the

impact.

Mr. Furfaro: At the entrance of the house.

Ms. Yukimura: I mean, we could be more prescriptive and just say, you

know, you are not to have any advertising, but you will have these numbers. I

mean, that is the delicate balance you get involved in when you go into regulation.

Chair Asing: I think my concern was almost the same as

Councilmember Bynum and what I was going to relate to was, are we in conflict

with the sign ordinance. I mean, you know, you have a sign ordinance that does

regulate signs on where signs can be placed, the types, etc. and we are trying to, you
know, do signs when it belongs in the sign ordinance. So could we be doing

something that might be contrary because I think if you look at some of the findings

of the sign ordinance, you know, they were designed to try to environmentally take

care of problems that would be such that you would not have a visual impact and

environmental impact. I mean, that is the focus of the sign ordinance, so is this

contrary to that? I am not sure.
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Ms. Yukimura: You know, I did not think to check and we can check. I

mean, I think I was assuming that this would supercede the sign ordinance as
something that happened... the most recently, but we can check. I am still not
absolutely clear on our goal here. I mean, I am thinking that we all agree that it
should be as inconspicuous as possible or not as intrusive.

Mr. Rapozo: One of my concerns is the security because when you have
a sign out on the front, guess what, the burglar knows, this is a tourist house, this is
a transient vacation rental and it is not a local, I am going to go break in. But as a
former police officer too, I can tell you it is frustrating when you get to a house...
alarm company, alarm goes off and you have no idea who to call and...

Mr. Furfaro: Or a pipe is broken.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Fire Department.

Mr. Rapozo: For whatever reason. Yes, Fire Department, there is not
too much you can do, just let that puppy burn, but in an alarm... as a Police Officer,
there is not much you can do, but just on the practical side and the realist in me is
telling me that, right now, we currently have an ordinance or a law that every
house is supposed to have house numbers. Every home on this island is supposed to
have house numbers and I will tell you as a former cop, very few have numbers. We
don’t even enforce something as simply as that. It is so critical. Let me tell you, as
ambulance trying to find a house, a fire truck.., fire truck is not too bad because
they look for the fire, but an ambulance or a Police Officer. So, I mean, let’s just be
practical and we are spending so much time on these things in the devil and the
details, but we are going to spend all this time and it is going to be in the book and
nobody will enforce it. So I am not saying that to be negative, I am just letting you
know, this is the way it is and we don’t have the manpower to go out check little
square signs. As far as the sign ordinance, the sign... the size of the sign that you
are proposing would not even trigger that ordinance, so it is not a problem. But I
just want us to be cognizant as well, that if we are going to put a sign out there,
that is a sign welcoming the bad guys to come into a vacation rental.., not that they
don’t have it today. If you drive around, you see big signs that say, vacation rental,
826, 828, 822... it is being advertised right now, but we are now requiring a sign
that may, in fact, invite criminal activity, so just be beware that... I am not trying
to complicate the issue, but I am complicating the issue. It is just the reality of it
all.

Ms. Yukimura: Some of this is tedious, but that is how (inaudible).

Chair Asing: I just want to read to you the.., this is Ordinance 723 and
this is the sign ordinance Section 15-4.2, declaration of intent. The County Council
finds and declares that the people of the County of Kaua’i have an interest in
regulating and controlling the location, construction, erection, maintenance and use
of outdoor signs so as to protect the public health, safety and welfare and the
natural and scenic beauty of Kaua’i while acknowledging the necessity to identify
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businesses, organizations or persons through the use of signs. This need for
regulation, controls... stems from the recognition that the indiscriminate location,
construction, erection, maintenance use of elimination of outdoor signs can
negatively affect high (inaudible) pedestrian safety, firefighting and the natural and
scenic beauty of Kaua’i and the visitor industry. You know, it was kind of tied in
here and we need to make sure that we are not crossing over into another area that
belongs with the sign ordinance.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so I am hearing and I would really like to hear if
there are objections. I am hearing that we would require a small sign with basic
information not advertising.

Mr. Furfaro: Non-advertising for the purpose of loss prevention and
emergency. The fact of the matter is you have to... if people do have and this is in
the VDA areas too. These guests need to know that their management company or
the individual that has handled their rental is, in fact, responsible for them during
their stay and keeping them well informed. Vice versa, a Police Officer comes, a
plumber, the gas man, a neighbor sees an uncared for garage, garbage, you know,
they need to hold people accountable for that. So one by one and posted near the
entry door as far as a contact number, I think is a reasonable expectation.

Ms. Yukimura: So I will...

Mr. Rapozo: Just an example on how they handle the cows on this
island and the pastures because there are miles of fence line and, obviously, you
cannot put a sign... cows don’t like signs either, but dispatch... emergency, they
know where the pasture is and they tell you... or the dispatcher make the contact. I
think when you are talking about the emergency personnel, that is really what I am
concerned about and not so much... Jay talked about the plumber, the gas guy, but
he should have a street address, but it is the guy that comes for the fire, for the
leaking water and needing to know who to call. You would hope that there is a...
you would guess that it would be the Police Department that would have the three
(3) ring binder or the data base with all the registered homes and that is just one
alternative. I agree that there needs to be a sign somewhere on that property inside
the house for the tenant to call the resident or the vacation transient to call should
there be problems. Again, I mean, I don’t know how the operators feel as far as the
sign out there. I think they already have the welcome mats for the burglars
already, so I don’t think we would be forcing them to do anything that would
bring.., you know, as an investigator, we represent a lot of people that get caught
for burglary and, guess what, that is what they do, they target vacation rentals.
And hotels are easy because, you know, they are only transients in there, but when
they are out looking for a place to break in, it is so much more convenient to break
into a vacation rental or a transient accommodation unit. So, again, there may be
other ways to accomplish that mission, but the sign is something that I think is the
most easy, the most convenient.

Ms. Yukimura: Councilmember Bynum?
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Mr. Bynum: So in this instance, maybe you are talking about a sign

that is placed on or immediately adjacent to the front door saying like, inquiries
regarding this property should be directed to or something like that... I almost want
to disallow signs on the parkway or advertising signs, but is that...

Mr. Furfaro: I am not talking about anything dealing with marketing
or on the parkway or the lawn.

Ms. Yukimura: I think there is agreement on that.

Mr. Furfaro: I want to tell you. If the Fire Department comes to a
vacation rental and that house alarm keeps going off and a lot of these people use
mainland security services and the Police need to come there and say, hey, look,
there is a problem with your alarm.., we can’t keep responding to a false alarm and
vice versa. So I am talking about an emergency call number.

Ms. Yukimura: And we are talking about the neighborhood or those
affected in the community by the vacation rental who need to know this
information.

Mr. Furfaro: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, any other comments about this?

Mr. Rapozo: Well, just that the neighbor should not be walking into
the yard to go look for a number. They need to call the Police if there is an issue.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Well, that was my point. I mean if we want to
enforce persons who are not legal, you know, the Police Officer has to be able to see
it from the outside otherwise he doesn’t have probable cause to just walk up to the
door.

Mr. Rapozo: Exactly. Well, I was talking more of the neighbor. I think
you were saying like if the neighbor has an issue with the rubbish, the trash, the
noise, they can go look at the sign and I wouldn’t recommend that. I would
recommend, but then, again, like Shay said, now the Police needs to know, who do
we call? Relatively painlessly by looking up a number on the sign. It has its pluses
and minuses (inaudible). If, honestly, I had to make the.., to vote on it, I would say
that the sign would be the most convenient way to get that accomplished.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, okay. I will work on an amendment. Anything else?
Let me ask just about 6. This is just a copy of the certificate or the permit which
shows the visitor or the guest that this is a valid vacation rental. That is all that
was meant here, so it doesn’t even have the 24/7 number. I am assuming that
would be under the safety and comfort for you and your neighbors and that would
be central information. Do you think this is unnecessary? Shall I just take it out?
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Number 6, maybe we don’t need it.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Well, I think you might want it (change tape)... be
somewhere where the tenant would know... inside, right, because assuming that the
sign for whatever reason falls apart or somebody takes it, at least you will have
someplace on the inside which has the information.

Ms. Yukimura: Alright. Okay, anything else on page 11? Then page 12.
This is the one.., where is Mr. Kouchi?

Mr. Furfaro: He might be working on his amendment.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, I don’t understand what is taking so long with the
amendments. It would be really helpful to have anything in writing just so we can..
I really want to have a discussion that that is all of the issues, so that if we are
going to defer this, we really get everything and if we are going to go to the County
Attorney, we are going to get everything out, so that we don’t have to keep doing
this over and over again. So let’s look at page 12.

Chair Asing: The top of page 12 that a permit no later than 12 months.
12 months appears as a long period of time. Why 12 months?

Ms. Yukimura: I was just thinking of the poor Planning Department
having to process all of this stuff and I actually... let’s see now... and I am requiring
that they secure the certificate within 12 months, not just apply for it. We have to
actually get it and I am just thinking of all the time that: 1) the Planning
Department takes to process things. Let me see the.., there is a sister provision
which actually requires application.., oh, for the nonconforming... see, they are
either going to get a permit because they are within a VDA and they are legal, but
we just want to have them register or they are going to get a nonconforming use
certificate which will be like a registration, you know, because we will have that
and the nonconforming use certificate deadlines are on page 13 in paragraph U).
And I think it is supposed to be an “and” instead of an “or”, but failure to apply for a
nonconforming use certificate by February 29, 2008 and because I don’t want
everybody applying at the very last minute. That is not fair to the Planning
Department, so we have to have some deadline for application and failure to obtain
a nonconforming use certificate by August 31 which gives the Planning
Department... if people wait until the very deadline for application, it gives the
Planning Department another six (6) to eight (8) months to process, you know, if
they fail to meet those deadlines, then they are not qualified for a nonconforming
use, so that was the thinking.

Chair Asing: So your thinking is more the Administration portion?

Ms. Yukimura: Right.
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. .
Chair Asing: My thinking was why would it take that long for them

to...

Ms. Yukimura: Apply.

Chair Asing: Well, not only apply, to get it done. I think the faster we
get the registration done, you know, we need to get an idea as to what is out there.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, just remember that for the registration, these are
not illegal. They are operating already or... actually, some of them will be new ones
because even new ones have to register. So some will be the ones currently existing
in the VDA area and then new ones as they get established and then the most
complex ones will be the certificates for nonconforming use because that will require
some evidentiary review and some decision making. The Class... the registration
should not take much time at all if the Planning Department, you know, develops a
good form. We are 12. Yes, Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I have a question on, again, enforcement on
8-17. 10(c)(3). It says that with a pattern of consistency that evidences an ongoing
and lawful enterprise, and I know what your intent was, but I don’t think.., unless
you defining what a pattern of consistency is, that sections is not going to be
enforceable either.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, you know, you are right. It is like what
Councilmember Kouchi’s amendment... you know, you give some general guidelines
and then it is a judgment call, you know. I had originally, if you might recall, under
1, 2 and 3, I had explicit numbers like you have to have a minimum of two (2)
regist... not registrations, but what do you do when you reserve.., or reservations.
You had to a have a minimum of so many reservations and then you have to have a
minimum of so many actual occupancies in order to help establish that and then... I
mean, you know, there was some concern that that was too rigid, so I ended up with
a more general guideline, but so if people feel that we should put some specific
numbers in there, I would appreciate the input and also some idea of what kind of
numbers we would be looking for over what period of time,

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Well...

Ms. Yukimura: Well, actually, it is 60 days.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And then the 60 days, you are still going with this
60 days?

Ms. Yukimura: You know, that is what I wanted to discuss today. Are
people comfortable with that? I will tell you that I did put in a rationale on page 2,
so we can take a look at that and you can see if that makes a difference or not and
where is it.
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Mr. Bynum: Close to the bottom I think.

Ms. Yukimura: Oh, yes, I see it. The second to the last paragraph on
page 2. It tries to establish the purpose and goal of grandfathering. Now, it is
interesting that in the draft, I saw Councilmember Rapozo’s amendment. It was
like over the course of one year I think, right? You had that language and that is
the.., like I pointed out before, that is the current language in the current law.
Okay, any thoughts, any discussion on that?

Mr. Bynum: I think with the language you put in on page 2 increases
my comfort level with the 60 days being there.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Is that the same.., good job.

Ms. Yukimura: Any other...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: You know, I have a problem. I don’t think I am
going to support this section at all.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, when you say this section, which one are you
referring to?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: When you are talking about the 60 days. I don’t
think there is sufficient justification for that.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But that is just my opinion.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, that is all that I want. Any other discussion or
thoughts on that? So there is at least one objection.

Mr. Rapozo: I think the 60 day was a question that several of us had in
prior discussions.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so that is one of yours also, yes, Councilmember
Rapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, any other... I mean, that already...

Chair Asing: What was that?

Ms. Yukimura: The 60 days, and page 12...
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Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: That you had to show over the course of 60 days.

Ms. Yukimura: Paragraph (c), okay, so there are objections to that.
Anything else?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Well, I guess, you know, maybe I am thinking, the
Mayor had previously sent over a bill that said that you could have it effective from
the date that the bill was sent over which was August 3, the moratorium. So maybe
we can go back all the way...

Ms. Yukimura: You would be comfortable with that?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Yes. I mean, if that is legal, you know. Isn’t that
what just happened? Right?

Ms. Yukimura: I know that there was case law that Ms. Esaki actually
uncovered that did uphold a grandfathering as of the date of introduction on the
grounds that there was notice and, so there was... there couldn’t have been reliance
if there was notice, so, yes. I haven’t actually read the case myself.

Mr. Bynum: I think the difference. This one in the front.., in the
beginning of this bill, we talk about the rationale for health and safety and
community... why we are doing the bill at all, then you have added this language on
page 2 that gives a rationale of why there would be any timeframe and then sets it
at a... what I see as reasonable 60 days. The difference with the moratorium bill is
that was put out there on the date of introduction. It said, you know, we are going
to use this, August 3 as the date where we didn’t do that in this bill.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I don’t think that makes a difference at all.

Mr. Bynum: It will make a difference to me.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Well, I don’t think under the law it makes a
difference, but, you know.

Mr. Bynum: Puts the community on notice and...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But furthermore, I don’t think that you can draft
legislation that hasn’t even come here. You can make an effective date in the
legislation on a date that hasn’t even been introduced as a bill. I mean, the last I
checked, I thought it was just the Council had the legislative power.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, I think there is a... the Administration does have
the power to introduce a bill... not introduce, but...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: They cannot.
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. .
Ms. Yukimura: They can request an introduction.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: And it was not done. I mean, I hadn’t seen it on the
Council agenda.

Ms. Yukimura: Not yet. Okay, I guess we can... if... I will try to dredge

up that case and see... that can be a question if we are going to go to the attorney.

We can ask him. Airight, any other...

Mr. Kouchi: And I just was going to say that I just shared a similar
concern, so if it is going back, I’ll wait to (inaudible).

Ms. Yukimura: On the 60 day, that is your concern too. I mean, we can’t
just solve one problem by just taking it out, but then it becomes really important to
get this bill passed. Okay, so, I mean, you know, any other thoughts about page 12?
Actually, at the bottom of page 12, it begins the issue regarding ag lands and maybe
Mr. Kouchi, you have your amendment now?

Mr. Kouchi: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: It has been passed out.

Mr. Kouchi: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Kouchi: And I think the correction was at the bottom of page 1
under item 1. It was built prior to June 4, 1976 and I believe the word “or” was
there and I had intended to use the word “and”. The new amendment now more

accurately reflects the intent.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, airight, thank you. Okay, thank you. We have to
take a caption break in five (5) minutes and I think people are antsy enough that
maybe we should just take it right now, so we will take a 10 minute break and come

back at 5:20 p.m.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 5:08 p.m.

The meeting was called back to order at 5:29 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: We are on the vacation rental bill and we are on page 12.
We are at the bottom regarding... this is the most popular part of the bill regarding

ag lands. We have before us for discussion, Councilmember Kouchi’s amendment
and we also have as part of my amendment, you know, a proposal that would allow
the securing of a special use permit. But I am may have to withdraw this given that
there is such a resounding evidence that vacation rentals aren’t allowed legally on

64



. .
ag land unless they were built prior to 1976 or unless they have a special use permit
at the time of passage of this law. This amendment by Councilmember Kouchi is an
amendment to the law rather than an amendment to the amendment, but I think
we can discuss the concepts in it and I don’t see Mr. Kouchi here to talk about his
amendment. Anybody...

Mr. Rapozo: If I may. I mean, my comments will remain as it was
earlier today. Having heard the County Attorney, I will be asking that we send this
over for review and I would... I am not sure... I don’t think Mr. Kou... here is here
now, but... is going to be introducing this amendment, but whatever happens with
this amendment, I would ask that this be sent over with the other questions that we
have to the County Attorney and I would like specific review of this amendment as
far as legality.

Mr. Kouchi: And Madam Chair, the other issue that Councilmember
Rapozo raised, to me, after he was reading it on the break is that perhaps the way
this is worded in its present form, may not be as enforceable as the present
language where maybe only a building permit which someone should have when
they built their house may suffice and, so, you know, if we could have a comparison
if that would be the net effect because it was not my intent to try to make it easier
and if that is the case, you know, I want to be sure that I didn’t water down what
was there. My intent was just to try and clarifSr a process for someone that may
have been doing this prior to 1976 which was before the law was adopted. And I
think that Councilmember Rapozo raised an excellent concern in his reading of the
proposed amendment.

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you Mr. Kouchi. I think this, as it is written, states
that the structure... the only requirement prior to 1976 was that the structure be
present and that the use not be determined. So, again, we see it for the first time, so
I want to make sure that...

Ms. Yukimura: Now, the... I am not clear what your suggestion was to
Councilmember Kouchi about a building permit rather than a...

Mr. Kouchi: We tried to establish what would be the process to get
that permit and what you go through to establish the use and we would want to be
sure that if you were doing this prior to 1976, I think part of it was, you know, that
you need to establish that it was actually in vacation rental and I may have missed
in part of the process because if it only refers to establishment of a physical
structure, but not discussion of the actual use, you know, then I apologize because
that wasn’t what I was intending to do and we are all trying to move quickly to get
paper on the desk. But, you know, at least happy it is going to review and Mel did
catch that and I did tell him that it was not my intent to be contrary to having to
show the use as well, so that would have been oversight in the crafting. I want to
be sure, you know, in the review that we have a good process.
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. .
Ms. Yukimura: So actually you are talking about that the use was in

effect prior to June 4, 1976?

Mr. Kouchi: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: The vacation rental use?

Mr. Kouchi: Well, that would be a legal use at that time because there
was no State law or County law to prohibition, but you had to have been using it in
that manner for you to now be grandfathered in.

Ms. Yukimura: I see, okay. Airight, okay, anything else on page 12?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Yes, I do for (e). I am looking at Ron’s one as well,
but...

Ms. Yukimura: Page 13?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Page 13 on yours.

Ms. Yukimura: The burden of proof?

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: When you look at... I don’t understand this, upon
preponderance of the evidence, the Planning Director shall determine whether to
issue. How would you have a preponderance of the evidence? It is either you have
this or you don’t, right? I mean, I don’t know how he is supposed to apply that
standard.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, because you will see that what he will be applying,

as I understand, it would be all the issues in (c) and (d).

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Right, but the standard of preponderance is
probably more than not. I mean, that is what preponderance means.

Ms. Yukimura: And, I don’t think it will be matter of 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 equals
four (4), you know, or adding things up. It is going to be a judgment call, right?

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Right, so that is why it wouldn’t be preponderance.
I mean, you know, if he is satisfied, it is to his satisfaction, I mean, I don’t think the
Planning Director can apply a legal standard like that.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, okay. Airight, so you are suggesting a wording that
says...
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. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Because when you utilize the term preponderance

of the evidence, you are looking at credible evidence.., more credible than not.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: You know, do I believe these facts more than... you
know, more probably than not, so it doesn’t make sense.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, okay, so the intention was and maybe it is not well
implemented that the Planning Director would apply these requirements under (c)
that is... and look at all the evidence, the tax returns and everything to see whether
there is... there is enough evidence to...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Evidence to believe that it was in operation, I
mean, something simple like that.

Ms. Yukimura: That there was an ongoing operation basically. You
know, it wasn’t just the night before to secure something, but there was an actual
ongoing, so the wording you would suggest is just... let me find it. Okay, using, let’s
see.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But we can decide the language later JoAnn, I
think. It is going over to the County Attorneys anyway, but I think that standard is
inapplicable given the facts that the Planning Director has to consider or the
evidence that he has to consider.

Ms. Yukimura: Right. Okay, good, thank you for the input. Well, we
were on page 12. Are we done with page 12?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Oh, I am sorry, that was on page 13.

Ms. Yukimura: No, but that is okay because you were looking at
Councilmember Kouchi’s one that includes that. In fact, if there is no more
questions... Councilmember Bynum, you had something?

Mr. Bynum: Page 13.

Ms. Yukimura: Page 13 then. Let’s go to page 13.

Mr. Bynum: If we are going to do the ag land definition, I believe that 90% is
too high of a figure. That would eliminate virtually everyone and, you know, I
would suggest somewhere around 50% or...

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.
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. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Is it your intention to even introduce that portion

Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Right now it is not. I may ask the County Attorney a
question about whether a special use permit because I am remembering that Judge
Pyun [County Attorney] did say, a special permit might be possible, but short of
getting an approval there, I won’t be including that criteria.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Okay.

Ms. Yukimura: But if ever comes back to us that we might be able to do
this, then Councilmember Bynum’s input is well taken. In fact, I changed the 75 I
had... 75% of the land must be used for farm operations including in my mind the
farm dwelling and any employee housing that is related to farming, but I had
boosted up the 70% to 90% because that is what the Real Property Tax Division is
looking at in terms of some of its amendments to the real property tax law
regarding agricultural lands, and I wanted to see what input I would get. Based on
the input, I would go down probably back to 75 or 70 and I hear Councilmember
Bynum saying that he would prefer it to be even less, but we may not even get
there. Okay, anything else on page 13. Yes, Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: Under (g), I had asked this prior when the Planning
Director was here about the nonconforming use certificate by July 31 of every year
and about whether it might be more practical to make that every other year just to
reduce the administrative burden and the burden on the people applying.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, and actually, what is applicable here is
Councilmember Iseri-Carvaiho’s amendment. Has that been passed out?

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: I think so. I mean, I got my copy.

Ms. Yukimura: Can we... you know, if there is a proposal to amortize the
use, this periodic renewal is going to become moot, so why don’t we keep going and
come back to that when we get the amendments circulated. Any...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: I just wanted clarification JoAnn on (g)(c)... that at
the time of renewal, there were no outstanding violations, what does that mean? I
mean, does it have to be an official citation or does it have to be that you are
convicted of something. You know, I don’t know at what stage that would trigger.

Ms. Yukimura: That is a good question. The intention and it wasn’t
properly implemented here was if there were violations of State or County land use
which we have been told is a legitimate issue for defining nonconforming use, you
know, because it is supposed to be lawful that it might not be a lawful
nonconforming use anymore and that may be stretch too, I don’t know, so that was
the intention.
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. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: I don’t know if you can clarifSr that language

because...

Mr. Furfaro: What about delinquent taxes?

Ms. Yukimura: We have been told that that is not something that we can
actually use.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: In and of itself, but I thought if it was a factor, that
it was okay.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Mr. Furfaro: You couldn’t use it singularly.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Solely based on that.

Mr. Furfaro: But you could use it as a cluster of criteria, it could be
part of that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Right, and I think that is something that I would
support as well Councilmember Furfaro.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, alright, I will work on that. Page 14 then.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Oh, JoAnn, I have a...

Ms. Yukimura: Back to page 13?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: No, 14. 8-17.11 and I reviewed this section and I
know we went extensively into the revocation process and there was penalties and
it appears that there is a conflict between the penalties and Article 17 which would
contain Section 8-17.11. If you look in Article 17 on 8-17.6, the CZO.

Ms. Yukimura: 8-17.6 in the CZO.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Yes, it says an owner of any unit which is operated
in violation of this article which is Article 17.

Ms. Yukimura: You are talking about the 8-17 in the proposed
amendment or is it...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Well, it says the language in (a) says, in addition to
other penalties provided by law including, but not limited to Section 8-17.6.

Ms. Yukimura: And what is that?
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. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: That is the penalty section for violations

Ms. Yukimura: I remember looking at that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Violation of that article, it says, any owner of any
unit which is operating in violation of this article shall each be fined not less than
$500 nor more than $10,000 for each offense, and if any person fails to remove such
violation within one month, such person shall be subject to a new and separate
violation for each day the violation continues to exist.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: You know, for example, if you are talking about
illegal vacation rentals that they are not registered, right?

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And I guess just the language fails to remove is
interesting, but...

Ms. Yukimura: Where is the fails to remove?

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: It is already in that Section 8-17.6, so it is not very
clear, but it does say that, but then, the other penalties, the overriding penalties on
Section 8-24.1 which applies to the whole Chapter 8, right?

Ms. Yukimura: JJh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Says that enforcement, legal procedures and
penalties, all departments, officials and public employees vested with the duty or
authority to issue permits or license (inaudible) conform to the provisions of this
Chapter and shall issue no such permits, etc. if they are in violation or conflicting
with the provisions. But it says over there, in (c), any person convicted of violating
or causing or permitting the violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter which
we are in because the Chapter is the overriding section and the article is within the
Chapter, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine not
exceeding $500. So it is two (2) conflicting enforcement provisions, so I think...

Ms. Yukimura: Are they not civil and criminal? Is that... a misdemeanor
would be a...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: A misdemeanor.., it is in here, yes, but you can get
a fine as a violation.., would be a violation in criminal court if you were just issued
a fine.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

70



. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: So it is not a civil, but it is a criminal case, but it is

a violation like a speeding ticket.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, and what you are pointing out is actually a conflict
in the existing law.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Right, because one says that it is from $500 to
$1,000, right, in Article 17, but in Article...

Ms. Yukimura: Or $10,000 I thought.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I mean $10,000 and the other one is no more than
$500.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But it is a misdemeanor. It becomes a crime. The
other one is that it is a violation.

Ms. Yukimura: And maybe the writers in thinking was one would be a
civil fine and one would be a criminal fine. Could they then be both applied
separately or...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: No, because you cannot be charged for the same
offense. You cannot be charged criminally and... I mean, you can technically, but
who is going to enforce, right? The Planning Department is going to send it to the
Prosecutors and it is going to go to court to get enforced. They are the ones who are
going to hear the case.

Ms. Yukimura: And, actually, I believe that, gosh, we were working on
the Hanalei commercial boating and I wish Barbara Robeson were here now. We
actually established some administrative fines which could be administered by the
Planning Department or a Hearings Officer.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: But like I said, we already have it regulated. We
are just... in this section, what we are doing was just adding the revocation process,
yes?

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But the other penalties are already in the law and,
yet, I mean, they are conflicting penalties.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: So, you know, I don’t know.
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. .
Ms. Yukimura: And I guess the question is whether we can try to craft a

specific wording here that would resolve the conflict. Okay.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And, you know, that may be for the County
Attorney if we could ask him with respect to that because I still think we need to
take some kind of action with the conflicting provisions that exist anyway.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And that is all that I have.

Ms. Yukimura: Anything else on page 14?

Mr. Rapozo: It is a housekeeping because of the definition of the
structure when we first opened up with the County Attorney. Enforcement against
illegal single family and multi-family, you are going to have to change that to
enforcement against maybe unpermitted transient vacation rentals.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, where is that?

Mr. Rapozo: On the top, Section 8-17.11, the title because we were,
again, reminded that it includes all dwelling, so if you limit the enforcement against
single family and multi-family, then you really cannot enforce against any other
type. Maybe that needs to be clarified by the Attorney, I am not sure. It is just
housekeeping based on the definition on the earlier discussion that we had.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, okay, we will look at that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Can we go back Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: In (e), we state...

Ms. Yukimura: (e) on pagel3?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: 14, the bottom of 14 and then the top of 15 and I
don’t think it should... we state there, advertising shall constitute (inaudible)
evidence of the operation of a TVR and said property and the burden of proof shall
be on the owner that it is not being used as a transient vacation rental or that it is
being used for such purposes legally. If any unit is found to be operating
unlawfully, penalties established in Section 8-17.6 shall apply and I don’t know if
we can do that (limit it to that). So just that whole section just needs to be asked of
the County Attorney because I don’t think you can limit.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, actually, but it is just the last sentence isn’t it?

72



. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: But if you go on (a), (a) talks about, in addition to

other penalties provided by law including, but not limited to Section 8-17.6 and
Section 8-24.1. We refer to both of them in (a) and then on 15, we only say, 8-17.6
shall apply.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes. So either we say both of them or we take it out
entirely.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Right, yes. Well, we still have to figure out which
one would apply.

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: So just in looking at (a), we need to look at (e) too.

Ms. Yukimura: Alright. Anything else? Okay, we should go back now
that Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho’s amendment has been circulated. The public
needs to be given. Thank you, sorry. Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho, do you want to
describe the... what you are trying to do here or proposing to do and maybe the
rationale?

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: (Inaudible-mike is off) Council Chair Asing’s
proposal regarding bed and breakfasts about the only ones that should be legal.

Ms. Yukimura: You mean single family vacation rentals.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I am sorry, I said bed and breakfast, yes?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Yes, I am looking at (e) here on the first page. I got
confused, sorry... transient vacation rentals and based on Council Chair’s
presentation, that the body of that section basically is contained in 8-17.5, the
substance of the amendment which basically refers to those being legal as those
having been constructed with all necessary permits along with final building
inspection as of the effective date of this ordinance which was the September 22,
1982 date. Basically, that is what it does. It allows them to come in and register
and provides for amortization period for nonconforming uses and that is contained
on page 10 of 10.

Ms. Yukimura: Any questions of Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho?

Mr. Furfaro: I am sorry, were we talking about the amortization?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, we are. The amendment has been passed.

Mr. Furfaro: I just want to say that early on in this bill, I talked in
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terms of being concerned with the perception if someone got a nonconforming use
permit in a non-VDA residential area because we could not discriminate from the
fact that they were operating prior to this piece. I said I wanted to see that.., okay,
the entitlement didn’t go with the land, but at some point, as they sold the property,
the fact of the matter is they would lose that nonconforming use. In other words,
they couldn’t add value to property saying that it was like an entitlement and I was
of the impression that we did get some recommendations saying, first of all, we had
to define what was residential because provided that a zoning ordinance may be
eliminating this nonconforming permit use is discontinued for the amortization of, I
believe, agricultural use and residential. We were told that, you know, that was a
very gray area in the law, so I was disappointed because I thought there would be
some regular attrition, but I also thought, at the end of the day, we had to have a
legal definition about what is residential use. Is this vacation rental part of the
year and, yet, an owner uses it part of the year, is that a definition of residential
use? I think this is something we need clarity and on the flip side, Councilwoman, I
understand where you are going with this time period and I would like to say that,
you know, my thinking was more along the sale of the property because there is this
value that is attached. You know, that people perceive they have an additional
entitlement and they could sell the property inside of 18 months or anything of that
nature. But I am really looking for this definition for nonconforming use vacation
rental as it relates to this ruling that in no event shall amortization of phasing out
nonconforming uses apply to an existing building or premises for residential or
agricultural use. So I would hope that we could get that question over to the
County Attorney.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And that was my intent. Thank you
Councilmember Furfaro.

Mr. Furfaro: I was out of the room. I am sorry.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: So that was my intent to send it over to...

Mr. Furfaro: I am close to where you are at, but I am talking in terms
of the sale, you know, when there is a transaction because I am really worried about
the inflated value of the real estate if they perceive them to be able to sell and they
are selling it with added entitlement.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: But, yes, we will definitely will have that sent over.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay, so that needs to be something that comes to us from
the County Attorney.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Because I know we did pose a question and we
really didn’t get a definitive response and maybe he may not be able to provide a
definitive response, but we will definitely have something in writing. I think it was
done verbally and not in writing.

74



. .
Mr. Furfaro: So I guess my question, give us a definition of residential

use whether it has a nonconforming use permit or not. Thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

Mr. Rapozo: Madam Chair, I just want to say in the defense of the
County Attorney, I think that is what he asked. When we get the drafted language,
then they will be better able to...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: It is easier for them to respond.

Mr. Rapozo: To provide a response. We bombard them with many
legal questions.

Mr. Furfaro: Just in all fairness, this was something that I asked early
on.

Mr. Rapozo: Correct.

Mr. Furfaro: About this entitlement if there could be some natural
attrition if they sold the property.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: And I think we had a different attorney too at that
time.

Mr. Furfaro: I think you may be right.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: So...

Mr. Furfaro: You may be right. Thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Anything else on page 14? Am I on the wrong page? We
were actually at the bottom of page 13 because, actually, this is... the proposal is for
17.8.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: We are finish.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, we want to cover every Councilmember’s concern, so
Councilmember Bynum, you have a concern?

Mr. Bynum: On the first page of this proposed amendment, (d) or (e), it
says, transient vacation rentals and bed and breakfast operations designated in
visitor destination areas established pursuant, these are prohibited (inaudible)
none, so that is a significant change, yes?

Ms. Yukimura: Well, actually, this is the existing bill. This is the bill
that came from Planning and, yes, actually, I don’t think that Councilmember Iseri
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Carvaiho actually wants to propose it. You know, actually, this is not the right bill
to amend. I don’t think because...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: This is the only bill we have on the floor.

Ms. Yukimura: It is actually 2204, draft 1, you know, because...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: No, we didn’t do any... nothing.

Ms. Yukimura: You are correct, so this is the only one we have and...

Mr. Bynum: So Councilmember, the only thing that you have changed
from the existing bill is the addition of Section 14?

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: That is correct.

Mr. Bynum: Thanks for that clarification and regarding Section 14, so
we are going to ask the County Attorney to look at this about why it wouldn’t be...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Well, just the definition as...

Mr. Bynum: Because, you know, my reading of HRS 46-4 and
Councilmember Rapozo just read the pertinent... I thought it was pretty clear that
it said we can’t...

Mr. Rapozo: Furfaro.

Mr. Bynum: We can’t amortize residential and ag land.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, that is on the face of the language.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Not land, it is uses.

Mr. Bynum: That we can’t amortize uses (change side of tape).

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But they will go over.., we will send it over to the
County Attorney.

Ms. Yukimura: They will have to...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: The language and the use of what that.., not the
land, but the use.

Mr. Bynum: Okay.
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay, anything else on pages 14 or 15 or any of the pages

at this point? We’ve covered all of the proposed amendments. Okay, besides the
issues raised, is there anything else we need to ask the County Attorney? Okay, if
not, then based on today’s discussions and I appreciate everybody hanging in there
and going over the amendments. I will have some questions prepared for the
County Attorney to be answered by the next Committee Meeting. Alright, and
unless there is any further discussion, the Chair would entertain a motion to defer.

The meeting was called back to order, and proceeded as follows:

Upon motion duly made by Councilmember Iseri-Carvaiho, seconded by
Councilmember Rapozo, and unanimously carried, Bill No. 2204 was
deferred.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 6:03 p.m. and went
back to the original agenda.

The meeting was called back to order at 8:08 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: Let’s take Bill No. 2221. I am just going to ask for
another deferral on this.

Bill No. 2221 A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 9,
KAUA’I COUNTY CODE 1987, RELATING TO STREET
REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISIONS (Traffic calming
elements)
[This item was deferred and there was no discussion.]

Upon motion duly made by Councilmember Rapozo, seconded by
Councilmember Furfaro, and unanimously carried, Bill No. 2221 was
deferred.

Bill No. 2226, Draft 1 A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A NEW
ARTICLE 27, CHAPTER 8, KAUA’I COUNTY CODE
1987, RELATING TO SHORELINE SETBACK AND
COASTAL PROTECTION (Planning Commission
recommendation)
[This item was deferred.]

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, we have some amendments that are just being
copied. Is this the last item on the agenda?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: No, we have the bikepath.

Ms. Yukimura: Then I am just going to declare a four (4) minute recess.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 8:10 p.m.
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The meeting was called back to order at 8:16 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: The shoreline setback and coastal protection Bill, draft 1

is what is on the table and I have circulated some amendments. They are the same

ones done on August 1 except we put in two (2) new amendments or maybe three

(3). I will start by pointing those out. We will have a brief recess for technical

difficulties.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 8:17 p.m.

The meeting was called back to order at 8:18 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: We are looking at the proposed amendments dated

August 1, but it should be dated August 15 because they are the amendments that

were passed out on August 1, plus the two (2) or three (3) that I want to cover with

you first and then we can go over page by page if you like. The change over the last

meeting’s amendments are on page 10. Actually, Jimmy, can you come? On page

10, we are looking at what is permitted, so you will see at the top of page 10...

permitted structures and activities within the shoreline setback area and if you look

down at (a)(5), repairs to lawfully existing structures including nonconforming

structures, what we are allowing repairs to lawfully existing structures including

nonconforming structures provided that the structure was not damaged by coastal

hazards with the exception of natural disasters including hurricanes and tsunamis

under declaration of the Governor or the President of the United States. We are

only allowing rebuilding of dwelling units or repair of dwelling units where the

repairs do not enlarge the structure or intensify the use of the structure and they

are less 50% of the current replacement cost and they abide by all the building

codes. And then on page 11, similarly, we are allowing not only the repair, but the

rebuilding of structures only if they were caused by fire, termites, accidental means,

etc., as well as emergencies by Governor’s declaration or the President’s declaration.

But we hold them to the same restrictions that it doesn’t enlarge the structure. You

will see in (d), except if they willingly go back 10 feet, then they can be enlarged by

increments of 100 square feet. If they are more than 50%, they have to also abide

by the existing CZO requirement that.., the building is more than 50% of current

value, they cannot be rebuilt.

Mr. Rapozo: So, JoAnn, you are saying under (6), rebuilding, they

would be able to build in the same location?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes.

Mr. Rapozo: Regardless of the setback?

Ms. Yukimura: They would not need to abide by the.., with the current

setback and the reason for this is there are some small lots which if they can’t abide

by the current setback which is minimum 40 feet, they would not be able to build a

minimum footprint house that is reasonable. They can’t build a house basically. It
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. .
would be stopping them from building a house and, also, the nexus, even if they had
been set back 40 feet, that would not have prevented them by being washed away
by a tsunami or hurricane waves (coastal action). As you recall in Po’ipã, the surge
was 300 feet inland, so even if they were setback 40 feet, that wouldn’t actually
protect them from these hurricanes and tsunamis.

Mr. Rapozo: Right, but now you are talking about termites and fire.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, because those aren’t coastal causes. They aren’t
caused by coastal damages.

Mr. Rapozo: Right, but they would be allowed to use the variance
process, right?

Ms. Yukimura: But they can’t go back more than 40 feet. There is an
absolute 40 feet, so even with a variance, they can’t go closer than 40 feet and in
some cases, like a 60 foot deep lot, they wouldn’t be able to build a house or the
house would be, maybe, just 15 feet wide and 100 feet long to be a minimum
footprint house.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I have a question. JoAnn, I know that you had
these discussions with the experts like Dolan Eversole and Chris... not Chris,
Thorne Abbott...

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Have these changes been put forth to them?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, they have.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And they are in agreement that all of this language
is what they would support?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Really?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, and...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: And I guess I would like to see that in writing. I
mean, you know, I have some concerns about rebuilding because if the purpose is
to... I mean, protect the house, protect the family as well. I mean, this bill is to
protect the landowner as well as, you know, protecting our ocean, so why would
people want to build if they are in that hazardous area?

Ms. Yukimura: Well, they have already built. These are existing dwelling
units.
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. .
Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Well...

Ms. Yukimura: These are dwelling units that are...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: But when you rebuild it...

Ms. Yukimura: No, but the setbacks wouldn’t really allow a rebuilding in
some of the situations. Now, we could, you know, in some situations, they might be
able to make the setbacks, but the setbacks wouldn’t prevent.., protect them from
hurricane or tsunami which is the only thing we are exempting them from. If they
actually get damaged by non-hurricane coastal, they have to abide by the setbacks
because the purpose of the setback is being served, but in the case of where the
purpose of the setback is not going to help, then it doesn’t seem reasonable not to
require them to setback, but it won’t help. And it is actually in some of the
circumstances would mean probably that they can’t rebuild a house at all.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: I don’t see why people would want to.

Ms. Yukimura: Let me say that from another part of this bill, for

example, where we are requiring the setback line to be established and General
Plan amendment, zoning and subdivision, we will be avoiding these problems of
small lots in the future because we are requiring the lots to be long enough depth to
have that setback because we are establishing the setback line and the coastal
erosion rates to be setback and never have that problem hopefully, although we
haven’t included the impacts of global warming because they are not yet

predictable, whereas, the coastal erosion rates are more determinable, you know.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: But you do have a process, right? I mean, that they
could apply. I think later in the bill, you know...

Ms. Yukimura: Well, one of the options we looked at was allowing it
through a variance process, the rebuilding for variance process, but that would have
required that we would reduce the minimum setback to 20 feet and that would have
been for all variances and not only the rebuilding of existing, but any variances
because you are drawing a general rules for variances. We decided that we didn’t
want to do that. There was really strong feeling not to change the minimum
setback to 20 feet from 40 feet, so we thought the least harmful way would be just to
allow rebuilding.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: I don’t know why you cannot even during the
variance, I mean, process? I don’t know why it has to be automatic?

Ms. Yukimura: No, no, that is what I mean. The 40 feet is in the variance
process. It says that you can get a variance, but you can’t go closer than 40 feet, you
know, no matter what.
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Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Okay.

Ms. Yukimura: And with that variance process, you would get the same
result as you would by not putting this exception in here because they wouldn’t be
able to build a house.

Mr. Rapozo: JoAnn, where is the 40 feet limit on the variance?

Ms. Yukimura: I will find that for you in just a minute. On page...

Mr. Rapozo: I am looking on page 15 under variances, Section 11. On
page 15, Section 8-27.10, criteria for approval of a variance and go down to the
bottom of the page and look at Section 11 and it is quite clear. In the case where
the applicable shoreline setback line does not allow for the minimum buildable
footprint for a single family dwelling unit, the Commission may consider granting a
variance for the protection by, again, adjusting the front yard setback, the side
yard setback and the minimum buildable footprint may be reduced to 1,500 square
feet.

Ms. Yukimura: There is a portion missing.

Mr. Rapozo: So that structure would be able to build.

Ms. Yukimura: No, no, no. There is supposed to be another section...
additional section that says, nowhere 40 feet, but I don’t see that.

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: I don’t see that.

Mr. Furfaro: (d).

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: We don’t have (d).

Ms. Yukimura: There isn’t the (d).

Mr. Furfaro: We don’t have it. It ends and then...

Ms. Yukimura: How come it is missing?

Mr. Furfaro: It is not there Jim.

Ms. Yukimura: Jim, it is on this one.

Mr. Rapozo: Oh, yes, you can see page 16 is cut off.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, something is... This is the one... In fact, what is
missing, there is a lot of things missing.
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. .
Mr. Kouchi: Some of us...

Ms. Yukimura: Oh, yes, it is cut off, (d) and (e) are cut off.

Mr. Rapozo: You might want to take another short recess.

Ms. Yukimura: I don’t know how that happened.

Mr. Kouchi: Glenn, does yours have it?

Ms. Yukimura: No, I think none of these copies have it. The previous one

which we gave with amendments. I don’t know why it is cut off. That is strange.

Let me just read you (d) then. 11 says, in cases where the applicable shoreline

setback line does not allow for a minimum buildable footprint for a single family

dwelling unit, the Commission may consider granting a variance under the

following guidelines. The front setback may be reduced...

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Again...

Ms. Yukimura: . . .where feasible to allow for a minimum buildable

footprint, the side setback may be reduced so and so... (c), the minimum building

footprint may be reduced...

Ms. Iseri-Carvaiho: Councilmember Yukimura, again, I know this was

raised numerous times when we talked about the vacation rentals about going off of

amendments that are not in writing.

Ms. Yukimura: That is true.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: So we need to follow the same process. We just

utilized that in vacation rentals and we are doing exactly what our County Attorney

advised us not to do. Well, not we, but I think that is...

Ms. Yukimura: You are absolutely right, so I guess I will just recess, so

we can get this fixed.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho: Thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you.

There being no objections, the Committee recessed at 8:32 p.m.

The meeting was called back to order at 8:56 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Ms. Yukimura: We were discussing... now, let me see what page that is.

Mr. Furfaro: 15.
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Ms. Yukimura: It is still 15. Actually, it is page 10 and 11 and out of that

came the question from Councilmember Rapozo about how the variance system
works and that is on page 15. So you will see that if they are not a permitted use,
they will then be able to apply for a variance if it is regarding a dwelling unit which
is what we are talking about in terms of repairs or replacement. We say that a
variance may be granted, but there is a certain procedure to follow. First, the front
yard setback can be reduced. We are leaving some of this to the discretion of the
Planning Commission and Public Works, then the side setback and the minimum
buildable footprint which is normally 2,100 could go to 1,500 square feet. And then
it says, if the (inaudible) approaches are done to the maximum extent practicable,
the calculated shoreline setback may be reduced provided that under no
circumstances shall the shoreline setback line be less than 40 feet. So one of the
ways of... oh, and then you should look at (e) as well. Provided further that any
new structures approved within the shoreline setback area shall not be eligible for
protection by shoreline hardening during the life of the structure and this shall be
in agreement that is recorded in the Bureau of Conveyances. If you read the
Brescia case, this recordation is really important because it gives notice to any
future buyer. So if you go back to that basic variance procedure for a dwelling unit,
you will see that the minimum setback would be 40 feet and one option was for us to
make it less than 40 feet, but everyone that has been involved in drafting this bill
was against doing that. So, instead, we made the exception through the exception of
natural disasters declared by the President or the Governor and that takes us back
to pages 10 and 11. Page 10 applies to repairs and page 11, paragraph 6 applies to
rebuilding where...

Mr. Rapozo: (Inaudible) to repairs, you know, because you are
clarifring or classifying it by 50% or less than 50%, so then, obviously, it is just
repairing an existing structure, but if they are going to actually remove or rebuild,
what if at that time the shoreline setback is 15 feet? If the shoreline is 15 feet away
from their...

Ms. Yukimura: In most cases, it is 20 because that is the existing setback.

Mr. Rapozo: No, no, we don’t know that.

Ms. Yukimura: No, no, right now, the law is, so usually it was 20 feet.

Mr. Rapozo: No, but what I am saying is, at the time of the event and
all of a sudden now the shoreline is 15 feet away from the old structure, that is why
I am saying, I think... And I think that is what Toryn folks were saying was you
give them the variance opportunity, so they can go before the Commission and they
can express their concern in front the Commission. And at that time, the
Commission can provide a variance. Now, maybe we have to put language that
would provide that opportunity for the Commission to go less than the 40. Because,
I mean, it is almost like defeating the purpose of the bill because what you are
having, in essence, in that scenario that I just gave was that, now, you have a
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structure that is 15 feet away or 20 feet away from the shoreline.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Mr. Rapozo: As opposed to going before the Commission and
expressing their... because right now, it is anybody, anybody. You could have
enough buildable area in your lot, but you still would be able to build up close
because of this.

Ms. Yukimura: Anybody who is destroyed by natural hazard.

Mr. Rapozo: And, you know, many of the lots and I won’t say all
because I know there are some smaller lots along the beach, but many of the lots
are big lots and you could move back 40 feet.

Ms. Yukimura: Right.

Mr. Rapozo: But this would basically say, hey, you know what, as long
as your home got damaged by... and what concerns me is not just by natural
disaster, it is by fire, termites or accidental means. If I drove my truck through my
house accidentally, I could rebuild my house and get away from the setback
variance.

Ms. Yukimura: You know what, as long as it is not more than 50%
damaged because there is a CZO provision that says that if it is more than 50%,
then you can’t rebuild.

Mr. Rapozo: I just think that it needs to be in the variance process and
not an automatic such as this.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, you know, we could also... I mean, the variance
process requires that you go below 40 feet, but you could also... if you can go the
minimum 40 feet, you shall, but if you cannot, then you can rebuild in place. That
would make the subset of rebuilding in place smaller, so... and I actually thought
about wording it that way and then I thought, oh, this is getting administratively
difficult, but we could do that.

Mr. Rapozo: Yes, but...

Ms. Yukimura: But you are right because in some cases, they could go
back.

Mr. Rapozo: Right, the big lot and they will just keep their home upfront and
the whole purpose of this bill, again, is to make sure we protect the.., if you look at
the purpose, it is...

Ms. Yukimura: Then what happens is that 40 feet may not be the actual
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setback based on coastal erosion rates, but it would be the minimum. Okay, let me
think about that. Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: I was just going to say the same thing. If it stayed here
and add language that said, you know, provided that the lot size is small enough to
not allow setback through the normal processes or whatever. I mean, that concept
that it really has to be a lot that would not be buildable any other way. But, you
know, if you change the variance to say 20 feet, somewhere else, I would be afraid if
you opened Pandora’s box.

Ms. Yukimura: And I think that was the concern of the committees.

Mr. Rapozo: And that is why I think, with the variance process, the
burden is on the landowner now. You go to Planning Commission, you prove to
them that you need a variance as opposed to having it dealt for you here. You
explain your circumstances that prohibit you or prevent you from building on your
existing lot because of a hurricane, a fire, termites, whatever.

Ms. Yukimura: You know, we could move them to a variance process, but
say then, that if they cannot abide by the 40 feet, then it is replacement only under
very small circumstances.

Mr. Bynum: I was just thinking, if it said here provided that the lot is
not buildable given the normal constraints of this law, maybe it will be more than
40 feet even.

Chair Asing: I think you are going to open up the question. When you
make the statement not buildable, you know, what do you mean by not buildable.
You might say not buildable because I want to put a 3,000 square foot house versus
if I do a 2,000 square foot house, I could do it, but it becomes unbuildable because I
want a 3,000 square foot house.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, that is protected because: 1) you can’t build bigger
than the footprint of the original house and then if you go into the variance process,
it probably means you are going to be held to a minimum footprint (2,100 or 1,500).

Chair Asing: (Inaudible).

Mr. Rapozo: It went down to 1,500 I believe.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, the main minimum because let’s see...

Mr. Rapozo: No, but Kaipo is right. Who determines what that is
because like Thorn said, you could move your house back, you have a small lot, you
have a smaller footprint, but you can go two (2) story and you have double your
square footage. So it is who determines what is buildable or not and I think that is
your question and that is a good question.
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so there is a situation...

Chair Asing: And I am not sure, you know, Councilmember Yukimura,
when you talk about footprint.

Ms. Yukimura: We define that too.

Chair Asing: Well, no, Mel brings up, you know, the question of when
you say footprint and I am not sure what footprint means.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Chair Asing: What the definition means because you can take a
footprint and if you go up two (2) story, you know, I don’t know how you define
footprint.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, it is on page 3 about one-third of the way down.

Mr. Furfaro: Building footprint shall mean?

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Mr. Rapozo: That is basically what is on the ground, so if you have a
3,000 square foot which is 1,500 top and bottom, your footprint is 1,500.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Mr. Rapozo: That would be your footprint.

Ms. Yukimura: Uh huh.

Mr. Rapozo: For the purpose of this section.

Ms. Yukimura: That is correct.

Mr. Rapozo: I don’t know if there is any other application, but...

Ms. Yukimura: We did have the input from Planning on this. Mr. Milnes
and Mr. Laureta and we did go over it. I mean, we may have overlooked something,
but I think we checked with Building, I am not sure. So let’s go back to the... what
I am hearing is the thought that if... no matter whether it is damaged by non
coastal causes or coastal causes that we should not allow a rebuilding. We should
require them to abide by the new law, the new setbacks, but if... I mean, okay, so in
one case, what is a feasible rebuilding, right? Would you say that a 15 foot wide
house by a 100 feet or... I guess you are right Councilmember Rapozo. You could do
a 15 by... no, you are still talking footprint. If you do a 15 by a 100 feet just the
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footprint, you would get your minimum lot size, but that would be a very odd
building.

Mr. Rapozo: Right.

Ms. Yukimura: And so there may be certain situations where they cannot
effectively rebuild.

Mr. Rapozo: Right, and in that case, they would have to go through a
variance process and, again, the mechanism that they go through may have to be
massaged.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, and that is what we are grappling with. We thought
about massaging the minimum setback of 40 feet.

Mr. Rapozo: And I will leave it to the discretion of the Commission. I
mean, again, only in circumstances that you described. If there is buildable area, I
am sorry, you have to go back. If you have buildable area on your lot, then you
should not be protected. You have to move your house back, I am sorry. Again, we
will allow you to reduce your front yard setback, your side yard setback to
accommodate your buildable area, but I can tell you right now, I wouldn’t put it past
anyone and this is just the ex-cop saying, you want to rebuild your house, you just
burn it down. Burn it down, you can rebuild your house in the exact same location
even if you had a 100 foot to go in the back, it wouldn’t matter because you would
qualifr. So I think we have to stick to the intent of the law.., of the intent of this
bill and it really is to protect the coastline. In cases where, unfortunately, your lot
is small enough or too small, then you have a couple of options. You shrink your
house and I don’t know how many lots are out there that are shaped in a way that
you really would be... you only would have a 15 foot wide home and that seems like
a pretty narrow lot. I cannot imagine that being too many people. In those cases,
obviously, they would have to go through a variance process, and, unfortunately, it
is not this body that determines the variance, it is the Commission. Again, those
are just things that are beyond our control and, you know, the public will have an
opportunity to participate in that. The neighbors and so forth, so, I mean, we can
only do so much legislatively. I think the Administration has some burden and I am
just saying that, what I don’t want to see if a property owner having an advantage
over someone else because, unfortunately, they had the misfortune of their house
burning down. Nonetheless, you know, the rule should be the same and they should
abide by the current setback law.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, well, you know, this Committee is grappling with
the same thing the drafting committee kind of grappled with, but I think your
comments give some good guidance. I think the discussion here helps.

Mr. Rapozo: And I have to say that the committee that you chaired
with all those experts and Planning and so forth, took care a lot of the technical
issues that we don’t have to hash out here. We don’t have to guess about that and
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. .
we appreciate that because that would take a lot of time. So, I mean, you know, it is
just these things that we do have control over that is left for us to hash.

Ms. Yukimura: They are very significant policy decisions and that is
really something the Council needs to address. Okay, anymore guidance or
thoughts?

Mr. Rapozo: The other concern, Councilmember Yukimura was the fee
and, again, I don’t know what the other islands charge. This is a fee for the
variance. We are showing $300, again, you are now... you know, you are asking our
employees to go and do work and I don’t know what that number needs to be.
Again, I asked that we do a comparable check with the other islands and we didn’t
get that done, so we may have to wait to see. If that is what it is, it is and we will
go with it, but I am looking...

Ms. Yukimura: I believe this figure came from the Planning Department.
We can go back to them to confirm that they are in concurrence with it and we can
even.., since we are going to defer, we could go check with the other islands.

Mr. Rapozo: I am intending on following up with the rest with the
other islands.

Ms. Yukimura: So you are going to take care of that?

Mr. Rapozo: I think that they need to pay...

Mr. Furfaro: I guess the question is, really, are we recovering our
administrative...

Mr. Rapozo: And that is what I am asking.

Mr. Furfaro: And that is the question.

Ms. Yukimura: And I think all of us feel we should at least the
administrative cost.

Mr. Furfaro: Yes.

Mr. Rapozo: Yes, because you are going for a variance. You are
expecting our employees to go over and beyond their normal duty because it is a
variance. It is not your normal application, so...

Ms. Yukimura: And because of variance goes before the Planning
Commission, it is a lot more work in process.

Mr. Rapozo: Exactly.
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Mr. Furfaro: It is something that you are going to research Mr...

Mr. Rapozo: Well, our staff will, but I will make sure that they do.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, and then the other change came from
Councilmember Rapozo on page 17 which gives a process for the removal of
unpermitted structure.

Mr. Rapozo: And this really was... the original draft was made... made
a... the person was able to get an after-the-fact permit and that is the original draft
of this bill and I didn’t think that was appropriate. I think this bill was real clear in
the intent to protect the coastline and that we would not issue any after-the-fact
permits that, in fact, if you had an illegal or an unpermitted structure within the
setback area that it needed to come down, that complies with our zero tolerance
resolution, it complies with the State’s zero tolerance resolution (DLNR) and I don’t
think we should be any different. If in fact, we went out as a Council, unanimously
said, zero tolerance, then we should put that to action in our ordinance and that is
what we have done. Granted, not all the members on this Council voted for the
resolution and I am hoping that we can get support. In fact, Planning Department,
Mr. Milnes, requested that we put in language to give him the vehicle to do this
removal.., to be able to go in and enforce these unpermitted structures and have the
owners remove the structures that are unpermitted. The language here allows for
due process, it allows for an opportunity for an appeal which I think is fair, but, yet,
at the end of the day, you know, I think we stick to the intent of the legislation of
our resolutions and it is something I think we have to send the message out much
like we are doing with TVR’s and vacation rentals and bed and breakfast. I think
this is no different. I think it is time that if we want to seriously protect the
coastline... if we want to seriously protect our landowners, then we have to take
these drastic actions. One of the concerns right now, I guess, for me, was, you are
looking at a $300 variance even if you went into an after-the-fact permit schedule of
I think the original draft was $7,300, that is a small price to pay to build a structure
without a permit. Should you get caught, you come in, you pay your $7,300 and you
get your permit. I mean, I think that is not the way to do business. You come up
front, you get your variance, you pay your fee, let us know what you are going to do
and then you build your structure should you be able to get the variance. For those
landowners that are actually just disregarding the process because it is cheaper.
They get their project built a lot faster. They don’t have to deal with the permitting
process and should they get caught, they write a check and they are free and clear. I
think that is unacceptable, so that is the purpose for this language and I am hoping
that we can get support on this and I appreciate it you putting it in your
amendment.

Mr. Furfaro: Mr. Rapozo, let me ask you, on those 10 items there, was
it... should this be in a sequence of the removal of the unpermitted structure, the
Director shall, upon receipt of the complaint of an illegal structure first, I think,
conduct a site inspection. I mean, is the intent to... I mean, we are sending a notice
out and that could be interpreted and we will do the site inspection later.
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Ms. Yukimura: Well, actually it says, oh, notify the owner of the problem

in writing and request the site inspection.

Mr. Rapozo: Right. Yes, because, you know, and let’s use the example
of the Pono Kai Seawall. The reason I use that is because, initially, we didn’t know
whose jurisdiction it was. We had no idea, so, obviously, we need to determine who
the owner is and then find out which agencies actually govern it.

Mr. Furfaro: I guess right now after I look at it, the sequence doesn’t
really matter.

Mr. Rapozo: Yes, and mostly because most of these projects will be
private property and we are going to need permission to get on that property.

Mr. Furfaro: Understood.

Mr. Rapozo: And the site inspection because... and this is totally
subject to critique because, you know, this is, again, new territory for us here on
Kaua’i and it was the best, I think, that we could put together. I think it meets the
need. I think it pretty much covers what we need to cover and it gives the
landowner an opportunity to, like I said, to basically state their case should they
disagree.

Ms. Yukimura: And it also gives discretion that there may be some
situations where removal might not be the best.

Mr. Rapozo: And in the case of Pono Kai, I think we heard from the
experts today that removal may not be.

Ms. Yukimura: And you will see, also, while you are on page 17. On page
16 at the bottom, we do preclude variances for structures that are unpermitted
unless the Commission determines that it is necessary to protect public health and
safety and that removal will cause a greater public harm. So we have tried to give
some leeway there.

Mr. Bynum: So in 17, where it says where appropriate (inaudible) the
only time it wouldn’t be appropriate is if it met the criteria here and 16(d)? Because
that was an illegal unpermitted structure, so it is going to have to...

Ms. Yukimura: No, I think it actually... it might still not be worthy of a
permit, but there may be even so the decision whether to keep it there or remove it
because the harm of removal might be worse than the harm of keeping it there. It is
a terrible position to be in, but I think (inaudible).., but they wouldn’t get a permit
in that case, right? That is a good question though. Now, I know it is getting late,
so if we can go maybe just page by page as quickly as possible to see if there are any
questions that pop up and then we are.., we have determined that we are going to
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defer this, but I want us to at least have some discussion, so at the next time, we
are not in the same place that we are today.

Chair Asing: Let me throw a little curveball.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Chair Asing: What is the intent of this bill?

Ms. Yukimura: To protect the shoreline and to protect property and
human life.

Chair Asing: How would it affect something like the Lemke property in
Anahola?

Ms. Yukimura: Is that the ‘Aliomanu?

Chair Asing: ‘Aliomanu. What would be the pluses and minuses to a
unit like that? Where I am coming from is I... you know, I’d like to and I am a
strong advocate of personal property rights and in the case of the Lemke property,
you know, the house is just hanging in the air. I’d say about a quarter of the house
is hanging in the air... a little less than a quarter, but, to me, it looks like a quarter
of the house is hanging and it is no fault there, you know, I don’t believe they
caused anything, so the question that I have is, is it possible that they could not
build?

Ms. Yukimura: Well, let me first say that this bill will prevent cases in
the future like the Lemke case where they are so vulnerable to destruction and
damage from the ocean. If it is applied right now and I am not totally familiar.
There is an existing house and what is the owner’s desire? To repair it and keep it?

Chair Asing: I believe so.

Ms. Yukimura: If there is an existing house...

Chair Asing: They wanted to build, I am not exactly sure what really
happened.

Ms. Yukimura: Assuming that it was a lawfully existing structure, they
would be allowed to repair their house, but...

Mr. Rapozo: I don’t know if repair is possible. That house is almost all
in the water.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, then it is actually not any laws that is taking away
their right to build it, it is actually the ocean that is taking away the right to build.
I mean, even if they were given...
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Chair Asing: What my concern is, if you are too stringent in the

setback, then it could prevent them from building the unit. That is the question that
Ihave.

Mr. Rapozo: And that is why I feel it needs to be in the variance
process, so now that family could go to Planning Commission and say, no fault of
ours and if I want to build the house, a house on my property, unfortunately
because the property is so small, you know, I am going to need some space. I don’t
think we can deny them the opportunity to build; however, they will be tied to some
restriction based on the erosion of that area.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, right now, I believe there is a 20 foot setback
requirement in place right now. It is the existing law, so, I mean the question is,
how does the existing law apply to them?

Chair Asing: I am not talking about the existing law, I am talking
about, you know, you are passing a bill now and I am just concerned because I
haven’t gone into detail on all of this to find out exactly what the impact is on

personal property rights and that is my concern. Because when I read this and see,
you know, under findings and purpose, I see beach loss and reduced public access
as, you know, one of the criterias and on the top, protection of life and property, you
know, I am not exactly sure what this bill is attempting to do.

Mr. Rapozo: You know, your example brings up an interesting thought
because using the existing language, where would that person build?

Mr. Bynum: 40 feet?

Mr. Rapozo: No, they can build in the original footprint.

Chair Asing: Let me read you something here. I am not going to say
who called. I won’t mention the name... called and it is the Rodrigues house that is
hanging and not Lemke, so my apology to Lemke. I had the wrong name and it is
Rodrigues.

Mr. Rapozo: I didn’t realize Hö’ike was live.

Chair Asing: And they would not be able to rebuild. When I see this
now, now I am more concerned about this bill.

Ms. Yukimura: They would not be able to rebuild under the existing law
or under the new law?

Chair Asing: Well, I don’t know. I may be...

Mr. Rapozo: Obviously, it has to be someone that saw this bill that
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called. I don’t know (change side of tape)... now, and this is what I was trying to say
before you got that note. The word.., where the lot sits today... where the house
sits today, under the existing language, this current bill right now, this draft, this
amendment, they would be able to build on the existing footprint, but their existing
footprint is half in the water and half out, so where can they build? Five (5) feet
now?

Ms. Yukimura: Like I say, it is not the law that is preventing them from
rebuilding, it is actually the ocean that is preventing them from...

Mr. Rapozo: I know, but I am using this as a graphic example because
if...

Ms. Yukimura: And you actually, you know...

Mr. Rapozo: I don’t want to have to get the chalkboard, but I can see
the problem because, right now, if you use the existing footprint, you are going to
have to put part of that house on stilts, but this law would allow you to do that.

Ms. Yukimura: Actually not because if it is not a hurricane related
coastal disaster, they would not be allowed to rebuild. If it is a normal coastal
process and because they will be in harm’s way and the question is, why would we
put them in harm’s way? Now that... the more complicating factor is when they
want to build a retaining wall or harden their shoreline...

Chair Asing: Well, let’s not go there. I mean, well, no, the let’s not talk
about whether they need to put a hardened...

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so you are just talking about rebuilding?

Chair Asing: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: And...

Chair Asing: I mean, whether you put the wall on or you don’t put the
wall, you know, the so-called experts claim is the wall is not going to help. It is
going to affect other areas and even the wall itself might not.., in the long haul,
protect the property and that is the experts.

Ms. Yukimura: And I don’t know that rebuilding the house in its existing
footprint is going to, in the long run, protect the property either.

Chair Asing: And that is my concern when you say existing footprint,
you know.

Ms. Yukimura: Like I say, I don’t know that there is any law that can
protect the property.
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Mr. Rapozo: That is a pretty small lot.

Ms. Yukimura: In the long run.

Mr. Rapozo: That is a pretty small lot they have there. It is not a very
big lot.

Ms. Yukimura: That is what I mean. I mean it may not be the law that is
taking away any property rights, it is the forces of nature that are making the
property kind of unbuildable. And you will put people in harm’s way if they live in
that house because it is already half in the ocean. I haven’t seen it myself recently.

Mr. Rapozo: It is in bad shape.

Ms. Yukimura: But that is what I mean. I don’t know if there is any law
that can protect it.

Mr. Rapozo: And, again, I will just go back to my original statement
about the variance. That is why... then you have that opportunity to evaluate these
cases on a case by case basis.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, those are all really good questions and good
discussions that this is... this bill does represent a chance for us to prevent these
kinds of problems in the future. To me, that is its greatest importance, but in the
meantime, we also have to address existing lots and existing buildings, you know,
and that is what this bill is trying to do. Look at the long range and also look at the
short range impacts. Now, would you like to me just go over page by page or how
would you like to proceed? I think we can do it in about 10 or 15 minutes.

Mr. Rapozo: That is fine. I think, you know, I don’t know if anybody
had the opportunity to read this... I know the Chair said he didn’t have an
opportunity to read it, so...

Ms. Yukimura: So the first part, of course, is the findings and purpose
and the Chair has already made reference to it. At the end of the findings and
purpose, are all the laws, the enabling legislation both at the Federal and State,
that enable the counties to do this law. The applicable section which is at the
bottom half of page 2 says that this shall be applied to all abutting properties of...
all properties abutting the shoreline and then we have also a second criteria. They
are located within 500 feet because sometimes there is just a road between
properties, so they are not abutting anymore, but they are still subject to wave
action and it is left to the Planning Director, so they can pull themselves out of the
applicability if they can show that they are not within coastal influences. And then
pages 3 and 4 and 5 and 6 are all definitions and this is really where the technical
help has been very helpful. I’ll let you just skim it for a minute. Can I go on?
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Mr. Rapozo: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Then Section... on page 7, this is kind of the core of the
determination of where the setback is because it talks about how we establish the
setback line and as was mentioned in a prior meeting, thank to Planning
Department input, we have.., we give the owners of small lots a choice or they can
choose whether to do a study, a coastal erosion study or just abide by a pretty
established setback measured by feet (a definite setback).

Chair Asing: Which is this table there?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, so if the average lot depth, then we are talking the
definitions about how to measure the average lot depth is 100 feet or less then the
minimum setback is 40 feet. If they dispute that, they can do a coastal study and
then abide by the coastal erosion rate.

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you for changing that. More than 180 feet and
adjusting that to 90. That was the...

Ms. Yukimura: But for larger lots, they have to go with the larger of the
setback. Either the established setback or the coastal erosion study because they
have the leeway to do that. We have a coastal erosion rate times 70 or a coastal
erosion rate times 100... those depend on whether the building is a wooden building
or a stone, concrete building. We think the larger buildings will be stone or concrete
and that is the reason for.., and it is very well established that a life of a wooden
building is about 70 years. Number (e) at the bottom, no zoning amendment,
general amendment, General Plan amendment, Development Plan amendment or
subdivision shall be approved without a coastal erosion study and the shoreline
setback line. That is maybe one of the most important of the long range impacts of
this bill because as I said, it will allow the design of the lots to be... to take into
account the coastal erosion rates and, therefore, hopefully we won’t have, you know,
we won’t have the ocean lapping upon a building because our lots will have been
designed to allow the needed setback. And then on page 8, we have established the
minimum shoreline setback of 40 feet. The experts tell us that at 20 feet, people get
nervous actually living within 20 feet of the shoreline, so there is that 20 feet and
then another 20 feet which is a storm buffer. It is for large storms or heavy wave
action. I think there was one park in Maui that in one instance of high waves...

Chair Asing: (Inaudible) on page...

Ms. Yukimura: Where we are talking about?

Chair Asing: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: On page 8, Section 8-27.4.

Chair Asing: Oh, okay.
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Ms. Yukimura: And then we have 8-27.6, prohibited activities in the

shoreline setback area. Most of it follows the State statute. Most of the wording is
taken from the State statute except (b) at the bottom where we put in some wording
about coastal dunes and protecting coastal dunes. And then we have eliminate
most of page 9 and if you would look at the bottom of page 9, that is where the
section starts on permitted structures and activities within the shoreline setback
area and that lists things that are permitted almost as of a right. This will be...
this determination will be made by the Planning Director, so, you know, an
applicant will apply if the Director determines that it is a permitted use, then he
will just issue a... what do you call, the shoreline setback letter with that
authorization. In that section of what is a permitted use are the two (2) sections
that we discussed earlier which are the tough sections... what do you allow as a
repair of structure and what do you allow as a rebuilding and you have given me
some guidance on that, so we will try to make some changes there. And it allows
minor structures and we define what minor structures are, so that then takes us to
page 12.

There you will see shoreline setback structure and activity determinations.
This outlines the process by which people will apply for a shoreline determination
and, you know, show that they’ve established the certified shoreline, that the
certified shoreline is current and then they will get their coastal erosion rates or
they will use the flat distance that were set in the charts and then they will say
what they want to build either within the setback area or just without, you know...
the dwelling unit will be set right outside of the setback area and that is the
process. And then the next section talks about variances. These are things that
aren’t outright permitted, so they have to get a variance to be located in the
shoreline setback area and this is done by the Commission. This decision is made
by the Commission.

Mr. Furfaro: And we are going to get an evaluation of that variance,
administrative fee, right?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, we are. So that outlines the variance application and
then the next section on page 15 is the criteria for approval of a variance, so this is
the guidance to the Planning Commission about how they make their decision about
whether to grant a variance or not and a lot of this is taken from the State statute
(a lot of the wording). In fact, most of the wording on page 15 is State statute
except number 11 is that process of determining a variance for a single family
dwelling unit. And then, yes, so all of that is basically variance criteria language
and then, finally, on page 17, basically, the enforcement will be done through
Chapter 205A which is the State statute regarding coastal zoned management, and
then we have Councilmember Rapozo’s more specific and detailed procedure with
respect to unpermitted structures.

And then there are penalties in the middle of page 17. There is a provision for
appeal of the Director’s decision in case either the applicant or the public feels that
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the Director’s decision was flawed in any way, they can appeal that although we
have a requirement of showing probably harm or public harm. And then, finally, at
the bottom of page 17, this makes clear that we are superceding the shoreline
setback rules that are presently in existence and I think they were passed in 1979
or something like that. They are really old, but it also allows the Planning
Commission if they need to promulgate additional rules and regulations as long as
they are consistent with this law. And, finally, this ordinance.., or forgot that I just
put that in tonight. This ordinance takes effect 30 days after its approval... I am
just thinking about giving Planning the time to set up administratively to start
processing all of this and I just thought of it tonight, but you can think about it over
the next two (2) weeks. And then it also says that, you know, if, at the time of the
effective date of this ordinance, a permit has already been granted and that is
grandfathered in, but if there are subsequent permits on that development that
haven’t yet been issued, then this thing applies. So in other words, maybe the
zonings already passed, but they still have to get a Class IV zoning permit or a...
then they have to abide by the setback requirements, so that is it in summary. That
took about 15 minutes. Are there any questions? I know this is a lot of material to
absorb.

Mr. Rapozo: I guess this has been run through the County Attorney’s
Office?

Ms. Yukimura: No, it hasn’t.

Mr. Furfaro: Maybe we should do that.

Mr. Rapozo: I think some of them... some of the.., within the next two
(2) weeks I guess if anyone has questions.

Ms. Yukimura: Do you want to...

Mr. Rapozo: The one I think which is probably not a real issue is that
issue that you put in about the building permit prior to building permit if they had
subsequent or preliminary approval and that is all. I mean, if we can just run it
through to have them...

Ms. Yukimura: You want to run through this last provision?

Mr. Rapozo: Uh huh.

Ms. Yukimura: Ask them to look at this last provision? Is there anything
else?

Mr. Rapozo: No, but I don’t know if there is anything else that... I
know Kaipo had some concerns about property rights and he mentioned those. If
there is some concern, then we need to have them heard. Not necessarily in an
executive session, but...
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Ms. Yukimura: The question...

Mr. Rapozo: I think using the scenario that he used.

Ms. Yukimura: I am just thinking that it is not about the law, it is about
the ocean, but if we can craft something, we can send it in. You know, we are going
to spend a lot of staff time working to try to quickly encapsulate the requirements
for the vacation rental bill, so we can give them enough time to respond. If we send
it out on Friday, they will have 10 days maybe and that is going to take a lot of
work and I just want you to know that. Anyway, I am going to just send this
question and the other one regarding Kaipo’s case study. Is that alright?

Mr. Furfaro: Yes.

Chair Asing: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, any other questions or comments? Councilmember
Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: I will just make a really quick comment that I am very
appreciative of all the work that has gone into this and (inaudible) these coastal
issues play out at Planning over the last how many years (10 years or so). There
are a lot of provisions in here that help protect the coastline and the community and
probably (inaudible) protect the owners of these properties and (inaudible)...
somehow we made a change over the years. Look at the old kama’ãina properties
were well set back from the coastline and that seemed to be the preference and then
it seemed to change to try to get as close to the water as humanly possible and, you
know, (inaudible) protect those landowners as well as the public and our coastline,
so thank you JoAnn and all of the Committee members for all of their hard work.
By doing that work upfront, I think as Councilmember Rapozo said that we are
really close pretty quickly into the process after bringing it before Council.

Ms. Yukimura: I do want to recall that when the Hyatt was permitted or
was granted its zoning, we did set them back I forget how many feet.

Mr. Furfaro: 120.

Ms. Yukimura: Was it that? Anyway, and they were quite reluctant. I
mean it was something that was imposed on them, but they were the first to open
after Hurricane Iniki because they...

Mr. Furfaro: I also want to point out that you also had a setback at the
Hilton that also had the building elevated and 120 foot setback and they never
closed after the hurricane.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, thank you for both those examples.

98



.
Mr. Furfaro: But they were both large setbacks.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, and I think the coastal waves were actually greater
on the southshore than on the eastside.

Mr. Furfaro: Well, that is true, but FEMA had to stay somewhere.

Ms. Yukimura: They did and that hotel was perfect, but so that was what
happened. There was some reluctance and it was an imposition of government, but
what Councilmember Bynum said is correct. It actually protected the property
owner in the long run and probably increased the value of the property over time.
And not only that, it was of great benefit... I recalled so well to the community
because with the Hyatt reopening quickly, we were able to announce the opening of
the island for tourism, you know, and in that way, able to kind of lure visitors back,
so that is an example of how this bill could really benefit both the landowners and
the community. Any other comments?

Mr. Rapozo: Just thank you JoAnn. You know, I wish we could have
recorded those telephone conference calls because it wasn’t always pleasant. It was,
at times, quite tough, but, you know, and I participated in a very few of them, but
nonetheless, appreciate your coordinating that effort and getting those experts all
together. It is hard to get these guys together on a same day at the same time for...
your conference calls, JoAnn, are long. It is... If you think she can talk a lot on the
Council, try get her on a conference call, so thank you very much, and, you know,
there is a lot more work to be done and I just look for the Committee to do the right
thing. Thank you.

Ms. Yukimura: Well, thank you for all of your comments. I do want to
acknowledge the people who helped us on this with their expertise and, you know,
my hope is that this is something that will be helpful to like the Planning
Department and the Commission because it is hopefully clear and easy to
administer and that it will also prevent some of the issues that are really tough
issues that we are having to deal with right now because we didn’t do a long range
kind of look. With that, I will ask for a motion to defer.

Mr. Furfaro: I also want to make one comment and I want to thank
Mr. Rapozo for this, but also the sensibility that we came to after understanding
Pono Kai on how we would handle the unpermitted variances that are outlined.
There are times that is critical to public health and safety that this may occur, so I
just wanted to add that. Thank you Councilwoman.

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you and I want to thank Councilmember Rapozo
because he has been of great support and he catches on so fast. Okay, with that, is
there a motion defer?

Upon motion duly made by Councilmember Furfaro, seconded by
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. .
Councilmember Rapozo, and unanimously carried, Bill No. 2226, Draft 1 was
deferred.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:49 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisa Ishibashi
Council Services Assistant

APPROVED at the Committee Meeting held on September 12, 2007:

A. YIJKIMURA
h r, Planning Committ Chair
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August 15, 2007
FLOOR AMENDMENT

BILL NO. 2204 - RELATiNG TO TRANSLENT VACATION RENTALS AND
BED AND BREAKFAST OPERATIONS

Introduced by: Shaylene Iseri-Carvaiho, Councilmember

Amend Sections 3 through 15 of Bill No. 2204, as follows:

SECTION 3. Section 8-3.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-3.3 Generally Permitted Residential Uses And Structures.
(a) The following types of residential uses and structures are

permitted in districts R-1, R-2, R-4, and R-6 so long as the dwelling unit
limitations established in Sec. 8-3.2 are not exceeded:

(1) Single-family detached dwellings;
(2) Accessory structures and uses, including one (1) guest

house on a lot or parcel 9,000 square feet or larger;
(3) Two (2) multiple-family dwelling units or two (2)

single-family attached dwelling units upon a parcel of record as of
June 30, 1980; and

(4) Notwithstanding subsection (3) above, multiple family and
single family attached dwellings developed pursuant to a Federal, State
or County housing program.
(b) Multiple-family and single-family attached dwellings are

permitted in districts R-10 and R-20 in addition to those types of residential
uses and structures permitted under Subsection (a) above.

(c) Public and private parks and home businesses are permitted in
all districts.

(d) Adult Family Boarding and Family Care Homes that comply with
all State Department of Social Services and Housing and State Department of
Health rules, regulations and requirements provided, however, that the
Planning Director may require a use permit for such applications that may
create adverse impacts to the health, safety, morals, convenience and welfare of
the neighborhood or community that the proposed use is located.

(e) Transient Vacation Rentals and Bed and Breakfast operations in
the designated Visitor Destination Areas established pursuant to Article 17 of
this Chapter. These uses are nrohibited in non-visitor destination areas
(VDAs).”

SECTION 4. Section 8-3.4, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-3.4 Uses And Structures In Residential Districts That Require A
Use Permit.
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The following uses and structures in residential districts require a

use permit:
(1) Botanical and zoological gardens.
(2) Cemeteries, mortuaries and crematoriums.
(3) Churches, temples, and monasteries.
(4) Clubs, lodges and community centers.
(5) Diversified and specialized agriculture and nurseries.

(6) Dormitories, guest and boarding houses; but not hotels

and motels.
(7) Golf courses.
(8) Medical and nursing facilities.
(9) Museums, libraries and public services and facilities.

(10) Private and public utilities and facilities, other than maintenance

and storage of equipment, materials, and vehicles.
(11) Project developments in accordance with Article 18 of

this Chapter.
(12) Retail shops and stores.
(13) School and day-care centers.
(14) Transportation terminals and docks.
(15) Three (3) or more -family dwelling units upon a parcel of record as

of June 30, 1980, in the R-1, R-2, R-4, or the R-6 District.
(16) Three (3) or more single-family attached dwelling units upon a

parcel of record as of June 30, 1980, in the R-1, R-2, R-4 or the R-6 District.

(17) Residential care homes.
(18) Adult Family Group Living Home.
[(19) Transient Vacation Rentals (TVR) in Residential Districts in

non-VDA areas; provided, however, if a minimum of seventy-five percent (75%)

of the property owners within a five hundred (500) foot radius (taken from the

property boundaries) of the property applying for the TVR oppose the Use

Permit request, the Use Permit shall be automatically denied.]

() Any other use or structure which the Planning Director finds to be

similar in nature to those listed in this Section and appropriate to the District.”

SECTION 5. Section 8-4.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is

hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-4.3 Generally Permitted Resort Uses And Structures.
The following types of uses and structures are permitted in RR-10 and

RR-20 Districts, so long as the dwelling unit limitations established in

Sec. 8-4.2 are not exceeded and provided that each use or structure is incidental

to or accessory to resort development:
(1) Accessory structures and uses
(2) Apartment hotels
(3) Automobile service and storage
(4) Barber shop and beauty shop
[(5) Bed and Breakfast operations]

) Commercial recreation
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() Gift shops
c7.) Golf courses
5) Home business
) Hotels
(Q) Laundromat
(j.) Libraries
() Motels
() Museums
(]4) Police and fire stations
(Is) Public parks and monuments
(j) Restaurants and food service
(17) Retail cleaning outlets
(IS) Retail clothing shops
(j) Retail food and drug shops
(Q) Shoe repair shops
i) Single family detached dwellings
[(23) Transient Vacation Rentals]”

SECTION 6. Section 8-4.5, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-4.5 Deve1opment Standards.
(a) Residential. Subject to the density and acreage limitations in the

particular Resort District as provided in Sec. 8-4.2, the standards for the
development of single family detached residential structures shall be the same
as those provided in Sec. 8-3.1.

(b) Hotels. Buildings containing hotel rooms shall be considered the
same as multiple family dwellings subject to the same standards as provided in
Secs. 8-3.5 through 8-3.8, inclusive, with the following exceptions:

(1) there is no maximum distance requirement from buildings
containing dwelling units to parking areas;

(2) only one (1) parking space must be provided for each
three (3) hotel rooms;

(3) the maximum allowable land coverage shall be fifty
percent (50%);
No hotel room in a structure containing more than three (3) rooms shall

be converted to a dwelling unit without first obtaining a Class IV Zoning
Permit.

(c) Motels. Development standards for motels shall be the same as
those for multiple family dwellings as provided in Secs. 8-3.5 through 8-3.8,
inclusive, with the following exceptions:

(1) parking spaces must be within one hundred fifty (150) feet
of the dwelling unit or motel room served;

(2) at least one (1) parking space shall be provided for each
motel room.
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[(d) Bed and Breakfast Operations. Development standards shall be

the same as those for single-family detached dwellings as provided in

Sees. 8-3.5 through 8-3.8, inclusive, with the following exceptions:

(1) building of use shall be a single-family detached

dwelling unit.
(2) operation shall be owner- or operator-occupied.

(3) operation shall consist of no more than two (2) bedrooms.

(4) each operation shall be limited to only one meal (breakfast)

that is provided to the guest(s) by the operator.
(5) one off-street parking stall per guest bedroom.

(6) only one sign no larger than three (3) square feet shall

be permitted.
(7) no direct illumination of the sign.
(8) sign shall include the permit number for the operation.

(9) operation shall not be allowed on properties that have

existing Additional Dwelling Units (A1)U).
(10) permits issued shall be valid for two years, but would be

renewable provided there is no evidence that the B&B has not complied

with the general limitations pertaining to B&Bs, or with any specific

conditions of approval that may have been included with the permit

approval.
(11) a renewal fee of $150, deposited into the County’s

General Fund.
(12) the operator shall provide the Planning Department with

a 24-hour contact information thirty (30) days at the time of permitting.

(13) renewal requests for permits shall be accompanied by proof

of a valid TAT license and GET license.
(14) any advertisement for an approved B&B (internet,

newspaper, magazine, brochure, other media) shall include the approved

permit number for the operation.
(e) Transient Vacation Rentals. Development standards shall be the

same as those for single-family detached dwellings as provided in Sees. 8-3.5

through 8-3.8, inclusive, with the following exceptions:
(1) only one sign no larger than three (3) square feet shall

be permitted.
(2) no direct illumination of the sign.
(3) sign shall include the permit number for the operation.

(4) an owner’s name or contact person on-island along with a

telephone number shall be filed with the zoning permit.
(5) a “rules of conduct” shall be filed with each zoning permit

application. A “rules of conduct” shall be established for each dwelling

unit and shall inform the occupants about noise generation in general

and in relation to gatherings (not limited to parties, events, and

activities.), hours for gatherings, types of activities allowed, and other

important information about the neighborhood to reduce the impacts of

the visitor use of the property.]
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) Other Permitted Uses. Parking service, open space and other
requirements applicable to each use other than dwelling units shall be the
same as the regulations established in the district other than Resort where
such uses are permitted and regulated.

() Other Requirements. Other requirements for development
standards in resort districts are as follows:

(1) The Planning Director or the Planning Commission may
revise the requirements if the plan review required for a zoning permit
indicates that the specific nature of the overall development reasonably
warrants the revisions.

(2) The Planning Commission may require the dedication of
adequate public access ways not less than six (6) feet in width to
publicly-owned land or waters and may require the preservation of all
historic and archaeologic sites, known or discovered on the parcel subject
to development.”

SECTION 7. Chapter 8, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended by adding a new Section 8-4.7 to read as follows:

“[Sec. 8-4.7 Non-Conforming Use Certificate for Bed and Breakfast Operations.
B&B facilities not in the VDA that obtained Use Permits prior to the

effective date of this Ordinance No. (insert number) shall be allowed to
continue as a Non-Conforming Use as provided in Section 8-23.2.1”

SECTION 8. Section 8-4.7, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended by appropriately renumbering the section as “Section 8-4.8.”

SECTION 9. Section 8-5.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-5.3 Generally Permitted Uses And Structures.
(a) Neighborhood Commercial. The following uses and structures are

permitted in neighborhood commercial districts:
(1) Accessory uses and structures
(2) Automobile services
[(3) Bed and Breakfast operations in the designated Visitor

Destination Areas established in Article 17 of this Chapter.]
) Churches, temples and monasteries
4) Clubs, lodges and community centers
) Household services
fi) Museums, libraries and public services
(7) Personal services, such as barber shops, laundromats, and

shoe repair shops
() Professional offices
(9) Public parks and monuments
]Q) Retail shops and stores
(ii) Restaurants and food services
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]) Single family detached dwellings on lots or parcels of no
less than six thousand (6,000) square feet, and to a density not to exceed
six (6) units per acre.

(14) Transient Vacation Rentals in the designated Visitor
Destination Areas established in Article 17 of this Chapter.
(b) General Commercial. The following types of uses and structures

are permitted in general commercial districts:
(1) Accessory uses and structures
(2) Automobile sales, repair and storage
(3) Automobile services
[(4) Bed and Breakfast operations in the designated Visitor

Destination Areas established in Article 17 of this Chapter.]
(4) Churches, temples and monasteries
(5) Clubs, lodges and community centers
(6) Commercial indoor amusement and parks
(7) Department stores
(8) Hotels and motels
(9) Household services

(10) Light manufacturing, such as handicrafts and garment
fabrication

(11) Minor food processing, such as cracked seeds, jellies,
candies and ice cream

(12) Museums, libraries and public services
(13) Offices and professional buildings
(14) Parking garages
(15) Personal services
(16) Public offices and buildings
(17) Public parks and monuments
(18) Research and development
(19) Restaurants and food services
(20) Retail sales
(21) Supermarkets and shopping centers
(22) Transient Vacation Rentals in the designated Visitor

Destination Areas established in Article 17 of this Chapter.
() Transportation terminals and docks
4) Warehouses
() Wholesale outlets”

SECTION 10. Section 8-5.4, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-5.4 Uses And Structures In Commercial Districts That Require A
Use Permit.

(a) Neighborhood Commercial. The following uses and structures in
neighborhood commercial districts require a use permit:

(1) Animal hospitals
(2) Automobile sales, repair and storage
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[(3) Bed and Breakfast operations in non-VDAsJ
(3) Botanical and zoological gardens
(4) Communications facilities
(5) Construction materials storage
(6) Diversified agriculture
(7) Food processing and packaging
(8) Light manufacturing
(9) Multiple family dwellings and single family attached

dwellings
(10) Private and public utilities and facilities
(11) Project development in accordance with Article 18 of this

Chapter
(12) Research and development
(13) Schools and day care centers
[(15) Transient Vacation Rentals in non-VDAs]
(14) Warehouses
(15) Any other use or structure which the Planning Director

finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this section and
appropriate to the District.
(b) General Commercial. The following uses and structures in

general commercial districts require a use permit:
(1) Animal hospitals
(2) Bars
(3) Botanic and zoologic gardens
[(3) Bed and Breakfast operations in non-VDAs]
(4) Commercial outdoor amusement
(5) Communications facilities
(6) Construction materials storage
(7) Diversified agriculture
(8) Food processing and packaging
(9) Nightclubs and cabarets
(10) Private and public utilities and facilities
(11) Project development in accordance with Article 18 of this

Chapter.
(12) Residential dwellings, detached, attached or multi-family
(13) Schools and day care centers
[(15) Transient Vacation Rentals in non-VDAs]
(14) Warehouses
(15) Any other use or structure which the Planning Director

finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this section and
appropriate to the Planning Director.”

SECTION 11. Section 8-17.1, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.1 Limitations On Location.
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Except as provided in this section, B&B operations, time share units,
time share plans and transient vacation rentals are prohibited.”

SECTION 12. Section 8-17.2, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.2 Permitted [Time Share] Locations.
Subject to the limitations contained in Sections 8-17.4 and 8-17.5, [B&B

operations,] time share units, time share pians and transient vacation rentals
are allowed:

(a) In Hotels in Resort or Commercial Districts; and
(b) In the Resort RR-1O and RR-20 Districts and multi-family

R-1O and R-20 Residential Districts when such districts are located
within the visitor destination areas of Po’ipã, LIhu’e, Wailua-Kapa’a or
Princeville, as more particularly designated on County of Kauai Visitor
Destination Area maps attached to Ordinance No. 436 and incorporated
herein by reference. The boundary lines established on these visitor
destination maps shall be transferred onto the official zoning maps for
reference purposes.

(c) Time share units and time share plans are prohibited in
the R-1, R-2, R-4 and R-6 Residential Districts.”

SECTION 13. Section 8-17.5, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.5 Existing Uses.
(a) Existing Time Share Units, Time Share Plans and Transient

Vacation Rentals [in Projects] Not Located in Visitor Destination Areas.
Nothing in this Article shall impair the use [in a project] of an existing time
share unit, an existing time share plan, or an existing transient vacation rental
that has been constructed with all necessary yermits, along with final building
insDection, as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 436 (September 22, 1982),
when such [project] is not located within the visitor destination areas
described in Section 8-17.2. All such existing time share units, time share
plans and transient vacation rentals [in such a project] shall be regulated
according to the terms, if any, of the project instruments. However, no
additional time share units, time share plans, or transient vacation rentals
shall be created [in such a project] after the effective date of this section, nor
shall the terms of the project instrument be amended or modified after the
effective date of this section in any manner that will allow an increase in the
number of time share units, time share plans, or transient vacation rentals
[within the project]. The uses left unimpaired by this subsection shall not be
lost by the failure to exercise the use unless it clearly appears that the use has
been abandoned for a period in excess of two ) years. This subsection shall
not apply to hotels in Resort or Commercial Districts. [Transient Vacation
Rentals and B&Bs that are in existence that are in accordance with this Section
shall be subject to the following:
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(1) The owner-operator shall establish proof of operation to
qualify for a Non-Conforming Use Certificate (NUC). Proof of
non-conformity may include records of occupancy or tax documents, such
as GET records, TAT records, and federal and/or State tax returns,

(2) Failure to apply for a NUC by (specify date) shall nullify
the ability to obtain a NTJC,

(3) Only one dwelling unit on a lot of record can be included in
anyTVRandB&B,

(4) Notice shall be provided to occupants concerning house
rules, neighborhood rules, code of conduct related to excessive noise,
lights, parking, garbage pick-up, recycling,

(5) A twenty-four (24) hour contact person on-island shall be
identified for each TVR and B&B,

(6) Any advertisement (internet, newspaper, magazine,
brochure, other media) of an approved TVR or B&B NUC shall include
the NUC number for the TVR or B&B,

(7) NTJCs shall be renewable every two years, with a fee,
provided that the TVR or B&B has operated within the limits of
approvals and can demonstrate continuous operations throughout the
previous year. Continuous operations shall be defined as having guests
that stayed a minimum of ninety (90) nights at the TVR or B&B
operation during the previous year, and

(8) A site and floor plan shall be filed with the NUC
application, and no interior lock-outs shall be permitted.]
(b) Existing [B&B operations,] Time Share Units, Time Share Plans

And Transient Vacation Rentals [in Projects] Located Within Visitor
Destination Areas. [Tme share units and time share plans in existing projects]
Time share units, time share plans, and transient vacation rentals located
within the visitor destination areas described in Section 8-17.2 shall be
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Section 8-17.4.

SECTION 14. Article 17, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is hereby
amended by adding a new Section 8-17.8, as follows:

Sec. 17-.8 Termination of Nonconforming Uses
The following section shall apply to all nonconforming uses of transient

vacation rentals, as defined in Sec. 8-1.5:
(a) Intent and Purpose. Where transient vacation rentals outside of

the visitor destination areas are not in conformity with the provisions of this
article, and where such uses are incompatible with the uses permitted in the
zoning district in which they are located, or where such uses are specifically
prohibited, it is the intent and purpose of this section to, in part:

(1) Require that the nonconforming uses be terminated
within a reasonable time; and

(2) Prescribe a reasonable amortization period; and
(3) Prescribe a reasonable period of time for the termination

of nonconforming uses.
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(b) Applicability.
(1) The provisions of this section shall apply to the uses

which hereafter become nonconforming due to adoption of ordinance.
(2) For uses classified as nonconforming at the effective date

of this ordinance, the period of termination shall be computed from the
effective date of this ordinance.
(c) Amortization for Nonconforming Uses.

(1) The nonconforming use described in section 8-17.5(a) may
continue for a period not to exceed eighteen (18) months after the
effective date of this ordinance and shall be discontinued entirely
within eighteen (18) months of the date of adoption of this ordinance as
codified in this section, subject to the following conditions:

(A) No such nonconforming use of land shall be
expanded or extended in any way either on the same or an

• adjoining property.
(B) Where such nonconforming use or any portion

thereof is discontinued for one hundred and eighty (180) days or
changed, any future use of the land shall be in conformity with
the provisions of this chapter.”

SECTION [141 ]. Ordinance material to be repealed is bracketed. New
ordinance material is underscored. When revising, compiling, or printing this
ordinance for inclusion in the Kaua’i County Code 1987, the brackets, bracketed
material, and underscoring shall not be included.

SECTION [151 ]. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval.”

(Material to be deleted is bracketed. New material is underscored. In printing this
ordinance, the brackets, bracketed material, and underscoring need not be
included.)
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August 15, 2007
FLOOR AMENDMENT

BILL NO. 2204 - RELATING TO TRANSIENT VACATION RENTALS AM)
BED AND BREAKFAST OPERATIONS

Introduced by: Ron Kouchi, Councilmember

Amend Bill No. 2204 by adding new Sections 8-17-8 and 9, as follows:

“Section 8-17.8 Nonconforming Use Certificates for Single-Family Vacation Rentals
In the State Agricultural Land Use District.

g) The purpose of this section is to provide a process to identify and
register those single-family transient vacation rentals in the state agricultural land
use_districts_as nonconforming uses which have been in lawful use prior to the
effective date of Hawai’i Revised Statutes Chapter 205-4.5 (June 4, 1976) and to
allow them to continue subject to obtaining a nonconforming use certificate as
provided for by this section.

The owner, operator, or proprietor of any single-family transient
vacation rental which is operating outside of a Visitor Destination Area and in the
state agricultural land use district on the effective date of this ordinance shall, by
February 29, 2008, obtain a nonconforming use certificate for single-family vacation
rentals.

) No nonconforming use certificate shall be issued by the Planning
Director unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Planning
Director that a dwelling unit was being used as a lawful vacation rental on an
ongoing basis and not as a single-instance event designed to escape an incoming
law. The Planning Director, in making the decision, shall take into consideration,
among other things, the following guidelines:

(1) The applicant had a State of Hawai’i general excise tax license
and transient accommodations tax license for the purpose of the lawful
operation of single-family transient vacation rentals for a period long enough
to demonstrate actual payment of taxes.

) That prior to the effective date of this ordinance, applicant had
deposits for reservations by transient guests in exchange for compensation
for use of subject property as a vacation rental,

) That applicant had transient guests occupy subject property in
exchange for compensation prior to the effective date of this ordinance, with a
pattern of consistency that evidences an ongoing and lawful enterprise, and

4) That on the effective date of this ordinance there were no
outstanding violations of State or County land use or planning laws,
including the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, and Shoreline Setback laws.

No nonconforming use certificate shall be used where a single-family
transient vaction rental is located on land designated “Agricultural” by State law,
unless:

(j) It was built prior to June 4, 1976; and
the applicant of a single-family transient vacation rental
executes an agreement in favor of the County in which the
applicant acknowledges and declares: (a) applicant’s land is
within the State’s agricultural district as classified by the State
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Land Use Commission and so long as such lands remain within
the State Agricultural District, the land shall be restricted to
the permitted uses by the Hawai’i Revised Statutes, Chapter
205, as it may be amended; and (b) any single-family transient
vacation rental on the applicant lands shall at all times comply
with any applicable dwelling requirements as authorized in
accordance with Hawai’i Revised Statutes, Chapter 205; and (c)
the applicant shall indemnify the County for any violations of
Hawai’i Revised Statutes, Chapter 205, as a result of applicant’s
sue of its single-family dwelling as a transient vacation rental;
and

() the applicant presents evidence to the Planning Director that
the applicant conducts a farming operation or agricultural
activities as authorized in accordance with Hawai’i Revised
Statutes, Chapter 205 and the single-family dwelling supports
such operation and activities; and

4) the applicant meets the requirements of Section 8-17.8(c).
) The owner, operator, or proprietor shall have the burden of proof in
establishing that the use is properly nonconforming. The following
documentation shall be provided to the Planning Director as evidence of a
nonconforming use: records of occupancy and tax documents, including all
relevant State of Hawai’i general excise tax filings, all relevant transient
accommodations tax filings, federal and/or State of Hawai’i income tax
returns for the relevant time period, reservation lists, and receipts showing
payment. Upon a preponderance of the evidence, the planning director shall
determine whether to issue a nonconforming use certificate for the single-
family transient vacation rental.

fl Failure to apply for a nonconforming use certificate by February 29,
2008. or a denial of an application or a revocation of a nonconforming use
permit where the owner, operator, or proprietor fails to request a hearing or
file an anneal pursuant to Section 8-17.9, shall mean that the alleged
nonconforming use is not a bona fide nonconforming use, and it shall be
treated as an unlawful use. The Planning Director shall prepare an
application form which shall be available to the public by November 30, 2007.

(g) The owner or lessee who has obtained a nonconforming use certificate
under this section shall apply to renew the nonconforming use certificate by
July 31 of every year.

j) Each application to renew shall include proof that:
( there is in effect a State of Hawai’i general excise tax

license and transient accommodations tax license for the
nonconforming use,
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() that the nonconforming use has not ceased for a
continuous period of 12 months, and

) that at the time of renewal there were no outstanding
violations of State or County land use or planning laws.
including the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance,
Shoreline Management Area, and Shoreline Setback laws.

) Failure to meet these conditions will result in the denial of the
application for renewal of the nonconforming use certificate.

) Any owner, operator, or proprietor shall be allowed to operate any
existing single-family transient vacation rental until (1) the owner, operator,
or proprietor fails to apply for a nonconforming use certificate by February
29, 2008, or (2) an application has been denied or a nonconforming use permit
has been revoked and the owner, operator, or proprietor fails to request a
hearing or file an appeal pursuant to Section 8-17.9; whichever is earlier.

Section 8-17.9 Enforcement Against Illegal Single-Family and Multi-Family
Transient Vacation Rentals.

(a) In addition to other penalties provided by law, including but not
limited to Section 8-17.6, Section 8-24.1, and the Planning Commission Rules, as
amended, the Planning Director or any member of the public may initiate
proceedings to revoke a nonconforming use certificate upon a presentation of a
signed and notarized statement(s) that either the requirements of this Chapter or
the conditions of approval of the certificate have not been met, or that the applicant
gave false or misleading information on the application or any attachments thereto
or at any time during the application process.

(b) The Planning Director shall serve written notice of the proposed
revocation and an Order to Show Cause why the certificate should not be revoked
on the applicant, by registered or certified mail with return receipt sent to the last
known address of record as provided in the application.

(c) The applicant may, within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the
proposed revocation notice, may request a hearing before the Planning Director per
rules promulgated by the Planning Commission. The burden of establishing that a
hearing is requested in a timely fashion rests on the applicant. If the applicant does
not file a timely request for a hearing, the Planning Director shall immediately
revoke the nonconforming use certificate. If a hearing is requested in a timely
manner, it shall be set no more than thirty (30) calendar days after the request. If
after the revocation hearing, the Planning Director determines that the proposed
revocation is justified by a preponderance of the evidence, the applicant has thirty
(30) days from the Planning Director’s decision to file an appeal requesting a
hearing before the Planning Commission. During the period that the appeal is
pending, the Director’s decision shall be stayed.

(d) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Director to issue,
deny, or revoke a nonconforming use certificate may file an appeal within thirty (30)
calendar days of receipt of said decision with the Planning Commission. The
Planning Commission, after the opportunity for an agency hearing, shall render its
decision either affirming or reversing the action of the Planning Director. The
Planning Commission’s decision may be appealed to the Circuit Court pursuant to
HRS Chapter 91 and the Rules of Practice and Procedures of the Planning
Commission.
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(e) Advertising of any sort which offers a property as a transient vacation
rental shall constitute prima facie evidence of the operation of a transient vacation
rental on said property and the burden of proof shall be on the owner, operator, or
proprietor to establish that the subject property is not being used as a transient
vacation rental or that it is being used for such purpose legally. If any unit is found
to be operating illegally, penalties established in Section 8-17.6 shall apply.”

(Material to be deleted is bracketed. New material is underscored. In printing this

ordinance, the brackets, bracketed material, and underscoring need not be

included.)
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(August 6, 2007)(11)
FLOOR AMENDMENT
BILL NO.. 2204, Relating to Transient Vacation Rentals and Bed and Breakfast
operations

____________________________________________________________________

I Introduced by: JoAnn A. Yukimura

Amend Bill No. 2204 in its entirety as follows:

“[SECTION 1. The advent of Transient Vacation Rentals (TVR)
and Bed and Breakfast (B&B) operations in Residential Districts has led to
concerns relating to the reduction in the long-term rental inventory and loss
of communities/neighborhoods, as well as other issues.

Because of the lack of clear regulations for TVRs (including
single-family dwelling types) and B&Bs, one of the high priority
implementation items in the 2000 General Plan involves the development of
standards and regulations for these operations. The General Plan recognizes
these types of alternate visitor accommodations, however it also
acknowledges the need to develop regulations and standards to ensure that
these uses are properly regulated and do not create any adverse impacts.}

SECTION 1. Findings and Purpose.

The Council of the County of Kaua’i finds that there is a compelling
need to regulate single-family transient vacation rentals on Kaua’i.
Single-family transient vacation rentals are occurring at a greater rate and
inflicting a larger impact on the community of Kaua’i than was ever
anticipated by the drafters of the County’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance.
While this type of visitor unit could be compatible with the character and
nature of Kaua’i and while it has certain positive advantages to the
community and is desirable in terms of offering a mix of accommodations to
the visitor, the uncontrolled proliferation of vacation rentals in residential
and other areas outside the Visitor Destination Areas (VDAs) is causing
Significant negative imp acts to certain residential neighborhoods.
foreshadowing similar potential impacts on other areas of the island

The County General Plan, updated in the year 2000, recognizes this
fact by its policy for “Alternative Visitor Accommodations,” which reads
as follows:

“4.2.8.2 Alternative Visitor Accommodations
(a) The County of Kaua’i shall recognize alternative visitor

accommodations, such as B&Bs, vacation rentals, inns, cabins, and
retreat centers.

(b) The County shall enact clear standards and permit
processes for regulating alternative visitor accommodation structures
and operations in Residential, Agriculture, Open, and Resort zoning
districts.

(c) County development standards and permit processes
shall be scaled to the size and potential impact of the use:
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(d) Permitting processes should consider the cumulative

impact that a large concentration of alternative visitor units can have
on a residential neighborhood.”

Census data shows that seasonal rentals account for 45% of the new
housing units built on KijfWetween 1990 and 2000, a greater percentage
than housing built for long-term renters (14%) or for owner-occupied
use (36%). Since 2000, out of the 2,050 new residential units, 1,070 have
been built for the seasonal homes market and less than half have been for
local families to rent (46) or own (936). The potential for vacation rental use
increases the value and thus the selling price and investment rating of
property on Kaua’i, which increases prices and adds another potential layer
of speculation in the real estate market. This also means that the limited
available infrastructure and resources on Kaua’i, including roads, water,
sewer capacity, building materials, and contractor time are being used
primarily for expensive and/or second and third homes rather than the
primary home needs of local residents.

In oceanfront or other places of premium real estate value, second and
third homes and vacation rentals (often one and the same) are displacing
traditional neighborhoods where people of low and moderate income have
been able to live in the past. Besides contributing to a lack of affordable
housing in the community, this is changing the social character of
neighborhoods where neighbors used to know each other. This hastended to
make these neighborhoods more vulnerable to crime. While regulating
single-family vacation rentals will not guarantee more affordable housing, it
will dampen speculation and bring a halt to uncontrolled growth and
cumulative impacts of vacation rentals which have affected the traditional
neighborhoods of ‘Anini and Hã’ena, and which could or are beginning to also
affect neighborhoods such as Waimea Valley, Kekaha, and the makai side of
Kapa’a Town.

The Council also finds that the transient accommodation and general
excise taxes on various vacation rentals are sometimes not being paid,
causing a loss of revenue to state and county governments and a failure to
pay for impacts associated with visitors.

The purpose of this bill is to restore a balance between primary
residences and single-family transient vacation rentals by: 1) requiring
permits or nonconforming use certificates and setting standards for all
vacation rentals, 2) explicitly prohibiting new single-family vacation rentals
outside visitor destination areas (multi-family vacation rentals are already so
prohibited), and 3) allowing nonconforming uses where single-family vacation
rentals have been operating lawfully prior to approval of this bill.

The Council also finds that to prevent a large number of new
single-family transient rentals that did not previously exist from being
created in anticipation of this ordinance, it is necessary to establish a
reasonable and definite interval of time for operation of a vacation rental as a
reQuirement for the establishment of a nonconforming use.

This bill does not apply to bed and breakfast (“B&B”) operations. It
is the intention of the Council to address bed and breakfast units as a
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separate matter after establishing a regulatory framework for single-family
transient vacation rentals. B&Bs are presently regulated through the use
permit process.

Once the number of nonconforming uses are established, attrition is
monitored, the Planning Department has demonstrated effective enforcement
of this law, a framework for bed and breakfast operations is established, and
the County has adopted a functional plan for agricultural and rural lands, as
well as a functional plan for tourism, the community could decide to allow
additional single-family transient vacation rentals outside the VDA based on
certain terms and conditions, or to continue the policy established here either
“as is.” or as modified consistent with the functional plans.

In order to promote a high Quality of life for all eole on this island, to
preserve the residential character of neighborhoods, to encourage the
diversity of incomes and backgrounds that has made Kaua’i a special vlace of
aloha, and to promote health and safety and the general welfare, the Council
of the County of Kaua’i does hereby enact the following law.

SECTION 2. Section 8-1.5, Kauai County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended by adding [the definition for “Bed and Breakfast operation”
and amending the definition for “Transient Vacation Rentals”] or amending the
following definitions to read as follows:

““Bed and Breakfast Operation (B&B)” •means a use of a portion
of a single-family detached dwelling unit in which overnight
accommodations are provided to transient guests for compensation, for
thirty (30) days or less, within the same dwelling unit in which. the
owner or lessee resides.

“Transient or Transients” means any person who owns, rents, or
uses a dwelling unit or a portion thereof for thirty (30) days or less,
and which dwelling unit is not the person’s primary residence under
the Internal Revenue Code. This definition shall not apply to
nonpayjng guests of the family occupying the unit, patients or clients
in health care facilities, full-time students, emvlovees who receive
room and/or board as part of their salary or compensation, military
personnel, low-income renters receiving rental subsistence from stat.e
or federal governments, or overnight, accommodations provided by
nonprofit corporations or associations for religious, charitable, or
educational purposes where no rental income is transacted.

[‘Transient Vacation Rentals’ means rentals in a multi-unit
building for visitors over the course of one (1) or more years, with the
duration of occupancy less than thirty (30) days for the transient
occupant.]

“Transient Vacation Rentals” means a single-family or
multi-family dwelling unit which, over the course of sixty (60) or more
days, is provided to transient occupants for compensation or fees,
including club fees, or as part of interval ownership involving persons
unrelated by blood, with the duration of occupancy thirty (30) days
or less.
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“Single-Family Transient Vacation Rental” means a

single-family dwelling unit, other than a bed and breakfast
operation, which is used as a transient vacation rental.

“MuitiFamily Trans:ient Vacation Rental” means a
multi-family dwelling unit which is used as a transient
vacation rental.

“Visitor Destination Area or VDA” are those areas designated as
Yisitor Destination Areas on County of Kaua’i zoning maps.”

SECTION 3. Section 8-3.1, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended by adding a new subsection (e) to read as follows:

“(e) To maintain the character and integrity of communities
within residential districts and to support residents in continuing to
live and raise their families in these neighborhoods.”

SECTION [3.] . Section 8-3.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-3.3 Generally Permitted Residential Uses And Structures.
(a) The following types of residential uses and structures are

permitted in districts R-1, R-2, R-4, and R6 so long as the dwelling unit
limitations established in Sec. 8-3.2 are not exceeded:

(1) Single-family detached dwellings;
(2) Accessory structures and uses, including one (1)

guest house on a lot or parcel 9,000 square feet or larger;
(3) Two (2) multiple-family dwelling units or two (2)

single-family attached dwelling units upon a parcel of record as of
June 30, 1980; and

(4) Notwithstanding subsection (3) above, multiple
family and single family attached dwellings developed pursuant to
a Federal, State or County housing program.
(b) Multiple-family and single-family attached dwellings are

permitted in districts R-10 and R-20 in addition to those types of
residential uses and structures permitted under Subsection (a) above.

(c) Public and private parks and home businesses are
permitted in all districts.

(d) Adult Family Boarding and Family Care Homes that
comply with all State Department of Social Services and Housing and
State Department of Health rules, regulations and requirements
provided, however, that the Planning Director may require a use permit
for such applications that may create adverse impacts to the health,
safety, morals, convenience and welfare of the neighborhood or
community that the proposed use is located.

(e) Transient Vacation Rentals, provided they are located
within the designated Visitor Destination Areas established pursuant to
Article 17 of this Chapter. These uses are prohibited in non-VPA areas.”

[SECTION 4. Section 8-3.4, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended to read as follows:
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“Sec. 8-3.4 Uses And Structures In Residential Districts That Require A
Use Permit.

The following uses and structures in residential districts require a
use permit:

(1) Botanical and zoological gardens.
(2) Cemeteries, mortuaries and crematoriums.
(3) Churches, temples, and monasteries.
(4) Clubs, lodges and community centers.
(5) Diversified and specialized agriculture and nurseries.
(6) Dormitories, guest and boarding houses; but not hotels

and motels.
(7) Golf courses.
(8) Medical and nursing facilities.
(9) Museums, libraries and public services and facilities.
(10) Private and public utilities and facilities, other than

maintenance and storage of equipment, materials, and vehicles.
(11) Project developments in accordance with Article 18 of

this Chapter.
(12) Retail shops and stores.
(13) School and day-care centers.
(14) Transportation terminals and docks.
(15) Three (3) or more -family dwelling units upon a parcel of

record as of June 30, 1980, in the RI., R-2, R-4, or the R-6 District.
(16) Three (3) or more single-family attached dwelling units

upon a parcel of record as of June 30, 1980, in the RI., R-2, R-4 or the
R-6 District.

(1.7) Residential care homes.
(18) Adult Family Group Living Home.
(19) Any other use or structure which the Planning Director

finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this Section and
appropriate to the District.”]

SECTION 5. Section 8-3.9 of the Kaua’i County Code 1987, as
amended, is hereby amended by adding a new subsection (e) to read as follows,
and renumbering the subsequent subsections:

“(e) Class 1-TVR Permit. For the purpose of registration, a
Class I-TVR Permit shall be required of all single-family and
multi-family transient vacation rentals within Visitor Destination Areas,
whether they existed on the effective date of this ordinance or were built
subsequently. This requirement shall not abrogate the requirements of
any other applicable statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations,
or other applicable statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, or
other law.”

SECTION [5.] Section 8-4.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-4.3 Generally Permitted Resort Uses And Structures.
The following types of uses and structures are permitted in RR-10

and RR.20 Districts, so long as the dwelling unit limitations established
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in Sec. 8-4.2 are not exceeded and provided that each use or structure is
incidental to or accessory to resort development:

(1) Accessory structures and uses
(2) Apartment hotels
(3) Automobile service and storage
(4) Barber shop and beauty shop
(5) Commercial recreation
(6) Gift shops
(7) Golf courses
(8) Home business
(9) Hotels
(10) Laundromat
(11) Libraries
(12) Motels
(13) Museums
(14) Police and fire stations
(15) Public parks and monuments
(16) Restaurants and food service
(17) Retail cleaning outlets
(18) Retail clothing shops
(19) Retail food and drug shops
(20) Shoe repair shops V

(21) Single family detached dwellings
(22) Transient Vacation Rentals, provided they are located

within designated Visitor Destination Areas established pursuant to
Article 17 of this Chapter. These uses are prohibited in non-VDA areas.”

[SECTION 6. Section 8-4.5, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-4.5 Development Standards.
(a) Residential. Subject to the density and acreage limitations

in the particular Resort District as provided in Sec. 8-4.2, the standards
for the development of single family detached residential structures shall
be the same as those provided in Sec. 8-3.1.

(b) Hotels. Buildings containing hotel rooms shall be
considered the same as multiple family dwellings subject to the same
standards as provided in Secs. 8-3.5 through 8-3.8, inclusive, with the
following exceptions:

(1) there is no maximum distance requirement from V

buildings containing dwelling units to parking areas;
V

(2) only one (1) parking space must be provided for each
three (3) hotel rooms;

(3) the maximum allowable land coverage shall be fifty
percent (50%);
No hotel room in a structure containing more than three (3) rooms

shall be converted to a dwelling unit without first obtaining a Class TV
Zoning Permit.

(c) Motels. Development standards for motels shall be the
same as those for multiple family dwellings as provided in Secs. 8-3.5
through 8-3.8, inclusive, with the following exceptions:

(1) parking spaces must be within one hundred
fifty (150) feet of the dwelling unit or motel room served;
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(2) at least one (1) parking space shall be provided for

each motel room.
(d) Other Permitted Uses. Parking service, open space and

other requirements applicable to each use other than dwelling units
shall be the same as the regulations established in the district other than
Resort where such uses are permitted and regulated.

(e) Other Requirements. Other requirements for development
standards in resort districts are as follows:

(1) The Planning Director or the Planning Commission
may revise the requirements if the plan review required for a
zoning permit indicates that the specific nature of the overall
development reasonably warrants the revisions.

(2) The Planning Commission may require the
dedication of adequate public access ways not less than six (6) feet
in width to publicly-owned land or waters and may require the
preservation of all historic and archaeologic sites, known or
discovered on the parcel subject to development.”]

[SECTION 7. Chapter 8, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended, is
hereby amended by adding a new Section 8-4.7 to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-4.7 Nonconforming Use Certificate for Bed and Breakfast
Operations.

B&B facilities not in the VDA that obtained Use Permits prior to
the effective date of this Ordinance No. (insert number) shall be
allowed to continue as a Nonconforming Use as provided in
Section 8-23.2.”]

[SECTION 8. Section 8-4.7, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as
amended, is hereby amended by appropriately renumbering the section as
“Section 8-4.8.”]

SECTION [9.] 7. Section 8-5.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-5.3 Generally Permitted Uses And Structures.
(a) Neighborhood Commercial. The following uses and

structures are permitted in neighborhood commercial districts:
(1) Accessory uses and structures
(2) Automobile services
(3) Churches, temples and monasteries
(4) Clubs, lodges and community centers
(5) Household services
(6) Museums, libraries and public services
(7) Personal services, such as barber shops,

laundromats, and shoe repair shops
(8) Professional offices
(9) Public parks and monuments
(10) Retail shops and stores
(11) Restaurants and food services
(12) Single family detached dwellings on lots or parcels of

no less than six thousand (6,000) square feet, and to a density not
to exceed six (6) units per acre.
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(1.3) Transient Vacation Rentals. vrovided they are

located within designated Visitor Destination Areas established
pursuant to Article 17 of this Chapter. Such uses are prohibited
in non-VDA areas. V

(b) General Commercial. The following types of uses and
structures are permitted in general commercial districts:

(1) Accessory uses and structures
(2) Automobile sales, repair and storage
(3) Automobile services
(4) Churches, temples and monasteries V

(5) Clubs, lodges and community centers
(6) Commercial indoor amusement and parks
(7) Department stores
(8) Hotels and motels V

(9) Household services V

(10) Light manufacturing, such as handicrafts and
garment fabrication

(11) Minor food processing, such as cracked seeds, jellies,
candies and ice cream

(12) Museums, libraries and public services
(13) Offices and professional buildings
(14) Parking garages
(15) Personal services
(16) Public offices and buildings
(1.7) Public parks and monuments
(18) Research and development V

(19) Restaurants and food services
(20) Retail sales
(21) Supermarkets and shopping centers
f22) Transient Vacation Rentals. yrovided they are

located within designated Visitor Destination Areas established
pursuant to Article 17 of this Chapter. Such uses are prohibited
in non-VDA areas.

[(22)]f) Transportation terminals and docks
[(23)]f) Warehouses
[(24)]{) Wholesale outlets”

SECTION [10.1 8. Section 8-5.4, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as amended,
is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-5.4 Uses And Structures In Commercial Districts That Require A
Use Permit.

(a) Neighborhood Commercial. The following uses and
structures in neighborhood commercial districts require a use permit:

(1) Animal hospitals
(2) Automobile sales, repair and storage
[(3) Botanic and zoologic gardens]
(3) Botanical and zoological gardens
(4) Communications facilities V

(5) Construction materials storage
(6) Diversified agriculture
(7) Food processing and packaging V

V

(8) Light manufacturing
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(9) Multiple family dwellings and single family attached

dwellings
(10) Private and public utilities and facilities
(11) Project development in accordance with Article 18 of

this Chapter
(12) Research and development
(13) Schools and day care centers
(14) Warehouses
(15) Any other use or structure which the Planning

Director finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this section
and appropriate to the District.
(b) General Commercial. The following uses and structures in

general commercial districts require a use permit:
(1) Animal hospitals
(2) Bars
[(3) Botanic and zoologic gardens]
(3) Botanical and zoological gardens
(4) Commercial outdoor amusement
(5) Communications facilities
(6) Construction materials storage
(7) Diversified agriculture
(8) Food processing and packaging
(9) Nightclubs and cabarets
(10) Private and public utilities and facilities
(11) Project development in accordance with Article 18 of

this Chapter.
(12) Residential dwellings, detached, attached or

multi-family
(13) Schools and day care centers
(14) Warehouses
(15) Any other use or structure which the Planning

Director finds to be similar in nature to those listed in this section
and appropriate to the Planning Director.”

[SECTION 11. Section 8-17.1, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as
amended, is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.1 Limitations On Location.
Except as provided in this section, B&B operations, time share

units, time share plans and transient vacation rentals are prohibited.”]

[SECTION 12. Section 8-17.2, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as
amended, is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.2 Permitted Time Share Locations.
Subject to the limitations contained in Sections 8-17.4 and 8-17.5,

time share units, time share plans and transient vacation rentals are
allowed:

(a) In Hotels in Resort or Commercial Districts; and
(b) In the Resort RR-10 and RR-20 Districts and multi-family

R-l0 and R-20 Residential Districts when such districts are located
within the visitor destination areas of Po’ipü, Lihu’e, Wailua-Kapa’a or
Princeville, as more particularly designated on County of Kauai Visitor
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Destination Area maps attached to Ordinance No. 436 and incorporated
herein by reference. The boundary lines established on these visitor
destination maps shall be transferred onto the official zoning maps for
reference purposes.

_______

(c) Time share units and time share plans are prohibitdin
the R-1, R-2, R-4 and R-6 Residential Districts.”]

SECTION 9. Section 8-17.3, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as
amended, is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.3 Permitted Locations for Multi-Family Transient Vacation
Rentals.

Subject to the limitations contained in Section 8-17.5, multi-family
transient vacation rentals are aflowed[:

(a) In Hotels in Resort or Commercial Districts; and
(b) In Resort Districts] in Commercial, Resort, and

Residential Districts located within the Visitor Destination Areas
as designated on County of Kaua’i zoning maps.”

SECTION [13.] iQ Section 8-17.5, Kaua’i County Code 1987, as
amended, is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 8-17.5 Existing Time Share and Multi-family Transient Vacation
Rental Uses.

(a) [Existing] Time Share Units, Time Share Plans and
Multi-Family Transient Vacation Rentals [in Projects] Existing On or
Before September 22, 1982, That Are Not Located in Visitor Destination
Areas. [Nothing in this Article shall impair the use in a project of an
existing time share unit, an existing time share plan, or an existing
transient vacation rental when such project is not located within the
visitor destination areas described in Section 8-17.2. All such existing
time share units, time share plans and transient vacation rentals in such
a project shall be regulated according to the terms, if any, of the project
instruments.] Time share units, time share plans, or multi-family
transient vacation rentals existing on or before September 22, 1982 that
are not located within the visitor destination areas described in
Section 8-17.2 may continue as allowed uses. However, no additional
time share units, time share plans, or multi-family transient vacation
rentals outside the visitor destination area shall be created [in such a
project after the effective date of this section, nor shall the terms of the
project instrument be amended or modified after the effective date of this
section in any manner that will allow an increase in the number of time
share units, time share plans, or transient vacation rentals within the
project.] after September 22, 1982. The uses left unimpaired by this
subsection shall not be lost by the failure to exercise the use unless it
clearly appears that the use has been abandoned for a period in excess of
two years. This subsection shall not apply to hotels in Resort or
Commercial Districts.

(b) Existing Time Share Units, Time Share Plans And
Transient Vacation Rentals in Projects Located Within Visitor
Destination Areas. Time share units and time share plans in existing
projects located within the visitor destination areas described• in
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Section 8-17.2 shall be regulated in accordance with the provisions of
Section 8-17.4.”

SECTION 11. Chapter 8, Article 17, Kaua’i County Code 1987. as
amended, is hereby amen byadding the following
8-17.10, 8-17.11, and 8-17.12 to read as follows:

“Section 8-17.8 Single Family Transient Vacation Rentals.
(a) Notwithstanding any underlying zoning designation and

with the exception of properties on the National or State Register of
Historic Places, single-family transient vacation rentals are
prohibited:

(1) in all areas not designated as Visitor Destination
Areas, and

(2) within Visitor Destination Areas where not
explicitly permitted.
(b) Development Standards for Single-Family Vacation

Rentals permitted within Visitor Destination Areas Holders of
Nonconforming Use Certificates. Development standards shall be the
same as those for single-family detached dwellings in Sections 8-3.5
through 8-3.8, inclusive, with the following additions:

(1) Applicant shall designate and provide the Planning
Department and the public with the name of. a contact person or
owner’s representative who shall be available on a 24-hour,
7-days-per-week basis.

(2) Only one sign no larger than one square foot shall
be allowed. The Nonconforming Use Certificate Number or the
Class I-TVR permit number and the phone number of the 24/7
contact person shall be printed clearly on the sign.

(3) There shall be no direct illumination of said sign.
(4) The applicant shall provide a list of requirements.

and information entitled “For the Safety and Comfort of You and
Your Neighbors” to provide essential information to the visitor
and to reduce negative impacts on the community. This shall be
provided to the Planning Department at time of application and
shall be posted in a conspicuous location in the transient.
vacation rental. This list shall include suggested curfews,
guidance with respect to gatherings and noise, and what to do in
cases of emergency and natural disasters.

(5) All print and internet advertising, including
listings with a rental service, shall include in said advertising
the Nonconforming Use Certificate number or the Class I-TVR
permit number.

(6) A copy of the Nonconforming Use Certificate or the
Class I-TVR permit for the current year shall be displayed in a
conspicuous place on the premises.

(7) Multi-family Vacation Rentals allowed under this
ordinance shall comply with Sections 8-17.8(b)(1) through (6).”

Section 8-17.9 Registration Via Permitting of all Transient Vacation
Rentals

(a) All single-family and multi-family transient vacation
rentals lawfully existing in Visitor Destination Areas at the effective
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date of this ordinance shall apply for and secure a Class I-TVR Zoning
Permit no later than twelve (12) months after the effective date of this
ordinance. Any new single-family or multi-family transient vacation
rental established in Visitor Destination Areas subsequent to the
effective date of this law shall apply for and secure a Class l-TVR

Zöning Permit prior to the operation of said rental.
(b) No single-family transient vacation rental shall operate

outside a Visitor Destination Area without a Nonconforming Use
Certificate obtained under Section 8-17.10.

Section 8-17.10 Nonconforming Use Certificates for Single-Family
Vacation Rentals.

(a) The purpose of this section is to provide a process to
identify and register those single-family transient vacation rentals as
nonconforming uses which have been in lawful use prior to the
effective date of this ordinance and to allow them to continue subject to
obtaining a nonconforming use certificate as provided by this section.

(b) The owner, operator, or proprietor of. any single-family
transient vacation rental which is operating outside of a Visitor
Destination Area on the effective date of this ordinance shall, by
August 31, 2008, obtain a nonconforming use certificate for
single-family vacation rentals.

(c) No nonconforming use certificate shall be issued by the
Planning Director unless the applicant demonstrates to the
satisfaction of the Planning Director that a dwelling unit was being
used as a lawful vacation rental on an ongoing basis over the course of
sixty (60) days or more prior to the effective date of this ordinance.
The Planning Director, in making. the decision, shall take into
consideration, among other things, the following guidelines:

(1) The applicant had a State of Hawai’i general excise
tax license and transient accommodations tax license for the
purpose of the lawful operation of single-family transient
vacation rentals for a period long enough to demonstrate actual
payment of taxes.

(2) That prior to the effective date of this ordinance,
applicant had deposits for reservations by transient guests in
exchange for compensation for use of subject property as a
vacation rental,

(3) That applicant had transient guests occupy subject
property in exchange for compensation prior to the effective date
of this ordinance, with a pattern of consistency that evidences an
ongoing and lawful enterprise, and

(4) That on the effective date of this ordinance there
were no existing violations of State or County land use or
planning laws, including the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance.,
Shoreline Management Area, and Shoreline Setback laws.
(d) No nonconforming use certificate shall be issued where on

the effective date of this ordinance a single-family transient vacation
rental is located on land designated “Agricultural” by State
law, unless:

(1) It was built prior to June 4, 1976, or
(2) The applicant has a special use permit under

Hawai’i Revised Statutes Section 205-6 by August 31, 2008,
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2) Failure to meet these conditions will result in thedenial of the application for renewal of the nonconforming usecertificate.

SctiQnh1Enforfemwnt AgainsLjile.gal S ieEaixi1y and
—Multi-Family Transient Vacation Rentals.

(a) In addition to other penalties provided by law, includingbut not limited to Section 8-17.6, Section 8-24.1. and the PlanningCommission Rules, as amended, the Planning Director or any memberof the public may initiate proceedings to revoke a nonconforming usecertificate or to stop an unpermitted use upon a presentation of asigned and notarized statement(s) that either the requirements of thisChapter or the conditions of approval of the nonconforming usecertificate have not been met, or that the applicant gave false ormisleading information on the application or any attachments theretoor at any time during the application process.(b) Upon a determination of probable cause, the PlanningDirector shall serve written notice of the proposed revocation and anOrder to Show Cause why the certificate should not be revoked, or whythe allegedly unlawful use should not cease. This shall be served onthe applicant, by registered or certified mail with return receipt sent tothe last known address of record as provided in the application.(c) The applicant may request a hearing before the PlanningDirector within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of the proposedrevocation notice per rules promulgated by the Planning Commission.The burden of establishing that a hearing is requested in a timelyfashion rests on the applicant. If the applicant does not file a timelyrequest for a hearing and the Planning Director determines by apreponderance of the evidence that a revocation or “cease and desistorder” is justified, the Planning Director shall immediately revoke thenonconforming use certificate or begin enforcement of a “cease anddesist order.” If a hearing is requested in a timely manner, it shall beset no more than thirty (30) calendar days after the request. If afterthe revocation hearing, the Planning Director determines that theproposed revocation is justified by a preponderance of the evidence, theapplicant has thirty (30) days from the Planning Director’s decision tofile an appeal requesting a hearing before the Planning Commission.During the period that the appeal is pending, the Directors decisionshall be stayed.
(d) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the PlanningDirector to issue, deny, or revoke a nonconforming use certificate mayfile an appeal within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of saiddecision with the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission,after the opportunity for an agency hearing, shall render its decisioneither affirming or reversing the action of the Planning Director. ThePlanning Commission’s decision may be appealed to the Circuit Courtpursuant to HRS Chapter 91 and the Rules of Practice and Proceduresof the Planning Commission.

(e) Advertising of any sort which offers a property as atransient vacation rental shall constitute prima facie evidence of thepation of a transient vacation rental on said property and theburden of proof shall be on the owner, operator, or lessee to establishthat the subject property is not being used as a transient vacation
14



rental or that it is being used for such purpose legally. If any unit is
found to be operating unlawfully, penalties established
in Section 8-17.6 shall apply.

Section 8-17.12 HistoricProprties_-Exention. Sin-gle-Family
Dwelling Units on the National or State Register of Historic Places
may be allowed to operate as a transient vacation rental through a use
permit and by abiding by the development standards specified in
Section 8-17.8(b).”

SECTION [14.] 12. Ordinance material to be repealed is bracketed. New
ordinance material is underscored. When revising, compiling, or printing this
ordinance for inclusion in the Kaua’i County Code 1987, the brackets, bracketed
material, and underscoring shall not be included.

SECTION 13. If any provision of this ordinance or the application
thereof to any person, persons, or circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity
does not affect the other-provisions or applications of this ordinance which can
be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end, the
provisions of this ordinance are severable.

SECTION [15.] 14. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval.”

(Material to be deleted is bracketed. New material to be added is underscored.)
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-Original Message-
From: Anthony Ching
Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2007 3:12 PM
To: JoAnn Yukimura
Cc: Peter Nakamura; Ian Costa
Subject: Vacation Rentals in the Agricultural District

Council Person Yukimura:

Per your question’- Are vacation rentals allowed in the State Land Use (SLU) Agricultural

District

205-5(b) states in part:

“Each county shall adopt ordinances setting forth procedures and requirements, including

provisions for enforcement, penalties, and administrative oversight, for the review and permitting

of agricultural tourism uses and activities as an accessory use on a working farm, or farming

operation as defined in section 165-2; provided that agricultural tourism activities shall not be

permissible in the absence of a bonafide farming operation. Ordinances shall include but not be

limited to:

(1)

(2) Requirements and restrictions for accessory facilities connected with the farming operation,

including gift shops and restaurants; provided that overnight accommodations shall not be

permitted;

(3)

(4)

(5)”

My response to your question is that Chapter 205 HRS clearly prohibits overnight

accommodations (such as offered by vacation rentals) in the SLU Agricultural District.

Please also find my letter to the Kauai Planning Commission which discusses logical definitions

for bona fide agricultural activities/farming operations.

Anthony J.H. Ching
State Land Use Commission
235 South Beretania
Honolulu, Hawaii 96804-2359
(808) 587-3822

J”bo (pL’Or’i-)
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LINDA LINGLE ANTHONY .I.H. CHING

GOVERNOR EXECUTIVE OFFICER

STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM

LAND USE COMMISSION
RO. Box2359

Honolulu, Hawad 96804-2359
Telephone: 808-587-3822

Fax: 808-587-3827

April 12, 2007

Mr. Ian Costa, Director

Planning Department
County of Kauai
4444 Rice Street, Suite 473

Lihue, Hawaii 96766

Dear Mr. Costa:

Subject: Special Management Area Use Permit SMA (U)-2007-7

Seacliff Plantation, Kilauea, Kaua’i

TMK No: (4) 5-2-004: 077
Applicant: Chris Mann

I am in receipt of your correspondence dated March 12, 2007, transmitting the amended

and approved SMA permit for the construction of a single story 3-bedroom, 3.5

bathroom, 3,262 square foot Additional Dwelling Unit (ADU) and accessory 2-story

accessory/storage agricultural structure; Attachment 1; and Attachment 2. 1 understand

that a condition of the Kauai Planning Commission’s (KPC) approval (condition no. 11)

specifies that prior to building permit application, assurance that the development of

the property complies with Chapter 205, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), is required.

To satisfy this condition, the KPC included the specific requirement (condition of

approval no. ha) which reads:

“The Planning Department shall submit the permit request to the Executive

Office(r) of the Land Use Commission of the State of Hawaii and to the LUC

(Land Use Commission) for review and comment, if any.”

Based upon my review of the transmitted materials, I have the following comments:

1. The property is located in the State Land Use (SLU) Agricultural District and

subject to the district standards and use restrictions described in HRS chapter
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Mr. Ian Costa, Director
April 12, 2007
Page 2

205, including but not limited to, §205-2(d) and §205-4.5. Pursuant to I-IRS §205-
12, the County of Kauai is responsible for enforcing the SLU districts adopted by
the LUC and restriction on use and the condition relating to the SLU Agricultural
District and shall report all violations to the Commission.

2. Farm dwellings and farm buildings are permitted uses in the SLU Agricultural
District [205-4.5(a)(4)]. “Farm dwellings” means a single family dwelling
located on and used in connection with a farm or where agricultural activity
provides income to the family occupying the dwelling. [Emphasis added.]

3. State law [HRS §46-4 (c) County Zoning] specifies that “each county may adopt
reasonable standards to allow the construction of two single family dwelling
units on any lot where a residential dwelling unit is permitted.” However, on
lots located within the SLU Agricultural District, both the primary farm
dwelling/single family dwelling and ADU must conform to the definition
contained in [HRS §205-4.5(a)(4)]. It is my belief that the County of Kauai must
affirmatively ensure that both the primary farm dwelling and the ADU conform
to this section of the State Land Use Law.

4. A common sense interpretation of [205-4.5(a)(4)] would require that single
family dwellings located within the SLU Agricultural District must be used in
connection with either subsistence farming/agricultural activity (a farm) or an
agribusiness (where the business activity provides income to the family
occupying the dwelling) in order to be qualified as a farm dwelling. Definitions
for these terms follow.

Farm/Subsistence Farming is agricultural activity or agricultural practices that
produce food or products primarily for consumption by the family working the
land, and where the family is dependent on this activity to meet a significant
portion of the family’s nutritional needs. Agriculture that is insignificant in
relation to the actual use of land shall not be evidence of subsistence farming.
Agricultural activity is activities involved in the cultivation of crops, propagation
of fish or game, or raising of livestock.

Agricultural Income or Agribusiness is income derived from a business licensed for
the production and sale of products from the cultivation of crops, propagation of
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fish or game, or raising of livestock, including, but not limited to the processing

of farm products or the manufacturing of farm equipment and fertilizers.

Exclusion. Single-family dwellings in a subdivided development where the

agricultural activity, agribusiness, or subsistence farming established is

insignificant in relation to the actual use of the land do not qualify as farm

dwellings.

I note that the Twenty-Fourth State Legislature (2007) is in the final stages of reviewing

a proposal (SB 1236 SD1 HD1) which amongst other provisions would codify these

definitions.

5. The Kauai County Planning Department staff report notes that SMA permit

condition flOg required “agricultural activity to be established before any

additional farm dwellings would be permitted on a lot that qualified for more

than 1 unit.” The staff notes that “equine husbandry exists for approximately 4.5

acres, along with a 4-stall barn complete with tack room, feed room, wash down

area and bathroom. The applicant intends to convert some of the pasture area to

commercial avocado production.”

It is my belief that in order to comply with the requirements of condition #lOg and

Chapter 205 ‘HRS) and qualfij as an bonafide agricultural activity, the operator of the

equine husbandry operation should show proof of income or business license in order to

qualify as an agribusiness. Compliance with condition no. lOg is required prior to

allowing the development of the ADU.

6. The Kauai County Planning Department staff report also notes that

“consideration should be given to establish deed restrictions to prohibit the use

of the structures for vacation rental or bed and breakfast uses, and to have such

restrictions recorded prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit.”

It is my belief that deed restrictions such as described in the staff report must be

established and that such deed restrictions should also reflect that qualifying

agricultural activity, subsistence farming and/or agribusiness activities must

also be maintained until such time that the land is reclassified to another SLU

district.
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7. The Agroforestry Management Plan prepared for TMK# 4-5-2-4:77:0002 describes
location, feasibility, crops, schedules, projected revenues and action for much of
the 1 acre location.

The detailed Agroforestry Management Plan is convincing in its scope and detail.
Evidence of income or the formation of an agribusiness should be submitted by the
applicant.

8. Condition no. ha would seem to require both the Executive Officer of the LUC
and the Commission to review and comment on this application.

Commenting solely as the Executive Officer of the LZJC, I have provided my own
perspective, ifa ruling by the LUC is requested by either the applicant or the County of
Kauai Planning Commission, applicable state law (i.e., Chapter 91 HRS) and
administrative rules (i.e., §15-15-98 to 104 Hawaii Administrative Rules) require that a
petition for declaratory ruling be filed.

As your March 12, 2007 correspondence is notformatted as a petition to the LUCfor
declaratory ruling, this reply reflects my own beliefs and comments. Nothing in this
document should be construed to reflect the opinion or perspective of or to be
binding upon individual Commissioners or the LUC as a whole.

Please feel free to contact me at 587-3822, should you require further clarification or
assistance.

Sincerely,

Executive

C: Chair, County of Kauai Planning Commission
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FLOOR AMENDMENT
Bill No. 2226, Draft 1. Relating to Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection

Introduced by: JoAnn A. Yukimura

Amend Bill No. 2226, Draft 1, as follows:

1) Amend Section 1 of Bill No. 2226, Draft 1, to read as follows:

“SECTION 1. Findings and Purpose. The Council finds that
Kaua’i’s coastline is subject to a wide variety of natural hazards, such as
tsunamis, high surf, sea level rise, hurricanes, coastal flooding, and coastal
erosion that pose dangers to people and property located near the shoreline.
Proper siting of structures based on hazard recognition and long term
planning principles is critical to the protection of life and property, the
mitigation of coastal hazards, and the preservation of coastal resources.
Furthermore, the Planning Department is in the process of producing coastal
erosion hazard maps that will be used as a basis for new shoreline setback
requirements. Current shoreline setback requirements were established
without adequate data on historical shoreline positions and trends.
Development and other improvements on coastal lands have occurred
without regard to erosion hazards. Because chronically retreating shorelines
eventually threaten these improvements, there has been widespread
construction of shore protection structures such as seawalls and revetments.
These structures distort the natural shoreline environment, often leading to
accelerated erosion on adjoining properties, [impacted public access, and
beach loss.] beach loss, and reduced public access. This pattern of coastal
zone management seriously degrades the natural attributes of the Kaua’i
coast as documented in the Kauai Shoreline Erosion Management Study
(September, 1990).

The shoreline environment is one of Kaua’i’s most important economic
and natural resources. Kaua’i’s beaches provide scenic beauty and
recreational opportunities for residents and visitors. They are culturally
important to the people of Hawai’i. Beaches, dunes, and offshore topographic
features also help to minimize risks from coastal hazards by dissipating wave
energy, which could otherwise cause significant damage to coastal property.
Beaches provide important habitat for seabirds, turtles, monk seals, and
other animals and plants. In all of the abovementioned ways, beaches and
coastal areas are part of the public trust, and it is government’s fiduciary
responsibility to protect beaches and coastal areas.

It is important that information regarding natural hazards such as
coastal erosion data be incorporated into the planning process at the earliest
stages of development, i.e., at the time of zoning, general plan, and
development plan changes before lot sizes and shapes are established, so as
to give landowners more environmentally sound options and to save decision
makers from the agonizing dilemma of choosing between protection of one
owner to the detriment of another owner and/or the public.

In order to protect life, property, and coastal resources against coastal
hazards, this bill sets forth a procedure for establishing building setbacks
from the shoreline based on scientifically documented rates of shoreline
change and the history of coastal hazards in a specific place. Using a
precautionary approach, the bill promotes proper siting of structures and
reduced use of the shoreline area for structures in order to ensure the

1
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longevity and integrity of Kaua’i’s coastal and beach resources. Additionally,
it imposes a no-tolerance policy for structures illegally built or illegally
repaired within the shoreline setback area from the effective date of this
ordinance.

The ongoing coastal erosion study by the Planning Department will
provide a public database to assist the Planning Department and shoreline
area owners in this regard. Until the public data base is established,
landowners will be allowed to site improvements by developing their own
data through scientifically accepted methodologies specified herein. This bill
serves as an interim measure until the public database of science-based
erosion rates is formally established and new setback rules and ordinance are
adopted by the Planning Commission, County Council, and Mayor, as
appropriate.

The County is authorized to protect the coastal area pursuant to Public
Law No. 92-583, as amended, (“Coastal Zone Management Act”),
Chapter 205A, Hawai’i Revised Statutes, as amended, (“Shoreline Protection
Act”), Article XI Section 1 of the Hawai’i State Constitution, Public
Law 92-583, and the County’s police powers to protect public health and
safety. This ordinance shall be known as the “Shoreline Setback and Coastal
Protection Ordinance.”

2) Amend Section 2 of Bill No. 2226, Draft 1, by amending proposed Article 27
to read as follows:

“ARTICLE 27. SHORELINE SETBACK AND COASTAL
PROTECTION

[Sec. 8-27.1 Applicability. This Article shall be applicable to a) all lands
abutting the shoreline, and to (b) all lands located within 500 feet of the
shoreline area of the County of Kaua’i, State of Hawai’i, unless the applicant
can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Director that the applicant’s
proposed improvement will not be affected by coastal erosion or hazards.
Factors to be considered shall include, but not be limited to, proximity to the
shoreline, topography, properties between the shoreline and applicant’s
property, elevation, and the history of coastal hazards in the area.]

Sec. 8-27.1 Applicability. This Article shall be applicable to all lands within
the County of Kaua’i, State of Hawai’i, that are (a) abutting the shoreline,
or (b) located within five hundred (500) feet of the shoreline unless the
applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Director that the
applicant’s proposed improvement will not be affected by coastal erosion or
hazards. Factors to be considered shall include, but not be limited to,
proximity to the shoreline, topography, properties between the shoreline and
applicant’s property, elevation, and the history of coastal hazards in the area.

Sec. 8-27.2 Definitions. For purposes of this article, unless it is plainly
evident from the context that a different meaning is intended, certain words
and phrases used herein shall be defined as follows:

“Adversely affect beach processes” means to pose a potential
immediate or future adverse effect on beach processes as a result of a
structure or activity located within the coastal erosion hazard zone, or to
create an immediate or future need to artificially fix the shoreline.

“Annual coastal erosion rate” means the annual rate of coastal erosion
calculated by following a procedure established in the Hawai’i Coastal
Hazard Mitigation Guidebook, (January 2005), which was prepared for the
State of Hawai’i, Department of Land and Natural Resources, Coastal Zone
Management Program, University of Hawai’i Sea Grant College Program and
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the Pacific Services Center and Coastal Services Center of the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration at section 4.1.

“Average lot depth” means the measurement obtained by adding the
lengths of the two sides of a lot which are at or near right angles with the
shoreline to the length of a line obtained by drawing a line from a point in the
center of the makai (seaward) side of the lot to a point in the center of the
mauka (landward) side of the lot and dividing the resulting sum by three.
For irregularly shaped lots including flag lots, triangular parcels, lots on
peninsulas, and/or lots having ocean on two or more sides of the lot, the
average lot depth will be determined by the Director. [using a minimum 60
foot width as a guideline for determining the portions of the lot in which lot
depth is calculated (e.g., the mauka side of the lot shall be determined where
the lot reaches a minimum width of 60 feet.)]

“Board” shall mean the Board of Land and Natural Resources, State
of Hawai’i.

“Building footprint” shall mean all parts of a main building (excluding
roof overhangs) that rest, directly or indirectly, on the ground, including
those portions of the building that are supported by posts, piers, or columns.
Building footprint also includes attached garages, covered carports, bay
windows with floor space, lanais, decks, cantilevered decks, spas, and
in-ground swimming poois.

“Certified Shoreline” means the shoreline established by Board
pursuant to HRS 205A-42, as amended.

“Coastal Dune” means one of possibly several continuous or nearly
continuous mounds or ridges of unconsolidated sand contiguous and parallel
to the beach, situated so that it may be accessible to storm waves and
seasonal high waves for release to the beach or offshore waters.

“Coastal erosion” means the natural loss of coastal lands, usually by
wave attack, tidal or littoral currents, or wind. Coastal erosion is
synonymous with shoreline retreat.

“Coastal erosion hazard zone” shall include all of the land between the
shoreline and the shoreline setback line.

“Coastal erosion study” means a quantitative study of historical
shoreline behavior utilizing orthorectified aerial photographs or other
imagery to carry out high-resolution mapping of historical shoreline positions
to obtain a statistically valid annual erosion rate of the Shoreline Change
Reference Feature [(SRF)J (SCRF) and vegetation line. The coastal erosion
study shall be carried out by a qualified professional consultant as defined in
this article following procedures described in Section 4.1. of the Hawai’i
Coastal Hazard Mitigation Guidebook, (January 2005). The coastal erosion
study shall include but not be limited to:

(1) Mapping of the historical shoreline positions including
both the SRF and the vegetation line for the subject parcel, as well as
the local and regional littoral cell;

(2) The method resulting in the larger erosion rate (SRF/toe
of beach vs. vegetation line) shall be used to establish the erosion rate
unless there is clear evidence to indicate another method is a more
accurate representation of historic shoreline change. [(For example,
inaccuracies can be introduced by using artificial changes in the
vegetation line and by large seasonal changes in the beach toe.)]

(3) Uncertainty or error calculation of the data and the
annual erosion rate;

(4) Additional information relevant to the erosion study shall
include: a current certified shoreline survey, construction plans, if any,
existing and finished contours; photographs of the shoreline setback
area, analysis of the coastal erosion rates and shoreline processes.
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[(5) Where required or done voluntarily, the coastal erosion

study shall be accepted by the Director before an application for a
shoreline setback determination is deemed complete.j

(5) Where a coastal erosion study is required to be done or is
done voluntarily by an applicant, an application for a shoreline setback
determination shall not be deemed complete unless the coastal erosion
study has been accepted by the Director.

(6) Any non-governmental study shall be valid for no longer
than a period of five (5) years from the date of its acceptance by the
Director which shall be by certified letter issued by the Planning
Department.

(7) The coastal erosion study shall consider the purpose of
the study—to safely site structures away from hazards such as erosion
so that shoreline hardening will not be required to protect the property
during its useful life.
“Coastal hazard” means natural processes in the coastal zone that are

generated by geologic, oceanographic, and/or meteorological processes that
place people and/or improvements at risk for injury and/or damage.

“Commission” means the Planning Commission of the County
of Kaua’i.

“Department” means the Planning Department of the County
of Kaua’i.

“Director” means the Planning Director of the Planning Department of
the County of Kaua’i.

“Dwelling Unit” means any building or any portion thereof which is
designed or intended for occupancy by one (1) family or persons living
together or by a person living alone, and provides complete living facilities
within the unit for sleeping, recreation, eating and sanitary facilities,
including installed equipment for only one (1) kitchen.

“FEMA” means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
“FIRM” means the Flood Insurance Rate Map.
“Hazard Assessment” means assessment for erosion, wave, flood, and

inland zone following the standards in Section 4.3 of the Hawai’i Coastal
Mitigation Guidebook, (January 2005).

“Lot” means a portion of land shown as a unit on an approved and
recorded subdivision map.

“Minimum buildable footprint” means the building footprint of 2,100
square feet.

“Minor activity” means an activity that:
(1) costs less than $125,000; and
(2) does not adversely affect beach processes, does not

artificially fix the shoreline, does not interfere significantly with public
access or public views to and along the shoreline; and

(3) does not impede the natural processes and/or movement
of the shoreline or sand dunes, and does not alter the grade of the
shoreline setback area, except for landscaping, clearing (grubbing) of
vegetation, and [grading to the extent that those exceptions are not
subject to HRS Chapter 343; and] grading, which are exempt from
HRS Chapter 343; and

(4) is consistent with the purposes of this article and
HRS Chapter 205A, as amended.
“Minor structure” means:

(1) a structure that costs less than $125,000 and provides
temporary emergency protective measures for a legally habitable
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.structurethat is imminently threatenedby coastalhazardsprovided
that the protectivemeasurehasreceivedapprovalin accordancewith
the Special Management Area Rules of the Kaua’i Planning
Commission and/or the State Department of Land and Natural
Resources(as may be the case),relocationof the endangeredstructure
has been consideredand is not reasonablegiven the nature of the
emergency,the protectivemeasureis removedwithin [ninety (90)]
hundredeighty (180) daysof its installation,andgiven the significance
of the emergency,the protectionis the best managementalternative
with respectto beach,shoreline,and/orcoastalresourceconservation,
or

(2) a structurethat:
(A) costslessthan$125,000;and
(B) doesnot adverselyaffect beachprocesses,doesnot

artificially fix the shoreline,and doesnot interferewith public
accessor public views to andalongthe shoreline;and

(C) does not impede the natural processesand/or
movementof the shorelineand/orsanddunes,anddoesnot alter
the gradeof the shorelinesetbackarea;and

(D) is consistentwith the purposesof this article and
HRS Chapter205A, asamended;and

(E) includes, but is not limited to, lighting in
conformance with HRS Chapter 205A, landscape features,
barbeques,picnic tables, benches, chairs, borders, wooden
trellis, bird feeders, signs, safety improvements, movable
lifeguard stands, walkways for access,outdoor showers and
water faucets, public utility lines, utility poles and accessory
structuresalong existing corridors, temporarytents for special
eventsnot exceedingfourteen(14) consecutivedays in duration
during any three-monthperiod,walls andfences[providedthey]
that are located more than forty (40) feet from the shoreline,
landscapeplanting and irrigation systemsprovided that they
are directedaway from [the] a validly certified shorelineand do
not artificially extend the shoreline or shoreline setbackarea
seaward;and

(F) excludes, but is not limited to, any in-ground
swimming pools or spas,garages,carports,concretewalkways
that are reinforced,concretewalkwaysthat are not saw-cutat a
minimumof three(3) foot intervals,andconcretesteps.

“Nonconforming structureor activity” meansa structureor activity
which is lawfully existingwithin the shorelinesetbackareabecauseit:

(1) Was completely built, in its present form, prior to
June22, 1970; or

(2) Received either a building permit, board approval, or
shorelinesetbackareavarianceprior to June16, 1989; or

(3) Was outside the shorelinesetbackareawhen it received
eithera building permit or boardapproval;or

[(4) Provided that if any portion of a structure is
non-conforming, then for the purposesof these rules, the entire
structureshallbe definedasnon-conforming.]
“Plan” or “site plan” meansa detailedconstructionplan drawnto scale

of 1” = 20’ 0” that showsthe designof a structureproposedto be built within
the shoreline setback area. The plan shall be based on an accurate
instrumentby a surveyorlicensedin the Stateof Hawaii and shall consistof
dataincludingbut not limited to:

(1) Propertyboundaries;
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